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BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERHEE

INTERIM REPORT 2012

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Beijing
Capital Land Ltd. (“BCL” or the “Company”; together with
its subsidiary, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
Group’s interim results for the six months ended 30 June,
2012.

In the first half of 2012, the Euro-zone sovereign debt crisis
continued to worsen, leading up to a general decline in
the growth of the global economy. As a result, the Chinese
economy showed signs of slowdown in a certain extent with
plummeting figures in export growth, and relative declines
at different rates in investment and consumption growth.
Under such volatile economic situations, adjustments were
made to China macroeconomic policies, with the goal of
maintaining steady economic growth as the top priority
of the government. Relaxation in monetary policy was
becoming evident, as the reserve requirement ratio was
lowered twice during the period, and the interest rate was
lowered for the first time in three and a half years.

In the first half of 2012, although policies aimed at
regulating the property market remained in force, some
“easing policies” were also introduced, which means efforts
to enforce those stringent policies did not intensify. The
eased credit policy for first-time home buyers effectively
sparked the release of solid market demand. Since May
2012, a substantial increase in transactions volume
was recorded in major cities, solid market demand and
demand for improving living conditions became the market
mainstream. Prices in the property market remained steady
while leaning slightly towards declining, as consumers are
gradually becoming more rational.

During the first half of 2012, in light of the slowdown of
economic growth and the gradual pick up in the China
property market, the Group reacted by accelerating its
strategic transformation, further optimizing product portfolio
and consolidating the development strategy of “Integrated
and Value Operation”, continuously promoting urbanization
in mainstream regions and economic development of
emerging districts. As at 30 June 2012, the Group’s
contracted sales gross floor area (“GFA”) amounted to
approximately 830,000 sg.m., and contracted sales totaled
RMB6.1 billion, recording a growth of 66% and 20%
respectively.

EAIPR -

RAAZEREREEEXERMDERQAR ([HAE
2| [ARA - EREWNBERARGR AL
BI2EES ([E52Q] RARAEEHE
—E——FXRAZtHILZHREBHESE-

—T_F ¥ [RESK]E-TET
EHREERREBENE PREEDRRT —
EREMNERNENTR HOERAED
EFOREMHEBEERODAETNREE TNE-HEE
BEST BANZEBEEBRRLREL R
FEENFEERKNASRRAREEZ EHNE
= ERBRZEHEBNER MAMKTHET
FTREFES X WETT=ZFFEHHRANER

SN

—E-—HF PR BEHHBEHEMNSNHE
ERREARE B [HHE] BRETELS
BERBENERBE-FNR - ERERE
XINEERRBRER SR RIE T B
FROBR-AAMNEK EXRHHRRE
BHIR T WAREE R LT BIEF KA =L
FBERERBTHENIR FEBEBRETRT
Bl mGHEZRHBRIEE-

T F R ARERERBE FHED
BSHBET —ERERFROTEET  KEEMR
EEMEBEEL  E-FE(EERSER R
REHAZE BEEZINBREE K&
R HE AR T L A A2 08 B [ Je B B R
BIEE —T——FXA=1THIL AEERY
HEMBASIE T I K BRNHESTBEARE
611E7T D ARt & 766%F120% °



During the period under review, the Group’s revenue
and profit attributable to equity holders reached
RMBS3,484,843,000, and RMB514,193,000, representing
growth of 110% and 67% respectively as compared to that
of the corresponding period in the previous year. The Board
has resolved not to declare any interim dividend in respect
of the six months ended 30 June 2012.

Upon comprehensive evaluation of property regulatory
policies, changes in market demand and future industry
development trend, the Group had adjusted its product
structure in a timely manner by increasing the supply of flats
for first time home buyers and buyers aiming to improve
living conditions. Moreover, the Group strived to strengthen
integrated developments and the launch of residential
complexes, to keep abreast with market demand. Through
the project developments, the Group has added impetus
to the economic development in those areas and create a
favorable environment in strengthening its market influence,
realizing scale breakthrough, consolidating market position
and gaining larger market share. During the period, the
Group launched new “saleable projects” such as Tianjin
International Peninsula, Tianjin A-Z Town and Xi’an First
City, which all recorded satisfactory sales performance and
were well received by the market and other major projects
including Beijing Ballet Town, Tianjin First City, Tianjin Noble
City, Tianjin Fortune Class, Tianjin Landing House and
Chengdu Citta Villa etc., also continued to deliver stable
sales performance.

The Group is continuously strengthening the development
of new integrated residential projects and exploring primary
land development with a view to proactively accumulate
quality land bank and further enhancing its advantages in
integrated operations and pioneering a unique business
strategy. During the period under review, the Group
accelerated balanced development across China in
accordance with its strategy of “focusing on developed
cities with steady expansion”. The Group increased its
land bank with total GFA of 1.67 million sg.m. in Beijing,
Kunshan of Jiangsu and Huzhou of Zhejiang etc. The
Group’s new integrated residential projects grew steadily
with securing the fifth Outlets integrated project in Kunshan
of Jiangsu, further improving its national planning strategy.
The Group’s primary land development also made stable
progress with steady performance was recorded from
Beijing Shunyi Zhaoquanying Project and Beijing Pinggu
Jinhaihu Project. The implementation of primary and
secondary development was also executed at full speed, as
Tianjin Wuging primary and secondary development project
already formed a virtuous cycle of development model.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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For the period under review, despite tightening credit policy
in property sector, the Group was able to leverage its sound
financial creditability and obtain sufficient bank borrowings,
spearheaded some innovative financing channels through
long term strategic cooperation with notable and capable
financial institutions. The Group is able to create diverse
financing channels which provided ample capital for the
Group’s expansion amidst the challenging situation.

Looking forward to the second half of 2012, the Group is
determined to adhere closely to its core operating strategy
of “Integrated and Value Operation and Accelerated
Turnover”. Riding on the foundation of new business
exploration initiated in 2011, the Group will strive to
maintain steady growth in major operation indicators
and realize the scale breakthrough by accelerated asset
turnover and steady expansion. In terms of geographical
distribution, the Group will continue its focus on the four
core regions including the Bohai Rim, Yangtze River Delta,
Pearl River Delta and the Mid-southwestern regions, it will
further strengthen and fine-tune the development plans to
gradually enhance its leading position in these region. In
terms of business development, the Group will continue
to explore integrated business model which combines
primary land development, property development and other
business sector such as commerce, education, tourism,
and effectively exercising cost control to maintain a steady
profit growth. In terms of financing channel, the Group will
actively explore the possible cooperation with strategic
partners who have a solid financial position so as to
implement diversified financing channels such as real estate
investment fund, and equity and debt financing in domestic
and international markets.

At last, I, on behalf of the Board, would like to express
our sincere gratitude to our clients, business partners and
shareholders, for their care, support and assistance to the
Group. The Group will work with our staff members, hand
in hand to create a better future. Leveraging in our solid
foundation of integrated business operation, competitive
edges in product differentiation and innovative development
strategy, the Group endeavors to promote standard
improvement and assist in the transformation of China’s
property market, so as to become the most valuable
integrated property operator.

Liu Xiaoguang
Chairman

Hong Kong 20 August 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

During the period under review, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB3,484,843,000 (2011: RMB1,657,787,000).
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was
RMB514,193,000 (2011: RMB307,513,000) Earnings per
share attributable to equity holders of the Company (basic and
diluted) were RMB25 cents (2011: RMB15 cents). The Board
resolved not to declare any interim dividend in respect of the
six months ended 30 June 2012.

PROPERTY SALES PERFORMANCE

For the first half of 2012, the Central Government on one
hand insisted to curb speculative and investment demand,
while on the other hand, supported and protected the
reasonable requirements of the self-occupied. More than 30
cities underwent provident fund loans adjustment, tax relief
for first-time home buyer and other adjustments to encourage
the needs of the self-occupied. The National Development
and Reform Commission (“NDRC”), Ministry of Housing,
Central Bank and other ministries all showed their support
for favourable policies aimed at assisting first-time home
buyers and the demand for first-time home buying mortgage
and efforts made to fine-tune monetary policy have gradually
increased. The reserve requirement ratio was lowered three
times and the interest rate lowered twice since the end of
2011, showing signs that the credit environment is improving.
As the policies continue to ease, home buyers begin to notice
the more relaxed situation in the property market. As a result,
not only were pent up solid market demands for first homes
released, but also other constrained demands for improving
living conditions in certain cities have also actively began to
enter the market. With the support of the growing demand,
transactions volume of residential property grew at a steady
rate beginning in the second quarter.

At the beginning of 2012, the Company clearly stated its
operational strategy as “maximizing scale and accelerating
turnover by clearing inventory”. Moreover, during early March,
the Group also actively collaborated various projects for joint
promotion and started to carry out a series of operational
strategies within the theme of “accelerating turnover whilst
perfecting the inventory structural”, which, in return, made it
possible to grasp the opportunities from the favorable market
condition during second quarter to be rid of inventory and
achieved comparatively better sales performance. In the first
half of 2012, total contracted sales area of the Group and
its joint ventures and associates amounted to approximately
830,000 sg.m., representing a year-on-year increase of 65.6%,
of which approximately 800,000 sg.m. was contributed by
the residential properties; Total contracted sales revenue
reached about RMB6.1 billion, posting an increase of 20.1% as
compared to that of the corresponding period in previous year,
of which sales of residential properties accounted for about
RMB5.7 billion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Project

HE&®

Approximate
Contracted

Sales Area
B4 % 4
SHEmE

(sgq.m.)

Approximate Approximate

Contracted Contracted
Average Sales
Selling Price Revenue
AL A 24
HENE HESR
(RMB/sg.m.) (000 RMB)

CFIR)(ARE F75K) (AREFT)

Residential (Beijing and Tianjin)
Beijing Landscape Villa
Beijing Ballet Town

The Reflections, Beijing
Urban Town, Beijing

Xanadu, Beijing

Tianjin First City

Tianjin Noble City

Tianjin Landing House

Tianjin Fortune City

Tianjin A-Z Town

Tianjin International Peninsula

Residential
(Outside Beijing and Tianjin)
Chengdu A-Z Town
Chengdu First City
Chengdu Citta Villa
Chengdu Wanjuanshan
Shenyang Qipan Hills First Villa
Shenyang First City
Wuxi Joyous House
Wuxi Gentle House
Zhenjiang Joyous House
Xi'an First City
Chongging Hong’en
International Living District
Qingdao Central Park No.1
Qingdao Sunny Xiangmi Lake
Yantai Sunny Chief Yard
Hainan Wanning Ballet Town

FEHa (REHME)
b FOR & L
IEREEMIHE
IEREEE

b Z=AF KiE

1t 2 Im &R
ROEH Bl B BRIk
ROBELZE
RIBE R E
RERA L
KZA-Z Town
KEBRFE

FEEHy
(FEUNMEE)
B #BA-Z Town
X EB B Bl B B 5k
X EBER A T
KERE S 1L
E S BRIL15R
V& 15 B Bl B BRIk
w5 E eI
mHEAEN
BT B AR AT
78 % & Al BIBR

EEBEEGLE
&5 L AR5
BB LT E
BAB Y ER

BMEBEEER

237,913
3,111
30,199
154
1,283
1,729
68,700
7,108
37,5636
6,873
70,342
10,878

564,542
372
11,226
76,132
100,335
3,316
67,839
46,635
5,883
19,749
69,041

95,690
24,326
32,023
3,299
8,676

9,713 2,310,932
14,373 44,715
14,481 437,314
53,831 8,290
40,791 52,335
63,474 109,747

8,144 569,484

9,412 66,898

8,345 313,244
12,905 88,697

7,617 535,782

8,680 94,426

5,954 3,361,535

6,629 2,466

6,591 73,993

4,915 374,162

4,739 475,496
13,176 43,692

6,266 425,097

6,975 325,299

7,370 43,359

4,422 87,327

5,819 401,726

6,471 619,176

6,786 165,071

6,837 218,940

8,782 28,972

8,847 76,759
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Approximate Approximate

Approximate Contracted Contracted

Contracted Average Sales

Sales Area Selling Price Revenue

MAEL AL AL

Project HR&#H HEER HENE HESEH
(sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.) (‘000 RMB)

CFIR)(ARE F75K) (AREFT)

Commercial/Office ¥ BFERY 14,434 29,166 420,978
Urban Town, Beijing b E= A KiE 10,613 35,999 382,060
Butchart Garden, Tianjin KRBT ZICER 2,401 9,536 22,896
Qingdao Sunny Xiangmi Lake SEBAEEMN 467 11,852 5,535
Yantai Sunny Chief Yard EalGiabt 953 11,004 10,487
Car Park Space B 10,722 3,022 32,406
TOTAL &t 827,611 6,125,851

Geographical distribtion of property sales performance in 1H of 2011 and 2012
2011 EEF01 2 E X EHNEHER D
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

In the first half of 2012, the Group, together with its joint
ventures and associates have completed parts of development
of the following projects, including Urban Town, Beijing, Tianjin
Noble City, Chongging Hong’en International Living District,
Qingdao Central Park No.1, Yantai Sunny Chief Yard and Wuxi
Gentle House, with an approximate GFA of 467,455 sqg.m..

Projects Completed in the First Half of 2012

BERM=E

—E-HF¥EFE ARRREASERTE]
BENRHANEREOIRIRNNIER R
RMFARE  RBRGER EEREEBRT
& FEBIERAER  ERBI AR &
BRIS - B4R AR S 15 49467,455
FIKe

REZFE-—ZHFEYFERZERIEHE

Approximate

Completed Attributable
GFA Interest
Project Type HBE 49 % B HAIEE
EB&E R MEEER FE 15 #E %5
(sq.m.)
(FT3K)
Urban Town, Beijing Residential/Office/Commercial 66,894 100%
ERMFRE T/ BFE WX
Tianjin Noble City Residential 59,610 40%
R RAEED F=
Chongging Hong’en
International Living District Residential 183,703 50%
Qingdao Central Park No.1 Residential 38,920 100%
FE5BEXREHR F=
Yantai Sunny Chief Yard Residential 41,717 100%
EalEkalk F=
Wuxi Gentle House Residential 76,611 100%
BEHEEIEN T
TOTAL & &t 467,455

HOTEL OPERATIONS

During the period under review, Holiday Inn Central Plaza
kept improving service quality, exploring customer sources
and maintaining stable operation and management. As at 30
June 2012, revenue of Holiday Inn Central Plaza amounted
to approximately RMB49,512,000, basically in line with that
of corresponding period in the previous year. The average
occupancy rate was approximately 69%, a slight increase
of one percentage point. As the proportion of revenue
derived from hotel operations continue to decrease, the
Group is considering to abandon the business of single
hotel development and operation, and gradually explore
new integrated operation model that comprises residential,
commercial, tourism, elderly, education and other businesses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LAND BANK

As at 30 June 2012, aggregate GFA of the Group’s land bank
was 11.03 million sg.m, and total saleable GFA amounted
to 9.63 million sg.m. (among which attributable GFA was
6.94 million sg.m.). Total saleable GFA increased by 9.3% as
compared to the end of 2011 and attributable GFA increased
by 15.7%. As divided by geographical region, the Boha
Rim accounted for 35.6%, 17.1% for the Mid-southwestern
region, 28.1% for the Yangtze River Delta Region, while 19.2%
for the Pearl River Delta and Hainan area. In terms of land
use, approximately 82% is for residential projects, 16% for
commercial projects and office use and 2% for hotels. The
existing land bank is of optimum scale and is sufficient for the
Group’s development in the coming four to five years.

BEEEFNWMDAN

T

HE-_Z——HF~A=1+8H £8#HEHN
T EBEAREEERE1,1038F K £
WEBEEmmEIGIE T K (HhExs
HTE64E T oK) - LB EE mER
T —FRENN9.3%  FE A EE B
M15.7% EFEHDMHE RDPEHEAG
35.6% FAMMEN17.1% R=ZAE
1h28.1% K= AT G EH 2 1519.2% < /#t
T ABRETE  H82%AEEMM 16%5
¥ BFERM 2% ABE B -REH
THRFERUAREEBERROERAFEE
FE REES

Total
Attributable Total GFA  Saleable GFA
Project Project Name Type Interest of Land Bank of Land Bank
TikkE Ttk
HE &M EEAR MEER EihEE HEXER BEER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAAK) (FHK)
Beijing Yuyuantan Project The Reflections Residential 55% 4,314 3,982
ERERERR HBEE FE
Beijing Hujialou Project Xanadu International Centre  Apartment/Commercial 100% 82,807 70,862
R RERE B BER O N4 E
Beijing Heping Lane Project Urban Town Residential 100% 9,320 3,713
ERMTEER MFRE FE
Beijing Shilibao Project A-Z Town Residential 100% 12,930 7,920
tR+ERER A-Z Town =
Beijing Huang Xin Zhuang Project Ealing Residential 95% 264,190 255,708
tREFHER (R IR Fx
Beijing Miyun Project Beijing Landscape Villa Residential 100% 252,038 236,738
EtREEER &L FE
Beijing Changyang Town Project Outlets Integrated Project Residential/Commercial 99% 218,327 202,308
- Ballet Town
tRRBEER BERHGREEER TE/ B
Beijing Fangshan Plot No.4 Project Residential/Commercial 100% 189,049 173,891
b RE LM fFe/m%
Tianjin Banshan Project Tianjin First City Residential/Commercial 55% 30,145 7,511
REHLER & I BIRR /%
Tianjin Huaming Project Noble City Residential/Commercial 40% 173,131 173,131
REEHER ERE TE/ B
Tianjin Xiging Project Landing House Residential/Commercial 40% 69,974 69,974
RERFER BrERE T/ %
Tianjin Shuangang 121 Project Fortune Class Residential/Commercial 55% 74,469 74,469
RELB121EE Bsl /%
Tianjin Shuangang 122 Project A-Z Town Residential/Commercial 55% 158,088 137,488
KE2EH1225EE A-Z Town Fx/mE
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EEEFNWM DN

Total
Attributable Total GFA  Saleable GFA
Project Project Name Type Interest of Land Bank of Land Bank
TifeE L
HE & HEERE LS EitE: HEEER BHAR
(sa.m.) (sq.m.)
(FHK)  (FHK)
Tianjin Wuging Project International Peninsula Residential/Commercial/School 100% 681,474 576,174
RERBER BB+ FE/B%/ 2R
Shenyang Shenying Road Project First City Residential/Commercial 30% 263,358 218,176
BB EERIER & I BRI FE/H%
Shenyang Yinhe Wan Project Qipan Hills First Villa Residential/Commercial 50% 465,951 422,230
EHRTEER H& L5 F=/m%
Chengdu Shengli Village Project First City Residential/Commercial 100% 72,806 60,159
BB I IE B BB T/ %
Chengdu Beiquan Road Project Citta Villa Residential/Commercial 55% 136,731 67,024
AL RBRIE B VN FE/H%
Chengdu SCE Project Wanjuanshan Residential/Commercial 55% 363,415 253,555
B IR AIE B sl F=/m%
Xi'an Fengcheng Road Project First City Residential/Commercial/Office/ 40% 1,009,624 778,754
Service Apartment
AL EMBEIER EEEL FE/B%/87E/
BERE
Chongging Hongensi Project Hong'en International Residential/Commercial 50% 640,668 488,001
Living District
EEERFER BRERAER F=/m%
Wuxi Dongting Town Porject Gentle House Residential 100% 25,859 12,934
BERTHER L t=x
Wuxi Jichang Road Project Joyous House Residential 100% 102,936 82,727
BEBISHIER LG T=x
Huzhou Taihu Project Outlets Integrated Project Residential/Commercial/ 20%-68% 817,928 750,928
Service Apartment
M AHIE B RERIGAE /B EELE
Zhenjiang National University Science  Joyous House Residential 100% 212,538 192,372
Park Project
HIBZRASHZEER BRI fFE
Jiangyin Yuyue Project Auspicious House Residential/Commercial 100% 176,171 169,181
TREHEE BER T T/ H%
Huzhou Renhuangshan Project Residential 100% 127,539 116,220
MMNCE2IWIER TFE
Kunshan Jinxi Project Residential/Commercial 51% 359,850 369,850
BIEEIEH Fz/m%
Kushan Economical & Technological ~ Outlets Integrated Project Residential/Commercial 100% 1,165,098 1,016,768
Development Zone Project
EILEERMAERER RERIGAE T/ %
Foshan Sanshui Project Outlets Integrated Project Residential/Commercial/ 55%-68% 1,675,400 1,670,000
Service Apartment
#I=kIER REREGAE EE/HE/ EERE

10
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Total
Attributable Total GFA  Saleable GFA
Project Project Name Type Interest of Land Bank of Land Bank
Tk TibHE
HE & HEEAR MEER EihEE HEZEER BEER
(sa.m.) (sa.m.)
(FAK) (FAXK)
Hainan Wanning Project Outlets Integrated Project Residential/Commercial/ 55% 290,013 275,611
Service Apartment
EREEER BERIGaE e/ Bt/ BELS
Qingdao Central Park No.1 Project Central Park No.1 Residential/Commercial 100% 78,102 70,418
EERE—IEE 5% RE1%R /g
Qingdao Qiangianshu Project Sunny Xiangmi Lake Residential/Commercial 100% 93,395 88,858
E5TTHIER BABEMN F=/m%
Qingdao Yangbuzhai Project Residential/Commercial 100% 77,932 68,406
5BHEFER e/ %
Yantai Sunny Chief Yard Project Sunny Chief Yard Residential/Commercial 100% 416,267 384,474
EaBiERER B &k FE/BE
Qingdao Jichang Road Project Airport International Centre Apartment/Office/Commercial/Hotel 100% 235,010 184,910
FEHSHIER ZHEERD L /BT /BE/BE
TOTAL &5 11,026,747 9,625,426

Geographical distribution of total saleable GFA of land bank are as follows:

ITHRERFEEEERERSGNT:

10%
11%
14%
3%
16% 7% 2%
8% 8%
4%
3%
2% 4% 4% 5%
3% gy, O 11% 8%
—T——F,A=1+H —E2——F+ZRA=+—H
30 June 2012 31 December 2011

Xi'an
AL

Yantai

gh

Beijing  Tianjin |Shenyang Qingdao

xE | EE 5

Chengdu
FRER

Chongqging  Wuxi
BE EiiE )

Huzhou Zhenjiang Wanning Foshan Kunshan
MM BT B= 1L Ew

dE3
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During the first half of 2012, numerous opportunities remained
in the land market. The Group exercised its advantage of being
a state-owned enterprise, and through the collaboration with
experienced professionals and the new operational model of
residential integrated projects, it continued to increase high
quality land resources of 1.67 million sg.m. at low cost.

In January, the Group acquired the land No. 4 Changyang,
Fangshan in Beijing through public action, with total saleable
GFA of 170,000 sg.m. The project is situated next to the north
of the Outlet Integrated Project — Beijing Ballet Town, about
30 minutes ride to Beijing Finance Street. It is also located at
a convenient location being close to the Jingshi Expressway,
Jingliang Road and the Fangshan Line of the local subway.

In January, the Group acquired Renhuangshan Project in
Huzhou with total saleable GFA of 120,000 sg.m. The project
is located in close proximity to the biggest park in the Huzhou
district — the Renhuangshan Park, and only approximately 3km
and 10km from the new Huzhou Municipal Government and
the Huzhou Outlets Project respectively.

In May, the Group acquired the Kunshan Outlets Integrated
Project through public tender with salable GFA of 1.02 million
sg.m. Kunshan is located at the Southeast of Jiangsu Province.
As an important emerging city with industrial and commercial
focus in the Shanghai Economic Circle, Kunshan is at a
privileged geographical location. The project is situated in
Kunshan Economical & Technological Development Zone and
is 20 km from the Shanghai Ring Expressway. The project is
positioned to be an urban lifestyle district combining the Outlet,
niche residential housing, dining, furniture, education and
entertainment.

In June, the Group acquired Phase 1 of the Kunshan Jinxi
Project, with saleable GFA of 360,000 sq.m. The project covers
a total area of 70,000 sg. km and will be jointly developed
by the Group and Zhongginglu Group which has successfully
developed the well-known Jiangnan Water Village “Wu Town”.
The project is positioned to be “an international high-end resort
district combining elements such as leisure, rejuvenation,
recreation, exhibition and convention, travelling, cultural
exchange and specialty living”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at June 30, 2012, the Group had a professional team of
1,240 staff with an average age of 32.7. In terms of education
level, about 11.3% and 67.4% of the employees received
master’s degree or above and undergraduate respectively. Of
the total number of staff, employees at the middle to senior
level accounted for 30%.

With the aim of raising the overall standard of operational
capability in the Group under volatile market situations,
the Group further optimized its managerial structure to
maintain our winning edge and to ease into the new business
development in 2012. Concurrently, the Group also enforced
a series of newly improved guidelines on human resources
directed to enhance efficiency among our staff and achieve
better performance. A scheme aimed to upgrade the quality
and knowledge of property development, financial operation
and leadership was implemented to middle to senior level
management; on top of that, more effort was put into joint
training programs where corporate culture and professional
skills were shared among employees. In providing opportunities
to both junior management and professionals with great
potential to enhance their capability on property business
management though training and job rotation across different
regions. The Group meticulously went through the standards
of responsibility for all levels of staff, so as to provide a clearer
development of their career path and beneficial to recruiting
quality members to join our constantly-growing business.
Moreover, the Group also invested in resource development
to incorporate investors’ perspective to boost performance
incentives.

REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
Analysis on Business Environment

Overview of China’s Property Market

In the first half of 2012, not only did China’s economic
growth and investment growth slowed down, its export
growth also exhibited decline. With inflation effectively under
control, maintaining a stable growth and promoting domestic
demand have become the focal themes in the country’s
macroeconomic policies and economic transformation.
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In the first half of 2012, China’s GDP amounted to
RMB22,709.8 billion, up 7.8% in terms of constant prices. Of
which the first quarter grew by 8.1% and the 7.6% growth
recorded in the second quarter marked the three-year low
in growth rate since the second quarter of 2009. Price level
remained steady with the consumer price index rose by 3.3%
year-on-year in the first half of 2012. The growth rate was 2.1
percentage points down as compared with the same period
last year. For the first half of the year, the disposable income of
urban and rural residents per capita amounted to RMB13,679.
Among it, the disposable income of urban residents per capita
was up 13.3% nominally and up 9.7% if excluding price factor
to RMB12,509. The growth rate accelerated by 2.1 percentage
points year-on-year. During the period, the income of rural
residents per capita was RMB4,303, a nominal increase of
16.1% and 12.4% if excluding price factor. Though the growth
speed was 1.3 percentage points down as compared with
the corresponding period last year, the growth rate of rural
residents’ income still outpaced that of urban residents.

From January to June of 2012, the investment of property
development in China reached RMB3,061 billion, up
16.6% year-on-year though the growth rate declined by
1.9 percentage points as compared with preceding five
months. Of which, 68.2% of the total investment of property
development, or RMB2,087.9 billion, was contributed from
residential property, an increase of 12% year-on-year and the
growth slowed down by 1.6 percentage points. The downward
trend in the property sector was reflected by the decline in
the developers’ willingness to acquire new land. During the
period, 175.43 million sg. m of land was acquired by property
developers, down 19.9% year-on-year. The total sales revenue
of land transactions was RMB344.1 billion, down 13.3% year-
on-year.

During the period, a total of 399.64 million sg.m. of commodity
housing were sold in China, representing a 10% decline year-
on-year. Among the commodity housing sold, total area sold
for residential properties dropped by 11.2% whereas office and
commercial properties were up 7.1% and 2.5% respectively
year-on-year. The sales revenue of commodity housing was
RMB2,331.4 billion, down 5.2% year-on-year though the extent
of the decline reduced by 3.9 percentage points as compared
to the preceding five months. Of which, the sales revenue for
residential and office properties dropped by 6.5% and 1.1%
respectively whereas that of commercial properties was up
5.4%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overall, the skyrocketing of property prices was under control
and gradually falls within a reasonable level. Solid market
demand and demand for improving living conditions become
the mainstream. At the same time, the sentiment of the
property market became rational after prolonged regulatory
adjustment. The recent revival of the property market in major
cities by various extents can persist until the second half of the
year.

(Sources: National Bureau of Statistics and National Reform and
Development Commission)

Overview of Property Market in Bohai Rim Region

Bohai Economic Rim consists of the Beijing-centered Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei Metropolis Circle, Liaoning Coastal Economic
Belt which is now a national strategic region, and secondary
regions such as Shandong Peninsula Economic Zone. The
Bohai Economic Rom includes two cities and three provinces,
i.e. Beijing and Tianjin, Hebei, Liaoning and Shandong. For
the first half of 2012, GDP of Bohai Rim Region amounted to
RMB6,361.1 billion, accounting for 28% of total national GDP.
As the core region for China’s political and economic stability,
Bohai Rim Region has become the third growth pole in China’s
economic development. The Bohai Rim Region is not only the
key growth driver of northern China, but also the frontier for
international economic collaboration for Northeast Asia.

With the construction of infrastructures and transportation
networks at a faster rate in the future, the Bohai Economic
Rim will be connected to the economic zone of Liaodong
Peninsula and the Shandong Peninsula Economic Zone of
which Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Metropolis Circle as the center.
Five intercity railways, namely Beijing-Tianjin, Beijing-Shenyang,
Beijing-Jiangjiakou, Beijing-Tangshan, Beijing-Shijiazhuang,
will commence operation in succession. Comprehensive
infrastructures and facilities will divert pressure on major cities,
it also helps to develop satellite cities and cities of mid-to-
small scale and allocate resources more sensibly in the region.
Population mobilization and specialized industries will be the
catalysts to the rapid development of the property market in
emerging regions surrounding core cities.
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Overview of Property Market in Yangtze River Delta
Region

With Shanghai, Jiangsu Province and Zhejiang Province
inclusive, Yangtze River Delta Region has an area of 210,700
sg. km. In 2012, Yangtze River Delta Region achieved a
GDP of RMB5,137.2 billion, representing 23% of the national
GDP. Capitalizing on the prime geographical location, as
well as its gifted natural endowment, Yangtze River Delta
Region has a solid economic foundation with a relatively
comprehensive urban system and robust scientific education
culture. The region is also among the best in the country
in terms of economic and social development, institutional
environment and overall competitiveness, placing itself in
a dominant strategic position in China’s economic setting.
Currently, the Yangtze River Delta Region is at a critical phase
of transformation and upgrade, as it faces constraints on
enhancing self innovation, and environmental resources, as well
as advocating proactive reforms and improvements.

In 2010, the implementation of the regional plan of Yangtze
River Delta was officially approved by the National Development
and Improvement Commission. Projecting as far as 2020,
the plan anticipates the Yangtze River Delta Region to form
a “one core, nine belts” setting surrounding Shanghai. With
Shanghai as the core, the regional development will be
along the development belts of Shanghai-Ningbo, Shanghai-
Hangzhou-Ningbo, Ningbo-Wuzhou-Hangzhou, East Longhai,
and Wenzhou-Lishui-Jinhua-Quzhou rail lines, Yangtze River,
Hangzhou Bay, the coast, around Tai Lake and along the
canal. The regional plan focused with the aim to become a
key international gateway for the Asia-Pacific region, as well
as an important global center for modern service industry and
advanced manufacturing industry. The plan further aims to
develop the Region into a world-level metropolis with strong
international competitiveness. Among the goals, the orientation
to become a global center for modern service industry was first
mentioned in the plan.
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By 2015, the regional plan target that the Yangtze River Delta
Region to surpass other regions in achieving the objective
of developing a well-off society with GDP per capita of
RMB82,000. The plan also anticipates the region’s proportion
of service industry and urbanization to reach 48% and 67%
respectively. By 2020, the region will realize modernization with
GDP per capita amounted to RMB110,000, with proportion
of service industry and urbanization reaching to 53% and
72% respectively. The significant acceleration of the region’s
urbanization and increase in purchasing power will reflect
in solid market demand and demand for improving living
condition. In addition, the increase in the proportion of service
industry will also promote the rapid development of commodity

property.

Overview of Property Market in Pearl River Delta Region

The Pearl River Delta Region comprises of Guangzhou,
Shenzhen, Zhuhai, Foshan, Jiangmen, Dongguan, Zhongshan,
Huizhou, and Zhaoqing, with a total population of 42.3 million
and total area of 41,698 sq. km. As the trailblazer of China’s
reform and one of China’s critical economic zone, Pearl River
Delta region has a consequential strategic position in driving
national economic and social development. In the first half
of 2012, the Region achieved a GDP of RMB2,579.8 billion,
contributing 11% of the nation’s total GDP.

At present, the Pearl River Delta Region is comprised of “one
bay, three districts”, including Pearl River Estuary and three
metropolis circles, namely Guangzhou-Foshan, Hong Kong-
Shenzhen, and Macau-Zhuhai. Going forward, the Greater
Pearl River Delta Region will form a “1-hour transportation
circle” by infrastructures mainly of railed transportation and
highway.
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Foshan is an integral part of the Guangzhou-Foshan
metropolis in the Pearl River Delta Region. In addition, Foshan
is also the gateway from the west coast of Guangdong to
Guangzhou. With the promulgation of “Guangzhou-Foshan
Integrated Urban Development Planning”, an integrated urban
development approach will be further implemented. By a
differentiated development approach, Guangzhou and Foshan
will complement each other with their respective competitive
strengths. Investment on the infrastructure among the two
cities will continue to increase. In terms of city structure, the
development of the two cities will lead “2+5 districts” — the
Central district and Daliangronggui district serving as the
core while promoting the comprehensive development of
Shishan district, Xinan district, Xijiang district, Dali district, and
Jiujianglongjiang district. In the long run, Foshan will have a
population of 13.5 million with 85% to 90% of the population
urbanized. With the gradual progress of the Guangzhou-
Foshan Integrated Urban Development and the rising rate of
urbanization, the combined development of urban core districts
and emerging districts will effectively lead the long-term
demand of Foshan property and enhance its influence to the
surrounding areas.

Overview of Western China Property Market

Western China is the region with the greatest development
potential in China. In the future economic transition of China,
western China’s ability to effectively connect with the industries
in Eastern China will be an important support to the economic
growth. Currently, the most developed areas in western China
include Chengdu-Chongqging Economic Zone and Guanzhong-
Tianshui Economic Zone with major cities such as Chengdu,
Chongging, and Xi'an. During the first half of 2012, investment
in property development in Chongging was RMB99.616 billion
with year-on-year increase of 19.7%. The overall growth rate
of western China in investment in property development was
higher than major cities in Eastern China.
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As one of the core cities in western China, Chengdu has
enormous potential demand with a radiating and significant
influence to its surrounding areas. Chengdu has proposed
its goal of strategic development to become “a world-class
modern garden city”. The proposal included building a world-
class international city, a modern super city center in western
China and an urban-rural integrated garden city. Based on
this development concept, Chengdu will be dedicated to unify
the first inner circle of old city and the second inner circle of
suburban districts, forming a new main urban area of Chengdu.
The expansion in the scale core urban area will be a motivating
force to the Chengdu property market development and in
particular in the suburban areas.

Chongqing is not only one of China’s direct-controlled
municipalities, but also a state-level historical city with rich
culture. As an important industrial city in China, Chongqing is
also the largest economic center in the southwest region and
in the upper Yangtze River. In the “National Urban Township
System Plans” by Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development, Chongging is one of the top five central cities
and the only Mid-western city on the list. “Liangjiang New
Area”, the only inland national development zone, has already
been written into the Twelfth Five-Year Plan. Its influence
spreads over to some 6.8 million sg. km. The expected high-
speed growth in the industries and influx of workforce shall
continue to drive the property demand in the area.

Xi'an is the central city in China Western Development as well
as the core city of Guangzhong-Tianshui Economic Zone and
a reputable historic city. In 2009, the States Council approved
“The Development Plan of Guangzhong-Tianshui Economic
Zone”, which mentioned the need to “dedicate effort in
building Xi’an into a world-class metropolis”. In 2011, Xixian
New District, which encompassed Xi'an and Xianyang, was
officially upgraded to be China’s fourth sub-provincial level new
district. Following the plan, Xixian New District will consist of
construction GFA for urban use of 160 sqg. km by 2015 and
272 sq. km by 2020. Under the context of national strategic
policies, the land problems that once curbed the development
of Xi’an will be resolved effectively. In the following decade,
significant improvement will be seen in Xi’an in terms of city
scale, urban population, industrial structure, and infrastructure.
The development of emerging industries will bring out the
overall development in integrated property and residential

property.
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Overview of Hainan Property Market

Hainan is one of China’s largest economic zone and the only
tropical island province with a total land area of 35,354 sqg. km
and high forestation coverage of 60.2%. For the first half of
2012, Hainan’s GDP amounted to RMB137.086 billion, a 8.1%
increase compared with the same period last year in terms of
constant prices. The total retail goods in community amounted
to RMB41.706 billion, up 14.8% year-on-year. In the first
half of the year, total area sold and sales revenue of property
market in Hainan declined by 5.1% and 10.3% respectively
year-on-year, which were mainly due to the obvious restraint
of the investment demand from outside Hainan as a result of
tightening regulatory policies.

In 2010, the “Guideline of Hainan International Tourist Island
Development Plan” was approved by the State Council. The
guideline proposed to develop Hainan into a world-class
destination for leisure and vacation with the development focus
on industries including tourism and property. Not only does the
development of tourism drive off the enormous demand for off-
island investment, it also enhances the purchasing power of
local residents and improves the sustained needs.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the China property sector will remain an
important part in China’s economic development for a long
time, with both opportunities and challenges ahead in the
industry. On one hand, the status of the property sector as
a pillar will be bolstered further and drive economic growth,
in the economy guided by domestic demand. On the other
hand, the industry has stepped into a phase of comprehensive
transformation and differentiation, signaling the end of the
sprawling growth previously. Under the backdrop of ongoing
regulatory policies, the optimization and upgrading of the
industry will accelerate. The strengthened motivation of
innovative development in the industry also shapes an apparent
trend of product integration and diversity.
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As such, the Group will implement the following strategies in
the second half of 2012:

o Persist in the strategy of high turnover rate and optimize
inventory structure by actively adapting recent market
changes. The Group will also increase the proportion
of project launches in mainstream popular regions and
enlarge the sale scale of hot-selling products, ensuring
the annual sales target to be achieved

° Synergize in harmony with the infrastructure business
of Capital Group. Additionally, the Group will also
take effective control of investment risk and create a
condition for scale breakthrough by obtaining quality
land resources at low cost through various channels,
including pre-application, primary and secondary land
development, merger and acquisition, and cooperative
development

° Continue to utilize the competitive edges of the Group’s
long-term strategic collaboration with major financial
institution while actively broaden and diverse financing
channels. The Group will also develop new business
lines with competitiveness at the same time as the
introduction of collaborative partners

o To develop the professional advantages of strategic
partners by steadily promoting the “Residential +
integrated model”, such as “Residential + Outlet”,
“Residential + Tourism”, “Residential + Education”,
etc. The Group will also promote the development of
investment property, steadily achieving the rent-reward
investment model through promoting “For rent and sale”

° Speed up target cost management and the development
of information technology structure. Through a
comprehensive cost control will enhance operational
efficiency, optimize management flow, and effectively
reduce the operational risks during rapid expansion
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

1.

Revenue and Operating Results

In the first half of 2012, revenue of the Group
was approximately RMB3,484,843,000 (2011:
RMB1,657,787,000), representing an increase of 110%
from the year 2011. The increase in revenue was mainly
due to the increase in projects completed during the
period such as Beijing Urban Town, Beijing Ballet Town
and Chongqging Hong’en International Living District.

In the first half of 2012, the Group achieved a gross
margin after business tax of approximately 38%,
representing a decrease of 15% when comparing with
53% in the first half of last year, which was mainly
attributable from some higher gross profit margin
projects in Beijing region last year such as Xanadu and
the Reflections and the revenue in Beijing region also
accounted for a larger proportion in the first half of 2011.

In the first half of 2012, operating profit of the
Group was approximately RMB858,305,000 (2011:
RMB504,647,000), representing an increase of
approximately 70% compared to the first half of 2011.

Financial Resources, Liquidity and Liability
Position

During the period under review, the Group maintained a
healthy liquidity position and a reasonable appropriation
of financial resources. As at 30 June 2012, the
Group’s total assets were RMB41,328,449,000 (31
December 2011: RMB37,711,118,000) and non-
current assets were RMB6,538,681,000 (31 December
2011: RMB4,766,943,000); and the total liabilities
were RMB33,201,872,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB29,482,884,000) of which, current liabilities
were RMB20,914,206,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB21,205,573,000) and non-current liabilities
were RMB12,287,666,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB8,277,311,000), and the shareholders’ equity
reached RMB8,126,577,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB8,228,234,000).
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The Group is of sound liquidity and solvency. Current
ratio of the Group as at 30 June 2012 was 1.66 (31
December 2011: 1.55).

As at 30 June 2012, the Group’s cash and bank
deposits amounted to RMB9,159,089,000 (31
December 2011: RMB8,352,243,000), which
represented sufficient cash flow for operations.

Bank borrowings and bond of the Group as at 30 June
2012 amounted to RMB17,452,479,000 (31 December
2011: RMB12,975,783,000), of which the long-term
borrowings and bond amounted to RMB12,163,799,000
(31 December 2011: RMB8,134,261,000), which were
mainly used to fulfill the capital requirements of the
Group’s property development projects.

As at 30 June 2012, bank borrowings of
USD46,600,000 (approximately RMB294,683,000) came
from Hong Kong and repaid in USD. Most of the Group’s
long-term bank borrowings are granted on a floating rate
basis.

As at 30 June 2012, the Company’s net gearing ratio
was 102% (31 December 2011: 56%). The gearing
ratio of the Group is calculated by the interest-bearing
liabilities net of net cash and bank balances and then
divided by total owners equity.

Changes in Major Subsidiaries, Associates
and Joint Ventures

During the period, the Group has acquired the equity
interest in Reco Camellia Private Limited and obtained
50% equity interest in Beijing Sun Shine City Real
Estate Development Limited (it =5 XM EHEBR A
Al). After the acquisition, the Group held 100% equity
interest in Reco Camellia Private Limited and Beijing Sun
Shine City Real Estate Development Limited (4t 2[5 ¥
W EF R Q)

During the period, the Group has enter into an equity
transfer agreement with Reco Ziyang Pte Ltd and
obtained 45% equity interest in Chengdu Capital Xinzi
Real Estate Development Limited (FX &0 & I ¥14 & %
BRRAT]) After the acquisition, the Group held 100%
equity interest in Chengdu Capital Xinzi Real Estate
Development Limited (FXEBE BIFTE BEXEBR AR
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During the period, the Group jointly established a
joint venture Huzhou Capital Rongcheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. GHINEHAILM B EER A R)
with Zhejiang Rongshengda Holding Co., Ltd. (/L& F
ZEERE AR A A1) The Group held 55% equity interest in
it.

Capital Guoxin Asset Management Co., Ltd. (& &=
ZEEEEAMRAT)a subsidiary of the Group was
incorporated in May 2012 and the Group held 100%
equity interest in it.

Capital Qinglv Real Estate (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. (& &l
SREX (EIL)BRAA)a subsidiary of the Group
was incorporated in June 2012 and the Group held 51%
equity interest in it.

During the period, the Group disposed 45% equity
interest in a joint venture Hainan Dalecheng Real Estate
Development Holding Ltd (/& & K %435k 5 2% 15 J B R
NA)). After the disposal, the Group held 10% equity
interest in Hainan Dalecheng Real Estate Development

Holding Ltd (/8 m K& =R B R A A))

Entrusted Deposits and Overdue Time
Deposits

As at 30 June 2012, the Group did not have any
deposits under trusts in financial institutions in the
PRC and Hong Kong. All of the Group’s cash was held
in commercial banks in the PRC and Hong Kong in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. The
Group has no bank deposits which are not recoverable
upon maturity.

Secured Borrowings

As at 30 June 2012, bank borrowings of
RMB2,550,000,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB2,550,000,000) were secured by rights to yields on
certain land use rights (gains on transfer of the land use
rights or other profit obtained from use of the related
land use rights).

As at 30 June 2012, bank borrowings of
RMB5,152,895,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB4,188,880,000) were secured by certain properties
under development.
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As at 30 June 2012, bank borrowings of
RMB364,019,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB393,234,000) were secured by hotel properties and
the land use rights.

As at 30 June 2012, bank borrowings of
RMB800,000,000 (31 December 2011: nil) were pledged
by equity interests of subsidiaries held and guaranteed
by the Group.

As at 30 June 2012, bank borrowings of
RMB2,548,164,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB360,193,000) were secured by the guarantee
provided by the Group for its subsidiaries.

As at 30 June 2012, bank borrowings of
RMB254,000,000 (31 December 2011: nil) were
guarantee by the Group and secured by the land use
rights held by the subsidiaries.

As at 30 June 2012, bank borrowings of
RMB232,500,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB155,000,000) were secured by the primary land
development rights and its corresponding equity and
income right interest held by the Group.

As at 30 June 2012, bank borrowing of RMB38,000,000
(31 December 2011: RMB30,000,000) were credit loan
obtained by the Group.

As at 30 June 2012, trust loans of RMB800,000,000
(31 December 2011: RMB500,000,000) were
secured by receivables of the Group due from
its subsidiaries and guarantee by the Group;
trust loans of RMB1,225,000,000 (31 December
2011: RMB825,000,000) were secured by equity
interest of subsidiaries owned by the Group; trust
loans of RMB800,000,000 (831 December 2011:
RMB1,200,000,000) were secured by certain
investment properties owned by the Group and trust
loans of RMB450,000,000 (831 December 2011:
RMB50,000,000) were trust loans guaranteed by the
Group. Trust loans of RMB100,000,000 (31 December
2011: nil) were secured by certain properties held for
development and guaranteed by the Group.
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Corporate Bonds

As at 30 June 2012, there were no early redemption
of the corporate bonds of RMB2,137,901,000 in value
issued by the Group. The bond of RMB1,150,000,000
issued in February 2011 by BECL Investment Holding
Limited with a maturity of 3 years with a coupon rate of
4.75% was guaranteed by the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had arranged bank facilities for certain
purchasers of its properties and provided guarantees to
secure the repayment obligations of such purchasers.
The outstanding balances of guarantees amounted to
RMB3,573,435,000 as at 30 June 2012 (31 December
2011: RMB3,028,311,000).

Such guarantees will terminate upon (i) the issuance of
the real estate ownership certificate which will generally
be available within six months to two years after the
Group deliver possession of the relevant property to
its purchasers; (i) the completion of the mortgage
registration; and (iii) the issuance of the real estate
miscellaneous right certificate relating to the relevant

property.

As at 30 June 2012, other than guarantees provided
for long term bank borrowings of RMB5,752,164,000
(831 December 2011: RMB910,193,000) and guarantee
provided for BECL Investment Holding Limited for the
issuance of corporate bond of RMB1,150,000,000 (31
December 2011: RMB1,150,000,000), the Group had
no material external guarantee.
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LATEST INFORMATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
RABRARRLMEEZERR

A 7

As of 30 June 2012, there was a total issued share capital ARAFR-ZT——FXA=+BHHDBEITIRAK

of 2,027,960,000 shares of the Company (the “Shares”)

which include:

£2,027,960,0000% B 1 - E A 3E -

Approximate

Number of percentages

Shares of share capital

BB BRABLE 5t

Domestic Shares N E % 649,205,700 32.01%
Non-H Foreign Shares FEHRRINE AR 357,998,300 17.65%
H Shares HA% 1,020,756,000 50.34%

2,027,960,000 100%

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’

INTERESTS IN SHARES

So far as is known to any directors of the Company, as of AABKR_-Z
30 June 2012, the following parties (other than the directors
or chief executives of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more

of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the

TERREHFRENR

——HFRA=TH BREMES
PRl TOIAL (UFARBZEZTLSRE
B AB)RARB R RAARE Bt & A AR
EEFMERIIXVEF2 %30 MBS AN QA
ZREHEIORA  RERIMEFAWNEEAN T
RERBER TERRBRRARE LIRE 2 EMA
BRI AR Z EE10%3 BA £+ ¢

Company:
Approximate percentages Approximate percentages
in relevant class of shares (%) in total issued share capital (%)
EHERERR G ZBLHE 2L (%) HEHBRTREZEHE R L(%)
Number
of Shares
directly and Class of Direct Indirect Aggregate Direct Indirect Aggregate
Name of shareholders indirectly held Shares interests interests interests interests interests interests
ERREE
BRAE BEZBRBEE  BHER ERER BiEEs EEaY BERER BiEER BEay
Capital Group 924,441,900 Non-listed Shares 30.88 60.90 91.78 15.34 30.25 45,58
IREHEERBERAA FLmiki (long position)  (long position) (long position)  (long position)
(F8) (F8) (f2) (fF8)
32,436,000 H Shares - 322 322 - 1.60 1.60
Hi (long position) (long position)
(F8) (fFg)
Beijing Sunshine Real Estate 322,654,8002  Non-listed Shares 4.7 27.33 32.04 2.34 13.57 15.91
Comprehensive Development F LTk (long position)  (long position) (long position)  (long position)
Company (fF2) (fF8) (fF8) (F8)
ERBEXEHEGARE AR 324360007 H Shares - 322 3.22 - 1,60 1.60
Hi (long position) (long position)
(F8) (fF8)
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Approximate percentages Approximate percentages
in relevant class of shares (%) in total issued share capital (%)
EERERR B ZBAE 5L (%) E2HERTRAZBELHEN (%)
Number
of Shares
directly and Class of Direct Indirect Aggregate Direct Indirect Aggregate
Name of shareholders indirectly held Shares interests interests interests interests interests interests
BERREE
REAE BEZRBEE  RHER BERER BiE#R EEAY ER:3 30 R & BEAY
Beijing Capital Sunshine Real ~ 275,236,200¢  Non-listed Shares - 27.33 27.33 - 13.67 13.67
Estate Development Co., EG) (long position) (long position)
Ltd. (#8) (1F8)
EREEGAELE 32,436,000  H Shares - 322 3.22 - 1,60 1.60
BREMLAF HR& (long position) (long position)
(fF8) (f78)
Beijing Capital Technology 172,006,700 Non-listed Shares 17.08 - 17.08 8.48 - 8.48
Investment Ltd. ) (long position) (long position)
LTREEMBEREBRAA (fF2) (48)
Beijing Shou Chuang Jian She 118,747,600 Non-listed Shares 11.79 - 11.79 5.86 - 5.86
Co., Ltd. ) (long position) (long position)
TREEREZERAF (fF2) (42)
China Resource Products 275,236,200 Non-listed Shares 27.33 - 27.33 13.67 - 13.67
Limited ) (long position) (long position)
FENERRDA (fF2) (42)
32,436,000 H Shares 3.22 - 3.22 1.60 - 1.60
HE (long position) (long position)
(F8) (F8)
Yieldwell International 82,762,100 Non-listed Shares 8.22 - 8.22 4.08 - 4,08
Enterprise Limited EG) (long position) (long position)
RERRPEBERAR (F8) (f8)
Fexi Holdings Limited 82,762,100%  Non-listed Shares - 8.22 8.22 - 4,08 4,08
EG) (long position) (long position)
(#8) (fF8)
Brocade City Holdings Limited 82,762,1009  Non-listed Shares - 8.22 8.22 - 4,08 4,08
WHEREBR AT E il ) (long position) (long position)
(#8) (fF8)
Ngai Shu Susanna 82,762,1009  Non-listed Shares - 8.22 8.22 - 4,08 4,08
HAr EAa G (long position) (long position)
(#8) (fF8)
Reco Pearl Private Limited 165,070,000 H Shares 16.17 - 16.17 8.14 - 8.14
HE (long position) (long position)
(F8) (F8)
Recosia China Pte Ltd. 165,070,000”  H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 8.14 8.14
HE (long position) (long position)
(#8) (fF8)
Recosia Pte Ltd. 165,070,0009  H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 8.14 8.14
HE (long position) (long position)
(#8) (fF8)
Government of Singapore 165,070,000¢  H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 8.14 8.14
Investment Corporation HE (long position) (long position)
(Realty) Pte Ltd. (fF8) (fF8)
Templeton Asset Management 81,496,000 H Shares 7.98 - 7.98 4.02 - 4,02
Ltd HE (long position) (long position)
(F8) (F8)
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LATEST INFORMATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

Notes:

1. Of these 924,441,900 Shares, 311,032,800 Shares are directly
held by Capital Group, the remaining 613,409,100 Shares
are deemed corporate interests under the SFO indirectly
held through Beijing Sunshine Real Estate Comprehensive
Development Company, Beijing Capital Technology Investment
Ltd., Beijing Shou Chuang Jian She Co., Ltd. and China
Resource Products Limited. 32,436,000 H Shares are deemed
corporate interests under the SFO indirectly held through China
Resource Products Limited.

2. Of these 322,654,800 Shares, 47,418,600 Shares are
directly held by Beijing Sunshine Real Estate Comprehensive
Development Company, the remaining 275,236,200 Shares
are deemed corporate interests under the SFO indirectly
held through China Resource Products Limited. 32,436,000
H Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO
indirectly held through China Resource Products Limited.

3. 275,236,200 non-listed Shares and 32,436,000 H Shares
are deemed corporate interests under the SFO indirectly held
through China Resource Products Limited.

4. 82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the
SFO indirectly held through Yieldwell International Enterprise
Limited.

5. 82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the
SFO indirectly held through Yieldwell International Enterprise
Limited and Fexi Holdings Limited.

6. 82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the
SFO indirectly held through Yieldwell International Enterprise
Limited, Fexi Holdings Limited and Brocade City Holdings
Limited.

7. 165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the
SFO indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited.

8. 165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests under
the SFO indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited and
Recosia China Pte Ltd.

9. 165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the
SFO indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited, Recosia
China Pte Ltd. and Recosia Pte Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the
Directors, as of 30 June 2012, none of the parties (other
than the directors or chief executives of the Company) had
any interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO.
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INTERIM REPORT 2012

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

As at 30 June 2012, none of the directors, supervisors and
chief executives of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company or the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers. None of the directors,
supervisors and chief executives of the Company or their
spouses or children under 18 years of age had any rights to
subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company or
had exercised any such rights during the period.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, the changes in information of directors of
the Company subsequent to the date of the 2011 Annual
Report is set out below:

Mr. Liu Xiaoguang, chairman and executive director of the
Company has resigned as the chairman and remains as an
executive director of China Development Bank International
Investment Limited (formerly known as New Capital
International Investment Limited) (Stock Code: 1062) on
March 2012.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed auditing, internal control and financial report
matters including the review of the unaudited interim report
for the six months ended 30 June 2012.

Purchase, Sales or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the six months ended 30 June 2012, the Company
had not redeemed any of its shares. Neither the Company

nor any of its subsidiaries purchased or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities during the period.
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Long Term Incentive Fund Scheme

On 27 September 2007, the Company had adopted the
long term incentive fund scheme (the “Scheme”) which
was subsequently amended on 25 September 2009.
The Scheme is proposed to encourage the directors,
supervisors, senior management and core staff members
of the Company for closer ties of their personal interests
with the interests of the Company and of the shareholders,
as well as for alignment of their personal goals with the
common goal of the Company.

As at 30 June 2012, the Company had through the trustee
purchased 20,000,000 H shares, representing 1.96% of
H shares and 0.99% of the entire issued share capital of
the Company. Up to the date of this report, the shares
purchased have been held in trust by the trustee.

Corporate Governance

During the period from 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012
and from 1 April 2012 to 30 June 2012, the Company has
complied respectively with all the code provisions of the
“Code on Corporate Governance Practices” and “Corporate
Governance Code”,as set out in Appendix 14 to the “Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited” (the “Listing Rules”).

Compliance with the Code for Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted a code which is on terms no
less exacting than the required standard set out in the
“Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules.

All directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by
the Company that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and the company
code throughout the period.
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BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2012

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
EHRAFDEERER

As at 30 June 2012 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)
ZE——FNA=ZTH(BRERIZEN) 2B ERBARKETFT)

Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
FREE &3y REBER e
-2 —T——% C"F-Zf§ C"T——%&
~AZ+B tZRA=t—-H ~NB=+tH tZA=1-H
Note Consolidated ~ Consolidated Company Company
i3 &t =i NG AR
Current assets REEE
Cash at bank and on hand EMES 5(1) 9,159,089 8,352,243 1,148,242 1,366,081
Accounts receivable G 5(2)(a) 73,123 139,987 160 160
Advances to suppliers BITHE 5(3) 211,468 231,596 16,746 11,100
Dividends receivable E U B 5(4) 71,082 71,082 12,400 12,400
Other receivables Hth KR 5{2)(0) 983,024 769,031 13,568,915 13,827,716
Inventories =& 5(5) 23,356,689 22,568,908 44,076 44,076
Other current assets A B EE 5(6) 935,343 811,378 - -
Total current assets RBEEA 34,789,768 32,944,175 14,790,539 15,261,533
Non-current assets ERBEE
Available-for-sale At HESREE
financial assets 5(7) 138,027 112,480 99,065 73,961
Long-term receivables = HfE MR 5(12) 687,153 824,167 440,981 404,597
Long-term equity investments RERELRE 5(8) 1,615,231 1,627,197 2,926,056 2,811,874
Investment properties REERE 50) 3,143,877 1,296,468 1,906 1,958
Fixed assets EEEE 5(10) 482,955 500,916 69,515 71,295
Intangible assets BYEE 5(11) 42,174 42,697 - -
Long-term prepaid expenses REGEER 1,188 1,335 - -
Deferred tax assets BEMEHEAE 5(25)(c) 255,306 188,913 41,853 40,986
Other non-current assets HEthEReEE 5(13) 172,770 172,770 - =
Total non-current assets FRBEERH 6,538,681 4,766,943 3,579,376 3,404,671
TOTAL ASSETS BEG 41,328,449 37,711,118 18,369,915 18,666,204
Current liabilities TEERE
Short-term borrowings BHER 5(15) 1,370,000 1,260,000 - -
Accounts payable JE 5 BR3R 5(16) 2,588,261 2,813,588 10,783 10,783
Advances from customers UG 5(17) 8,288,451 7,768,754 807 1,625
Employee benefits payable JE B T M 5(18) 71,773 121,355 39,428 89,344
Taxes payable EXHE 5(19) 1,897,533 1,740,933 47,231 40,914
Interest payable FERFIS 100,145 132,724 56,886 24,144
Dividends payable & £ R 1 5(20) 553,259 884,747 187,870 64,521
Other payables HthfEf R 5(21) 2,126,104 2,901,950 8,208,520 8,642,050
Current portion of —EREHR
non-current liabilities FEREEE 5(22) 3,918,680 3,581,522 1,003,000 1,502,000
Total current liability RBaEA 20,914,206 21,205,573 9,554,525 10,375,381
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
EHRARNEEAER

As at 30 June 2012 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

ZF-—FEXNAZFH (BERFEN 2BEEMBARE L)

Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
KEE &) KEE &

“g--¢ —"EF——F F-Zf C"EF——f%
A~AZ+R tZA=t—H ~AZ+H tZA=t—-H

Note Consolidated ~ Consolidated Company Company
()23 & =i NG AF]
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Long-term borrowings REBER 5(29) 10,025,898 5,999,287 2,529,000 1,678,000
Debentures payable ERESR 5(24) 2,137,901 2,134,974 993,282 991,872
Deferred tax liabilties ERMEHAR 5(25)(c) 123,867 143,050 6,276 -
Total non-current liabilities ERBaEas 12,287,666 8,277,311 3,528,558 2,669,872
Total liabilities BEA 33,201,872 29,482,884 13,083,083 13,045,253
Owners’ equity BRER
Paid-in capital A 5(26) 2,027,960 2,027,960 2,027,960 2,027,960
Capital surplus BADNE 5(27) 946,391 1,081,696 1,322,693 1,303,865
Surplus reserve RHBAE 5(28) 330,231 330,281 330,231 330,231
Undistriouted profits RO B 5(29) 2,353,760 2,224,879 1,605,948 1,958,895
Difference on translation of INERRITEZTE
foreign currency
financial statements (5,958) 2,638 - -
Total equity attributable BERNSARARRER A
to equity holders of
the Company 5,652,384 5,667,404 5,286,832 5,620,951
Non-controlling interest DERRE R 2,474,193 2,560,830 - =
Total owners’ equity REEZER 8,126,577 8,228,234 5,286,832 5,620,951
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND BERBRESEH
OWNERS’ EQUITY 41,328,449 37,711,118 18,369,915 18,666,204

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these EMI M IEHRERM T AT ERROAKID -
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS
B R QFRExR

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)
B2 —F——FENH=FHiNEAEE (BT H) 25 ELRARETFT)

Unaudited Unaudited
REEF REER
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2012 2011 2012 2011
BEZF-"f HE-T 5 HE_F-Zf HE T %
~H=1+H ~NAZTH ~A=+H ~NA=Z1H
LAEAME  WENERSE EAEAHE  EAEALE
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
ltem EHE Mz &t =i A7 AR
Revenue FELION 5(30) 11(3) 3,484,843 1,657,787 107,643 123,457
Less: Cost of sales o EERA 5(30)* 11(3) (1,949,626) (670,749) (52) -
Taxes and surcharges BER S RHM 5(31) (469,031) (352,373) (14,953) (17,124)
Selling and distribution HEER
expenses (115,020) (68,647) - -
General and administrative EEER
expenses (122,581) (113,856) (47,743) (68,540)
Financial expenses - net MBER-—F8 5(32) 5,608 28,554 10,225 56,352
Asset impairment losses BERNERE 5(33) (14,240) - (10,240) -
Add: Investment income/(loss)  f7: ZEKE/ (BE) 5(34) 11(4) 38,352 23,931 (274) 67,346
Including: Share of profit/ Hi:HEEhER
(loss) of associates and BERENRE
joint ventures W/ (EE) 6,508 23,931 (1,263) 7,686
Operating profit BEFHE 858,305 504,647 44,606 161,491
Ad: Non-operating income T EEINEA 1,313 10,572 - 10,000
Less: Non-operating expenses i - 2L H (1,614) (1,291) (803) (200)
Including: Losses on He B AE
disposal of non-current REBX
assets (5) 2 - -
Total profit Gilp Rk 858,004 513,928 43,803 171,291
Less: Income tax expenses - EHER 5(36) (239,777) (150,897) (11,438) (37,361)
Net profit b 618,227 363,031 32,365 133,930
Attrioutable to equity holders of BRI AR FFFIE
the Company 514,193 307,513 32,365 133,930
Non-controlling interest PERRER 104,034 55,518 - -
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS
BHRATFER

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stateqd)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

Unaudited Unaudited
FREEH REE
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2012 2011 2012 2011
HE-F-—% HE_T——F HEIE-“f HE_T——F
~A=+H ~NA=TH ~A=Zt+H ~NAZTH
EAERHE  EAEAEE  EAEASE  EAEAHH
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item 5H (i3 A A NG AF]
Earnings per share for profit B\ (ETHE
attributable to the equity RBAREERRER
holders of the Company AHEFE) 5(37)
- Basic earnings per share EASREE (ARET)
(RMB yuan) 0.25 0.15 N/A 7 & F N/A 7@ A
- Diluted earnings per share BEERYE (ARBT)
(RMB yuan) 0.25 0.15 N/A 7 & F N/A 7@ A
Other comprehensive Al (B1R)
income/(loss) 5(38) 10,564 (32,227) 18,828 (25,151)
Total comprehensive income &S5 KHAE 628,791 330,804 51,193 108,779
Attributable to equity holders of ~ SFEBREAAIRRHA
the Company GeakELR 524,757 275,286 N/A REH N/A 7@ A
Non-controlling interest FERVHBRRN
GFalEas 104,034 55,518 N/A R R N/A T iE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

INTERIM REPORT 2012

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
BHRAFARERER

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

B2 —F——FNA=1HINEABRE (BRI BS) 2 EE M BARETFT)
Unaudited Unaudited
FREE FREE
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2012 2011 2012 2011
HEZS-"f BE-T—F HEIF-Zf HE_Z——F
~H=Z+H NA=TH ~B=+H ~NA=ZtH
EABAME  EAEASE ExERAHE L NEABH
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item EH (i3 & =i A7 AR
Cash flows from operating BEEHELENRERE
activities
Cash received from sales of HEHm RIEEH
goods or rendering of services WEIRRE 4,082,256 3,144,579 106,825 123,457
Cash received relating to other ~ WEIE i REEET)
operating activities EEHRS 36,719 119,253 486,587 1,470,832
Sub-total of cash inflows BEFHREMN MDA 4,118,975 3,263,832 593,412 1,594,289
Cash paid for goods and services BEEmM  EX LK
TREHEE (4,008,582) (2,855,075) - (4,905)
Cash paid to and on behalf of IRNGBINRABRT
employees TRNRE (193,834) (207,097) (77,172) (130,614)
Payments of taxes and INNBERE
surcharges (750,435) (792,519 (37,416) (13,680)
Cash paid relating to other TRHEMEALEED
operating activities HBENRE (730,714) (338,219) (455,406) (2,180,926)
Sub-total of cash outflows BEFHRET L 5t (5,683,565) (4,192,910 (569,994) (2,330,125)
Net cash flows from BEZHELNRE
operating activities REIE 5(39)(@) (1,564,590) (929,078) 23,418 (735,836)
Cash flows from investing REFHELNRETE
activities
Cash received from disposal of KRR BEREWEIHE &
investments 106,544 - 11,044 -
Cash received from returns MG E W lEImE S
on investments - 19,732 - 1,960
Net cash received from disposal R EETEE  BFEEM
of fixed assets, intangible HRBEEKEMH
assets and other long-term BeFs
assets - 231 - -
Cash received relating to WE At R EES
other investing activities BENE S 104,500 - - -
Sub-total of cash inflows REFDREFNNG 211,044 19,963 11,044 1,960
Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, EEETEE B EERN
intangible assets and other At RMEES
long-term assets Be (196,430) (211,892) (755) (1,937)
Cash paid to acquire investments % & X HHE & (42,000) (108,800) (125,500) -
Net cash paid to acquire SFRRYAREEFE
subsidiaries - (77,214) - -
Cash paid relating to other TREMEREED
investing activities HENRE (765,523) (127,500) (25,884) -
Sub-total of cash outflows REFDHREF L NG (1,003,953) (520,406) (152,139) (1,937)
Net cash flows from REFHELENRSE
investing activities mERHE (792,909) (500,443) (141,095) 23
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
BHRARDBETRER

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stateqd)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

Unaudited Unaudited
REE REEH
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2012 2011 2012 2011
BEZF-"f HE-T % HEF-Zf HE T —F
~A=+H ~NAZTH ~A=+H ~A=tH
LREABE  WEASERASE EAEASEE  EASEALE
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item HH ()23 L =i YA A
Cash flows from financing EEFHELENRERE
activities
Cash received from capital RUEREREME S
contributions 147,000 2,000 - -
Including: Cash received from H: FRAIRI D
capital contributions by REREWZNES
non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries 147,000 2,000 - -
Cash received from borrowings ~ BVSEFKEINE £ 6,443,256 1,817,270 854,000 30,000
Cash received from issuance of ~ EfTEHKEINE S
debentures - 1,141,229 - -
Sub-total of cash inflows SEFHHREFNNG 6,590,256 2,960,499 854,000 30,000
Cash repayments of borowings ~ BEEBXFRRE (1,969,487) (338,880) (502,000) -
Cash payments for interest AERF] FE AN
expenses and distribution of FEXIRERE
dividends and profits (1,365,907) (665,133) (350,116) (306,055)
Cash paid for purchase share BETOARLERR
in subsidiaries from non- REZ[TRRE
controlling shareholders (340,547) (473,046) - (369,500)
Sub-total of cash outflows SEFRRESTH A (3,675,941) (1,477,059) (852,116) (675,555)
Net cash flows from SEFRELNAS
financing activities REFHE 2,914,315 1,483,440 1,884 (645,555)
Effect of foreign exchange rate EZZHHELHHE
changes on cash and cash
equivalents 3,078 (3,578) (2,046) 1,443
Net increase/(decrease) in cash R&FEM,/ (HY)FHE 5(39)(b) 559,894 50,341 (117,839) (1,379,925)
Adl: Cash at beginning of period /7 E¥3R & 58 5(39)(0) 7,974,900 8,429,444 1,266,081 2,795,108
Cash at end of period HARE EHE 5(39)(0) 8,534,794 8,479,785 1,148,242 1,415,183

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2012

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS’ EQUITY

BHRREZSH X

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)
B2 —F——FENH=FHiNEAEE (BT H) 25 ELRARETFT)

Unaudited
FEBE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BERBAAIRRRSE
Difference on
translation of
foreign
currency Total
Paid-in Capital Surplus  Undistributed financial Minority owners’
Note capital surplus reserves profits  statements interest equity
Item EH i3 SMERK DEBR EL 5
B Y. BHOAE  RPENE HEER B EEl
Balance at 1 January 2011 ZF-—5-A-RE08E 2,027,960 1,233,985 146,034 1,819,047 (661) 2,403,581 7,629,946
Movement for the six months ended ~ #Z=F——%7xB=1HLE
30 June 2011 ~NERHEEEHEDE = (74,018) = (67,520) (7,076) 5,629 (132,985)
Net profit e - - - 307,513 - 55,518 363,031
Other comprehensive loss Eirame 5(38) - (25,151) - - (7,076) - (32,227)
Capital contribution and withdrawal RERARRSER
by owners, including Hep:
Capital contribution by equity owners REFZAER - - - - - 2,000 2,000
Others H 5027) - (48,867) - - - (51,889) 100,756)
Profit distribution to equity owners HEFEHHE 5(29) - - - (365,033) - = (365,033)
Balance at 30 June 2011 —¥--%£7A=tH
HABE 2,027,960 1,159,967 146,034 1,761,527 (7,737) 2,409,210 7,496,961
Balance at 1 January 2012 Z5-ZE5-A-RHVGE 2,027,960 1,081,696 330,231 2,224,879 2,638 2,560,830 8,228,234
Movement for the six months ended ~ #Z-F—-Z&xB=1HL
30 June 2012 ABAYEEEEHE - (135,308 - 128,881 (8,59 (86,637) (101,657)
Net profit 5B - - - 514,193 - 104,034 618227
QOther comprehensive income/(loss) Ethiaks/ (B8) 5(38) - 19,160 - - (8,596) - 10,564
Capital contribution and withdrawal BREAMBDER
by owners, including He:
Capital contribution by equity owners [ESIN-T - - - - = 147,000 147,000
Others Ei 5027) - (154,465) - - - (337,671) 492,136)
Profit distribution to equity owners HRENAE 5(29) - - - (385,312) - - (385,312)
Balance at 30 June 2012 Z¥-Z4£7B=tH
HRBE 2,027,960 946,301 330231 2,353,760 (5,958 2474193 8126577

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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BRIBXEBRDERRT

TR RS

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS’ EQUITY
NRRRERSH R

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)
B Z—F——FENAZ1HIE R (BRI 28 E B ARKEFT)

Unaudited
FEEH
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BERBAARRER
Total
Paid-in Capital Surplus  Undistributed owners’
Note capital surplus reserves profits equity
ET 5o
ltem EH MizE BA EEUN | BEAK FAEFE Ch
Balance at 1 January 2011 —5——-%-f-H
HaERE 2,027,960 1,353,372 146,034 666,154 4,193,520
Movement for the six months BEZF——-%£7"A=+H
ended 30 June 2011 trERNEEHEHE - (25,151) - (231,103) (256,254)
Net profit EgilhE = = = 133,930 133,930
Other comprehensive loss EhGeBR - (25,151) - - (25,151)
Profit distribution to equity owners ~ $RRMHE 5(29) - - - (365,033) (365,033)
Balance at 30 June 2011 —5-—§¥xA=+H
HRBE 2,027,960 1,328,221 146,034 435,051 3,937,266
Balance at 1 January 2012 —%-"5-8-H
nnsE 2,027,960 1,303,865 330,231 1,958,895 5,620,951
Movement for the six months BE-F-"#XxA=+H
ended 30 June 2012 ERBEAEEREDE - 18,828 - (352,947) (334,119)
Net profit FHE - - - 32,365 32,365
Other comprehensive income At a e - 18,828 - = 18,828
Profit distribution to equity owners ~ $IREM A& 5(29) - - - (385,312) (385,312)
Balance at 30 June 2012 Z5-ZExA=tH
MR HE 2,027,960 1,322,693 330,231 1,605,948 5,286,832

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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BEING

CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ¥R AR Y aE

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEr—F

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Capital Land Ltd. (the “Company”)
was established by seven companies on 23
July 2002, namely Beijing Capital Group Ltd.
(“Capital Group”), Beijing Sunshine Real Estate
Comprehensive Development Company (“‘Sunshine
Comprehensive”), Beijing Capital Sunshine Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Capital Sunshine”),
Beijing Capital Technology Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Capital Technology”), Beijing Capital Hangyu
Economic Development Co., Ltd. (change to “Beijing
Capital Development Co., Ltd.” afterwards, “Capital
Development”), China Resource Products Limited
(“China Resource”) and Yieldwell International
Enterprise Limited (“Yieldwell International”) (“the
promoters”).

The Company was registered on 5 December
2002 in Beijing with total share capital of
RMB1,100,000,000 at RMB1 per share. The
Company issued 513,300,000 shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(*H-shares”) in June 2003. And 51,330,000 shares
were transferred to public by some promoters from
state-owned shares and state-owned entities shares.

On 27 January 2005, the Company placing
112,926,000 H-shares (RMB1 per share), of which,
102,660,000 shares were newly issued, and
10,266,000 shares were transferred to public by
some promoters from state-owned shares and state-
owned entities shares.

On 26 October 2006, the Company placing
343,200,000 H-shares (RMB1 per share), of which,
312,000,000 shares were newly issued, and
31,200,000 shares were transferred to public by
some promoters from state-owned shares and state-
owned entities shares.
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BRIBXEBRODAERRAR —T— —FhHHRE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS SRR A

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

On 30 December 2008, Capital Sunshine, one of the
Company’s promoters, disposed 14.11% share of
the Company to Capital Group. After the transaction,
Capital Group directly holds 15.34% interests of the
Company.

The parent company and the ultimate parent
company of the Company is Capital Group.

The company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the real estate development
and investment, hotel operation and property
consulting services and investment holding, in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

These interim financial statements were approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 20 August 2012.
The interim financial statements were unaudited.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES

(1). Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the
Basis Standard and 38 specific standards
of the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance
on 15 February 2006, and the Application
Guidance for Accounting Standard for
Business Enterprises, interpretations
of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises and other relevant regulations
issued thereafter (herein collectively referred
to as “the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises” or “CAS”).
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BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P RS R AR M A

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

r—F—

2.

ZENA = H IR (BRI 2 FEBARETFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(2).

(3).

(4).

(5).

Statement of compliance with the
Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises

The interim financial statements of the
Company for the six months ended 30
June 2012 truly and completely present the
financial position as of 30 June 2012 and
the operating results, cash flows and other
information for the six months then ended of
the Group and the Company in compliance
with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises.

Accounting year

The accounting year starts on 1 January and
ends on 31 December.

Recording currency

The recording currency is Renminbi (RMB).

Business combinations

(a) Business combinations involving
enterprises under common control

The consideration paid and net assets
obtained by the absorbing party in a
business combination are measured
at the carrying amount. The difference
between the carrying amount of the
net assets obtained and the carrying
amount of the consideration paid for the
combination is treated as an adjustment
to capital surplus (capital premium). If
the capital surplus (capital premium) is
not sufficient to absorb the difference,
the remaining balance is adjusted
against retained earnings.

Costs directly attributable to the
combination are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

42

X3 BEEal HEE

(%)

(2).

(3).

(4).

(5).

ARG —E——FXA=Z+HH
BRHRAFTALESHENNE
¥ HE wmEMRERTARAT
TE-—_FEXNAZTENAHER
A BERAARBE T ——F
ANAZTHIEAREABENEG G
RARKERRNRERESH

BER-

EEE
eHFEAAE—A—ARE
+=—A=+—Hl-

S
FERALE AR -

ExREH
(@ R—EZHTHEREH

BHITXNOAHHE
EEBGEHFEEDRK
HEEFE-AHTIE
R EEREEERE M
e EREEENZE
BOoHBEARTE (KA
HE)  BARRE (RAE
B) MR IARRE - AR
7 U af o

RETEEAHEENE
EEEERRELERGA



BRIBXEBROAERRAR —T— —FhHHRE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS AR A

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BRHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. FTEgsTHRMEsHEE
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (%)

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(5). Business combinations (Continuead) (5). ttEEH (£)

(b)

Business combinations involving
enterprises not under common
control

The cost of combination and identifiable
net assets obtained by the acquirer in a
business combination are measured at
fair value at the acquisition date. Where
the cost of the combination exceeds
the acquirer’s interest in the fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets,
the difference is recognised as goodwill;
where the cost of combination is lower
than the acquirer’s interest in the fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets, the difference is recognised in
profit or loss for the current period.

For a business combination achieved
in stages on the separate financial
statements, the initial cost shall be
the summation of the book value of
the previously held interest before the
acquisition date and the additional
investment cost at the acquisition
date. On the consolidated financial
statements, the previously held interest
is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date and the a gain or loss
is recognised in the income statement.
When control is obtained, reserves held
in equity that related to the previously
held interest would be recycled
through profit and loss. The excess
of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition
date fair value of any previous equity
in the acquiree, over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill.
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BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P RS R AR M A

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
BE—F—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

2.

(5).

(6).

ZENA=FHIENEA R (B EREEN

Business combinations (Continued)

(b) Business combinations involving
enterprises not under common
control (Continued)

Costs directly attributable to the
combination are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Purchase shares in subsidiaries
from non-controlling shareholders
and partial disposal of interest in a
subsidiary without loss of control

The transaction with non-controlling interest
to partially or wholly acquire interests in a
subsidiary after obtaining the control rights
over the subsidiary, the assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary are measured consistently
following their value at the acquisition or
merger date in the consolidated financial
statements. The difference between additions
in long-term investment due to the interest
purchase and additions of shared net assets
of the subsidiary calculated by the additional
share proportion, should be recorded in
capital surplus (share premium). In case
share premium is not sufficient to offset
the difference, retained earnings should be
adjusted.

The transaction with non-controlling interest
to dispose interests in a subsidiary without
losing control rights over the subsidiary,
the difference between the proceeds from
disposal of interests and the decrease of the
shared net assets of the subsidiary is adjusted
to capital surplus (share premium). In case
share premium is not sufficient to offset the
difference, retained earnings will be adjusted.
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BRIBERGERAR —T——FhHRE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 SRR MY RE

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BRHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(7).

Preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements
comprise the financial statements of the
Company and all of its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control and are de-
consolidated from the date that such control
ceases. For a subsidiary that is acquired in
a business combination involving enterprises
under common control, it is included in the
consolidated financial statements from the
date when it, together with the Company,
comes under common control of the ultimate
controlling party. The portion of the net
profits realised before the combination date
is presented separately in the consolidated
income statement.

In preparing the consolidated financial
statements, where the accounting policies
and the accounting periods are inconsistent
between the Company and subsidiaries,
the financial statements of subsidiaries are
adjusted in accordance with the accounting
policies and accounting period of the
Company. For subsidiaries acquired from a
business combination involving enterprises not
under common control, the individual financial
statements of the subsidiaries are adjusted
based on the fair value of the identifiable net
assets at the acquisition date.

All significant inter-group balances,
transactions and unrealised profits are
eliminated in the consolidated financial
statements. The portion of a subsidiary’s
equity and the portion of a subsidiary’s
net profits and losses for the period not
attributable to Company are recognised
as non-controlling interests and presented
separately in the consolidated financial
statements within equity and net profits
respectively.
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BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P RS MR M A

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
BE_—F—

2.

ZENA= A H IR (P 2 FEBARETFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(8).

(9)-

Cash

Cash comprise cash on hand and call
deposits with banks.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into RMB using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

At the balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into RMB using the spot
exchange rates on the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising
from these translations are recognised
in profit or loss for the current period,
except for those attributable to foreign
currency borrowings that have been
taken out specifically for the acquisition
or construction of qualifying assets,
which are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Nonmonetary items
denominated in foreign currencies that
are measured at historical costs are
translated at the balance sheet date
using the spot exchange rates at the
date of the transactions. The effect
of exchange rate changes on cash is
presented separately in the cash flow
statement.
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BRIBXEBRODAERRAR —T— —FhHHRE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br RS SRR A

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. FTEgsTHRMEsHEE

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (%)

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(9). Foreign currency translation (9). hEEIE (£)

(Continueq)
(b)  Translation of foreign currency (b) IIEHBHRRWFE

financial statements
The asset and liability items in the BIMEENEERBERF
balance sheets for overseas operations MEEMBEIEER #4A
are translated at the spot exchange EEBEXRBMAEESR
rates on the balance sheet date. Among e BREEZFBRKRD
the owners’ equity items, the items EEFEIEE SN EfIE B
other than “undistributed profits” are KA AERNBIHAE RS
translated at the spot exchange rates BomiNEEamFEERA
of the transaction dates. The income WK ABEZERIER KA
and expense items in the income RS54 AR B HAME K47
statements of overseas operations are Ho Pl ifHE £/ INE
translated at the spot exchange rates of WETBEZH TEE
the transaction dates. The differences P LAEEIEBSTR
arising from the above translation are RIIKENHE S REE
presented separately in the owners’ BE-HARERERLER
equity. The cash flows of overseas R B BR [ 2 47 & o [ R &
operations are translated at the spot BB eMNTER TR
exchange rates on the dates of the ERERFPEFIR-

cash flows. The effect of exchange
rate changes on cash is presented
separately in the cash flow statement.
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BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

INTERIM REPORT 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR MR

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BFFZE) 2BEBARETT)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(10). Financial instruments

(a) Financial assets

(i)

Classification of financial
assets

Financial assets are classified
into the following categories
at initial recognition: financial
assets at fair value through pro
fit or loss, receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets and
held-to-maturity investments.
The classification of financial
assets depends on the Group’s
intention and ability to hold the
financial assets. The financial
assets of the Group are majorly
comprised of receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets.

Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivative financial assets
that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any
of the other categories at initial
recognition, except for impairment
losses and foreign exchange
gains and losses arising from
translation of monetary financial
assets. Available-for-sale financial
assets are included in other
current assets on the balance
sheet if management intends to
dispose of them within 12 months
of the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br RS AR M A

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFIEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FTESFBURME A
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (#&)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(10). €T & (&)

(a) Financial assets (Continued) (@ &EmMEEE)

(10). Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Recognition and
measurement

Financial assets are recognised
at fair value on the balance sheet
when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions
of the financial instrument,
transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets are
included in their initial recognition
amounts.

Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently measured at
fair value, and they are measured
at cost when they do not have a
quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured.
Receivables are measured
at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gain or loss arising from
change in fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets is
recognised directly in equity,
except for impairment losses
and foreign exchange gains and
losses arising from translation
of monetary financial assets.
When such financial assets are
derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised
directly into equity is recycled
into profit or loss for the current
period.
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B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BFFZE) 2BEBARETT)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(10). Financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses the carrying
amounts of financial assets other
than those at fair value through
profit or loss at each balance
sheet date. If there is objective
evidence that a financial asset
is impaired, the Group shall
determine the amount of
impairment loss.

When an impairment loss on
a financial asset carried at
amortised cost has occurred,
the amount of loss is measured
at the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of its estimated
future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have
not been incurred). If there is
objective evidence that the
value of the financial asset
recovered and the recovery is
related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is
reversed and the amount of
reversal is recognised in profit or
loss.
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FTESFBURMEE A
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (#&)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(10). Financial instruments (Continued) (10). €8t T H (&)

(a) Financial assets (Continued) (@) E@BEEFE)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets (i) =MEERME
(Continued) (%)
In the case of a significant or EERBERELHA
prolonged decline in the fair AtHESmEE
value of an available-for-sale AR EBEEER

financial asset, the cumulative
loss arising from the decline

B REZTAM
BEREANEQR

in fair value that had been BETEREKHER
recognised directly in equity A TUAE I
is removed from equity and FFARERERL - HE
recognised in impairment MR EBKHA

loss. For an investment in an
equity instrument classified

HhEEDET AR
B HREEREEL

as available-for-sale on which FAEEFTARKRRE
impairment losses have been e
recognised, the increase in its fair
value in a subsequent period is
recognised in equity directly.
(ivy Derecognition of financial (ivy SREEMNKRILRE
assets B
A financial asset is derecognised cREEmT T

when any of the below criteria
is met: (i) the contractual rights

iz —H > TLAR
1 FERR (1)U B

to receive the cash flows from TREERERE
the financial asset expire; (i) KA [E) 4 ) 42 1E
the financial asset has been QZemEEDE
transferred and the Group % BXREE#ESR
transfers substantially all the risks EEMmMBRELEAET

and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset to the transferee;
or (iii) the financial asset has
been transferred and the Group
has not retained control of the

P 7B B 2 B A0 R B
BREEAT HE
RZeMEEDH
% BANKERDR
BEBHLERE

financial asset, although the CRIEEMARE L
Group neither transfers nor & AT A &9 & B A0

retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset.
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BHE—F—

2.

ZENA= A H IR (P 2 FEBARETFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(10). Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Derecognition of financial

assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the
carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and
the cumulative changes in fair
value that had been recognised
directly in equity, is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into
financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. The Group’s financial
liabilities are majorly comprised of other
financial liabilities, including payables,
borrowings and debentures payable.

Payables include accounts payables
and other payables which are initially
recognised at fair value and recorded at
amortised cost using effective interest
rate in subsequent measurement.

Borrowings and debentures payable
are initially recognised at fair value
less trading expenses and recorded at
amortised cost using effective interest
rate in subsequent measurement.
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FTESFBURMEE A
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (#&)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(10). Financial instruments (Continued) (10). €8t T H (&)

(b)

(c)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Other financial liabilities with repayment
period within 1 year (including 1 year)
are stated as current liabilities; other
financial liabilities with repayment period
over 1 year but repayment date within
1 year from balance sheet date are
stated as current portion of non-current
liabilities; others are stated as non-
current liabilities.

When the present liabilities of financial
liability have been entirely or partially
released, the financial liability or
released part of financial liability should

(b)

ERaE (&)

HiteMABEHNRE—F
AT (E—F)8 JIRE
MBERE HRE—FN
tEEEEABRE—F
A (& —F)2Hr - JR
R—FRIBMNERDE
B HRITRIFERD A

EEEO

EeREENRERERE
BB B ) MR BR B - 4% AL TR
REZTMABEXEFCHE
B H)ER D o 4% L FERR BP0

be de-recognised, and the difference WEREEE R N EE
between carrying value and the price of ZERERE T AEHE
the released part is recognised in profit e

or loss.

Fair value of financial instrument

If the market for a financial instrument
is not active, fair value should be
determined using valuation technique.
Valuation techniques that are well
established in financial markets include
recent market transactions, reference
to a transaction that is substantially the
same and discounted cash flows and
option pricing models. An appropriate
valuation technique should make
the most of observable market data
and minimize the input from sources
dependent of the entity.
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B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BFFZE) 2BEBARETT)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(11).

(12).

Receivables

Receivables comprise accounts receivable
and other receivables. Accounts receivable
arising from sale of goods or rendering of
services are initially recognised at fair value of
the contractual payments from the buyers or
service recipients.

Receivables that are individually significant are
subject to separate impairment assessment.
If there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect the full amount
under the original terms, a provision for
impairment of that receivable is established at
the difference between the carrying amount
of that receivable and the present value of its
estimated future cash flows.

Receivables that are not individually significant
and those receivables that have been
individually evaluated for impairment and
have been found not impaired are combined
into certain groups based on their credit
risk characteristics. The impairment losses
are determined based on the historical loss
experience for the groups of receivables
with the similar credit risk characteristics
and taking into consideration of the current
circumstances.

Inventories

(a) Classification

Inventories include properties under
development, properties held for
sale, merchandise and low-cost
consumables, and are presented at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FTESFBURMEE A
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (#&)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(12). #&(#)

(12). Inventories (Continued)

(b) Measurement of inventories (b) HFEWFERE
Inventories are initially recognised FEREBIFSHIRERKAR
at the actual costs. The costs of ABR ARG EE
properties under development and B B9 R AN B 3 M AR

(c)

properties held for sale comprise land
cost, construction cost, borrowing
costs, and other direct and indirect
fees incurred during the development
period. On completion, the properties
are transferred to completed properties
held for sale at the actual costs. For
land use rights that are developed for
subsequent sales, the cost paid for land
use rights are classified and accounted
for as part of the costs of properties.

Public ancillary facilities comprise
government-approved public ancillary
projects, i.e. roads. The relevant costs
are recognised under the properties
under development, and are recorded
by each cost items, the cost paid
for land use rights are classified and
accounted for as part of properties
under development.

Measurement of net realisable value
and provisions of inventories

Provisions are determined at the excess
amount of the carrying value of the
inventories over their net realisable
value. Net realisable value is determined
based on the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less
the estimated costs to completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the
sale and related taxes.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BFFZE) 2BEBARETT)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(12). Inventories (Continued)

(d) The Group adopts the perpetual
inventory system.

(e) Low-cost consumables are expensed
when issued.

(13). Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments comprise the
Company’s long-term equity investments in its
subsidiaries, as well as the Group’s long-term
equity investments in its joint ventures and
associates.

Subsidiaries are the investees over which
the Company is able to exercise control;
joint ventures are the investees over which
the Group is able to exercise joint control
together with other ventures; associates are
the investees that the Group has significant
influence on their financial and operating
policies.

Investments in subsidiaries are presented in
the Company’s financial statements using the
cost method, and are adjusted for preparing
the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method. Investments in joint
ventures and associates are accounted for
using the equity method. Other long-term
equity investments, where the Group does
not have control, joint control or significant
influence over the investee and which are
not quoted in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured, are
accounted for using the cost method.
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FTESFBURMEE A
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (#&)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(13). REAMRERE (&)

(13). Long-term equity investments
(Continueq)

(a)

(b)

Measurement of investment cost

For long-term equity investments
acquired through a business
combination: for long-term equity
investments acquired though business
combination involving enterprises under
common control, the investment cost
shall be the absorbing party’s share
of the carrying amount of owners’
equity of the party being absorbed at
the combination date; for not under
common control, the investment cost
shall be the combination cost.

For long-term equity investments
acquired not though a business
combination: for long-term equity
investment acquired by payment in
cash, the initial investment cost shall
be the purchase price actually paid; for
long-term equity investments acquired
by issuing equity securities, the initial
investment cost shall be the fair value of
the equity securities issued.

Subsequent measurement and
recognition of investment income
and loss

For long-term equity investments
accounted for using the cost method,
they are measured at the initial
investment costs, and cash dividends
or profit distribution declared by the
investees are recognised as investment
income in profit or loss.
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2.

ZENA= AU E R (BRI & FEBARETFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(13). Long-term equity investments
(Continueq)

(b)

Subsequent measurement and
recognition of investment income
and loss (Continued)

For long-term equity investments
accounted for using the equity method,
there the initial investment cost of a
long-term equity investment exceeds
the Group’s share of the fair value of
the investee’s identifiable net assets
at the acquisition date, the long-term
equity investment is measured at the
initial investment cost; where the initial
investment cost is less than the Group’s
share of the fair value of the investee’s
identifiable net assets at the acquisition
date, the difference is included in profit
or loss and the cost of the long-term
equity investment is adjusted upwards
accordingly.

For long-term equity investments
accounted for using the equity method,
the Group recognises the investment
income according to its share of net
profit or loss of the investee. The Group
discontinues recognising its share
of net losses of an investee after the
carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment together with any long-
term interests that, in substance, form
part of the investor’'s net investment
in the investee are reduced to zero.
However, if the Group has obligations
for additional losses and the criteria
with respect to recognition of provisions
under the accounting standards
on contingencies are satisfied, the
Group continues recognising the
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. TESFBURMEE A5
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (%)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(13). REARRERE (&)

(13). Long-term equity investments
(Continued)

(b) Subsequent measurement and (b) BEFERBEZERAZE

(c)

recognition of investment income
and loss (Continued)

investment losses and the provisions.
For changes in owners’ equity of
the investee other than those arising
from its net profit or loss, the Group
records its proportionate share directly
into capital surplus, provided that the
Group’s proportion of shareholding in

(%)

LEBIET B E =B R AER
HnBHEEFTAERRE-
W & BAL DK A A S
REWRFINEE D IREE
MAEEESBEHIHLS

R RBREREN
FEEE ~AEEMEFR

the investee remains unchanged. The BB 2 HAREERNAE
carrying amount of the investment is §< % B R R R PG
reduced by the Group’s share of the EHEBRNASENHS

profit distribution or cash dividends
declared by an investee. The unrealised
profits or losses arising from the intra-
group transactions amongst the Group
and its investees are eliminated in
proportion to the Group’s equity interest
in the investees, and then based on
which the investment gains or losses
are recognised. For the loss on the
intra-group transaction amongst the
Group and its investees attributable to
asset impairment, any unrealised loss is
not eliminated.

Definitions of control, joint control
and significant influence

Control is the power to govern the
investees’ financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Joint control is the contractually

(c)

T AR BH - FE L B bR
R E R - AR B H
REBMELENANLR S
BX EFBREERE
BRWE D HENKE
BERXFATHE-

BREHRREEMRFE
HEEH - EXZER

& %

ZH B RRTE WIRE

B BMELEHE

WEEBA R G2 E ST &
B &5 o

ITT HEERBRERK

agreed sharing of control over an EHRBERELZSMZAR
economic activity, and exists only when E’J PEHEEHEZIBELE
the strategic financial and operating EE AR R E E B A

decisions relating to the activity require
the unanimous consent of all the parties
sharing control.
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2.

ZENA= AU E R (BRI & FEBARETFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(13).

(14).

(15).

Long-term equity investments
(Continueq)

(c) Definitions of control, joint control
and significant influence (Continued)

Significant influence is the power to
participate the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those
policies.

(d) Impairment of long-term equity
investment

If the recoverable amount of a
subsidiary, an associate or a joint
venture is less than the carrying value,
the carrying value shall be reduced to
its recoverable amount (note 2(20)).

Jointly controlled operations

Jointly controlled operations are operations
with a contractual arrangement, whereby
the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity without the establishment of
a corporation, partnership nor any other kinds
of separate financial or legal structure. These
operations are subject to joint control and
none of the participating parties has unilateral
control over the economic activity. In respect
of its interest in jointly controlled operations,
the Group recognises in the financial
statements: (a) assets and liabilities that the
Group controls and incurs. (b) the expenses
that the Group incurs and its share of the
income that it earns from the sale of goods or
services by the operations.

Investment properties

Investment properties, including land use
rights that have already been leased out,
buildings that are held for the purpose of
lease and buildings that is being constructed
or developed for future use for leasing,
are measured initially at cost. Subsequent
expenditures incurred in relation to an
investment property is included in the cost of
the investment property when it is probable
that the associated economic benefits will
flow to the Group and its cost can be reliably
measured; otherwise, the expenditures are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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HRIBERGERAR —T——FhHRE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g e

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. TESFBURMEE A5
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (%)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(15). HEMEHE (&)

(15). Investment properties (Continued)

The Group adopts the cost model for
subsequent measurement of the investment
properties. Buildings and land use rights are
depreciated or amortised to their estimated
net residual values over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful lives, the estimated
net residual values expressed as a percentage
of cost and the annual depreciation
(amortisation) rates of the investment
properties are as follows:

AEERARARAEAERE
HEWEETRETE REHE
FHERSm R REXEEEY
Mt AR YT E S B -
REMFEWENTRTEASS
FREXRREFE (BH) XIR

LU
Annual
depreciation
Estimated Estimated (amortisation)
useful lives residual value rate
& & FIHE
ERSG PEEE (#s5) %=

Buildings FEREEY
Land use rights T AR

10-40 years® 0% to 10%
40 yearsF -

2.3% 10 10.0%
2.5%

When an investment property is transferred to
an owner-occupied property, it is reclassified
as fixed asset or intangible asset at the date
of the transfer. When an owner-occupied
property is transferred for earning rentals or
for capital appreciation, the fixed asset or
intangible asset is reclassified as investment
property at its carrying amount at the date of
the transfer.

The estimated useful life, net residual value of
the investment property and the depreciation
(amortisation) method applied are reviewed
and adjusted as appropriate at each year-end.
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BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P RS AR M A

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BHFZHE) 2BEBARETT)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(15). Investment properties (Continued)

(16).

An investment property is derecognised on
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. The net amount of proceeds from
sale, transfer, retirement or damage of an
investment property after its carrying amount
and related taxes and expenses is recognised
in profit or loss for the current period.

If the recoverable amount of investment
property is less than its carrying value, the
carrying value should be reduced to the
recoverable amount (note 2(20)).

Fixed assets

(a)

Recognition and initial
measurement

Fixed assets comprise buildings,
machinery and equipment, motor
vehicles, and office equipment.

Fixed assets are recognised when it is
probable that the associated economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the
related cost can be reliably measured.
Fixed assets purchased or constructed
by the Group are initially measured at
cost at the time of acquisition.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for
a fixed asset are included in the cost
of the fixed asset when it is probable
that the associated economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the related
cost can be reliably measured. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All the other subsequent
expenditures are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 SRR MY R

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BEFEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(16). Fixed assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Depreciation methods of fixed
assets

Fixed assets are depreciated using the
straight-line method to allocate the
cost of the assets to their estimated
residual values over their estimated
useful lives. For the fixed assets that
have been provided for impairment
loss, the related depreciation charge is
prospectively determined based upon
the adjusted carrying amounts over
their remaining useful lives.

The estimated useful lives, the
estimated residual values expressed as
a percentage of cost and the annual
depreciation rates are as follows:

(%)

FTEEFERMEs A

(16). BIE& & (&)

Estimated

useful lives

BREERS®

(b)

ElE&EMINERE

BEEENERBFERT
AL IR E AREERE
BEEFRERERER
SRR HEHR TR
BEEENEEEE A&
R R HA R = 0 B ORULE 1
B REEBERKERA
ERFREENER-

ErdEmEL e
& OFEERREFER
FIREAT

Annual

Estimated depreciation
residual value rate
FEREREE FREX

Buildings B EREEY
Motor vehicles EHTA
Office equipment N ]

10-40 yearsF
5 yearsf
3-10 years4F

0% to 10%
0% to 10%
0% to 10%

2.3% 10 10.0%
18.0% to 20.0%
9.0% to 33.3%

The estimated useful life, the estimated
net residual value of a fixed asset and
the depreciation method applied to the
asset are reviewed, and adjusted as
appropriate at least at each year end.

When recoverable amount of fixed
asset is lower than its carrying value,
the carrying value should be written
down to the recoverable amount (note
2(20)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

r—F—

ZENA= AU E R (BRI & FEBARETFT)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(16). Fixed assets (Continued)

(d) Disposal of fixed assets

A fixed asset is de-recognised on
disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. The amount of proceeds from
disposal on sale, transfer, retirement
or damage of a fixed asset net of its
carrying amount and related taxes and
expenses is recognised in profit or loss
for the current period.

(17). Borrowing costs

The borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and construction
of investment properties or real estate projects
that need a substantially long period of
time for its intended use commence to be
capitalised and recorded as part of the cost
of the asset when expenditures for the asset
and borrowing costs have been incurred,
and the activities relating to the acquisition
and construction that are necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use have
commenced. The capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when the asset under acquisition
or construction becomes ready for its intended
use, the borrowing costs incurred thereafter
are recognised in profit or loss for the current
period. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended during periods in which the
acquisition or construction of the asset is
interrupted abnormally and the interruption
lasts for more than 3 months, until the
acquisition or construction is resumed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 SRR MY R

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(17).

(18).

Borrowing costs (Continued)

For borrowings that specified for acquisition
and construction of investment properties
and real estate projects and qualified for
capitalisation, the capitalisation amount is
measured as current actual interests of the
specified borrowings net of interest revenue
earned from unused borrowings deposited
at bank or investment income earned from
temporary investment activities with unused
borrowings.

For general borrowings that occupied by the
acquisition and for construction of investment
properties and real estate projects qualified
accumulated, the capitalization amount
should be the weighted average exceeds
of accumulated capital expenditures for
capitalization over the amount of specialized
borrowings multiplied by the weighted average
effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate is the rate used to discount the future
cash flows of the borrowings to the initial
measurement of the borrowings.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include land use rights
and are measured at cost. The cost of land
use rights obtained for construction of real
estate projects, are recognised in inventory
development costs.

(a) Land use rights

Land use rights are amortised on
straight-line basis. If the purchase costs
of land use rights and the buildings
located thereon cannot be reliably
allocated between the land use rights
and the buildings, all of the purchase
costs are recognised as fixed assets.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

r—F—

2.

ZENA= A H IR (BRI 2 FE L BARETFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(18).

(19).

Intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Periodical review of useful life and
amortisation method

For an intangible asset with a finite
useful life, review and adjustment on its
useful life and amortisation method are
performed at each year end.

(c) Impairment of intangible assets

When the recoverable amount of an
intangible asset is less than its carrying
value, the carrying value should be
written down to the recoverable amount
(note 2(20)).

Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses include
expenditures that have been made but should
be recognised as expenses over more than
one year in the current and subsequent
periods. Long-term prepaid expenses are
amortised on the straight-line basis over the
expected beneficial period and are presented
at actual expenditure net of accumulated
amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS R M A

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BEFEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FTESFBURMEE A
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (#&)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(20). REIZERE

(20). Impairment of long-term assets

Fixed assets, intangible assets with finite
useful life, investment properties measured
using the cost model and long-term equity
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates are tested for impairment if there is
any indication that an asset may be impaired
at the balance sheet date. If the result of the
impairment test indicates that the recoverable
amount of the asset is less than its carrying
amount, a provision for impairment and an
impairment loss are recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and the present value of the
future cash flows expected to be derived from
the asset. Provision for asset impairment is
determined and recognised on the individual
asset basis. If it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the recoverable amount of a group of assets
to which the asset belongs is determined. A
group of assets is the smallest group of assets
that is able to generate independent cash
inflows.

Once the above asset impairment loss is

recognised, it will not be reversed for the value
recovered in the subsequent periods.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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2.

ZENA= AU E R (BRI & FEBARETFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(21).

(22).

Employee benefits

Employee benefits mainly include wages or
salaries, bonuses, allowances and subsidies,
staff welfare, social security contributions,
housing funds, labour union funds, employee
education funds and other expenditures
incurred in exchange for service rendered by
employees.

Employees of the Group participate in the
defined contribution pension plan set up
and administered by government authorities.
Based on salaries of the employees, basic
pensions are provided for monthly according
to stipulated proportions (20%), which is paid
to local labour and social security institutions.
Apart from this, the Group has no other post-
retirement benefit commitments.

The Group provides a pension scheme, which
is established under the rules and regulations
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”), for all employees
in Hong Kong. The contributions to the MPF
Scheme are based on minimum statutory
contribution requirement of the lower of 5%
of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate
income and HKD1,000 (adjusted to HKD1,250
effective from 1 June 2012). The assets of
this pension scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

Employee benefits are recognised as salaries
and wages payable in the accounting period in
which an employee has rendered service, as
costs of assets or expenses to whichever the
employee service is attributable.

Distribution of dividends

The amount of dividends proposed to
distribute is recognised as a liability in the
current period in which it is approved by
general meeting of shareholders.

68

FTEGFERMEs A

(#&)

(21).

(22).

% T & i

BTHFMEERRETE &g 2
BEMFERL BIRANE HERR
ENERAES IT2RKEBEME
THERESHMEESRIIR
HEIRTS RO ARRE S M

AEENERBTRREL NS
BAT #08 RR L N B B Y RRE
R BRARBEEZRETE AER
BITERER RRRELD
0% At IR EAREERR S
I (7 E 55 By M A B R IEEIB
Ao BRILZ SN AN SR B0 S H AR
PR1& 48 F 7t o

REBAMEEENAERER
IR KBRS BIRE CGa%I
RNEETEEH) RN BEES
Bl AEERASEAKAME
FHEEFTZHBEETRELIE
A#REBBAFTRANS% S
wESTE AHRS FRAFTA
BHE1,000c B (ZE——F<H
—BREEE ABE1250LE) -
ZERKEFFENESHRE L
ERERABE BAEENE
ENR -

R A B T 38 B 1A BBk T 92 R R A
B HAFR) R AR - I AR IR B T AR AR
B X m R AEBEEEXAN
FME -

Bz F1 57 B2

BRI D R R U R &



BRIBEXEBROERRAR —T— —FPhHRE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. TESFBURMEE A5
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (%)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(23). Revenue recognition (23). W NFERR

The amount of revenue is determined
in accordance with the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the
sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of rebates, discounts and returns.

Revenue is recognised when the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will
flow to the Group, the related revenue can be
reliably measured, and the specific revenue
recognition criteria have been met for each
type of the Group’s activities as described
below:

(a) Sale of goods

Revenue of sale of properties held for
sale is recognised when all the following
conditions have been satisfied:

o properties are completed and
accepted after check;

o a legally binding sales contract
has been signed in proper
manner and form;

o all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the
properties held for sale have
been transferred to the buyer;

o The Company does not retain
either continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership
or effective control over the
sold properties and meet the
other criteria required when
recognising revenue mentioned
above.
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r—F—

ZENA= A H IR (BRI 2 FE L BARETFT)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(23). Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Rendering of services

The Group provides service to
external parties. The related revenue
is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, with the stage of
completion being determined based on
proportion of costs incurred to date to
the estimated total costs.

(c) Transfer of asset use rights

Interest income is recognised on a
time-proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

Income from an operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

(24). Government grants

Government grants are monetary or non-
monetary assets obtained from the
government with no consideration, including
tax returns and financial subsidies.

Grants from the government are recognised
as revenue where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Monetary assets of the
government grants are measured as the
amount received or receivable. Non-monetary
assets of the government grants are measured
as fair value or notional value if the fair value
cannot be obtained reliably.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BEFEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(24).

(25).

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants related to assets are
recognised as deferred revenue and will be
amortised on a straight-line basis in current
profit or loss over the useful life of the related
assets. Government grants recognised at
notional value are directly recognised in profit
or loss for the current period.

Government grants related to income which
are used to compensate expenses or losses
in subsequent periods, are recognised as
deferred revenue and realized in profit or
loss for the period such expenses or losses
occurred; the ones which are to compensate
expenses or losses occurred in previous
periods are directly recognised in profit or loss
for the current period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are calculated and recognised based on the
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts (temporary differences). Deferred tax
asset is recognised for the deductible losses
that can be carried forward to subsequent
years for deduction of the taxable profit in
accordance with the tax laws. No deferred
tax asset or deferred tax liability is recognised
for the temporary differences resulting from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
due to a transaction other than a business
combination, which affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit (or deductible loss). At
the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled.
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r—F—

ZENA= AU E R (BRI & FEBARETFT)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(25). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for
deductible temporary differences, deductible
losses and tax credits to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available
in the future against which the deductible
temporary differences, deductible losses and
tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
except where the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference, and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. When it is probable that the
temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
will be reversed in the foreseeable future and
that the taxable profit will be available in the
future against which the temporary differences
can be utilised, the corresponding deferred tax
assets are recognised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when:

o the deferred taxes are related to the
same tax payer within the Group and
the same taxation authority; and,

° that tax payer has a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHINEABE (BEFSZH) £BELBARETT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(26).

(27).

(28).

Leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset. An
operating lease is a lease other than a finance
lease.

The Group does not have finance leases.
Lease payments under an operating lease are
recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

Maintenance and quality guarantee
funds

Maintenance fund is collected from property
buyers according to related regulations on
behalf of housing administration bureau,
by certain percentage of selling price of
property, the fund will be remitted to housing
administration bureau upon registration of
property ownership.

Quality guarantee fund is reserved by certain
percentage of the project payment and
payment will be repaid to constructor when
the properties are completed, in condition that
examined by government authorities with no
quality issue, and after the agreed warranty
period.

Held for sale and discontinued
operations

A non-current asset or a component of the
Group satisfying the following conditions
is classified as held for sale: (1) the Group
has made a resolution for disposal of the
non-current asset or the component; (2)
an irrevocable contract with the transferee
has been signed and; (3) the transfer will be
completed within one year.

73

FEERIBRME A=

(%)

(26).

(27).

(28).

HE

E‘%Etii}%T HEEMAEAR
ol ag=it ﬂiwlﬁ’]?’rﬂf%ﬁﬂﬁ
A ,\°E1’£E’J7’rﬂfﬁi‘« °

AEELSEREMERS KE
MEMBEEXHERENRNEZR
BERRFAHBEEKRAKE B

Bae

HEREMEEREE

MEESREBRABRE &F
BREEN—TELAIREESE
BB P 1R B 55 & U ER - FE #3332 2
BEFFER EXFEHEETER
e

EEREFE —RIRBIEMIR
R —THIER EREEM
WMERTRWETENTENEE
REHAELEERNER B1TX
4 pe TEAL -

FAEGERKLES

R B & T PRI R IR B B B
IAEEE AR DE DB
FEFE: ()ARECEREE
BEXFRDEERZEXEDME
HRFZF: (D)AKBELRR R
JTEE] T R ) B R e

(Z)RAERBE—FRTK-



BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 R A Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BHFZHE) 2BEBARETT)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(28).

(29).

Held for sale and discontinued
operations (Continued)

Non-current assets, except for financial
assets and deferred tax assets, that meet
the recognition criteria for held for sale are
included in other current assets at the amount
equal to the lower of the fair value less costs
to sell and the carrying amount. Any excess of
the original carrying amount over the fair value
less costs to sell is recognised as an asset
impairment loss.

Discontinued operation is a component of
the Group that either has been disposed of
or is classified as held for sale, and can be
distinguished from other components within
the Group in business operation and in
preparation of financial statements.

Segment information

The Group identifies operating segments
pbased on the internal organisation,
management requirements and internal
reporting system, and the reportable segments
is determined based on the operating
segments.

An operating segment is a component of
the Group that satisfies all of the following
conditions: (1) the component is able to
earn revenues and incur expenses from its
operation activities; (2) whose operating
results are regularly reviewed by the Group’s
management to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and
to assess its performance, and (3) for which
the information on financial position, operating
results and cash flows is available to the
Group. If two or more operating segments
have similar economic characteristics and
satisfy certain conditions, they are aggregated
into one single operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BEFEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FTESFBURMEE A
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (#&)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(80). Critical accounting estimates and (30). = E & &k st F0 I &

judgments

The Group continually evaluates the critical
accounting estimates and key judgments
applied based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable.

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and

key assumptions

The critical accounting estimates and
key assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year
are as following:

(i)

Property development cost
Critical estimates and judgments
on budget cost and development
progress are required in
determining property development
cost. The budget cost and
development progress of the
project is reviewed by the Group
on a regular basis and adjusted
as appropriate. Should the actual
cost differs from the budget cost,
such difference will impact the
accuracy of cost of properties
held for sale.
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B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BHFZHE) 2BEBARETT)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(30). Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and
key assumptions (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Taxes

The Group is subject to various
taxes in the PRC. There are
many transactions and events
for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business.
Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for
land appreciation tax (“LAT”")
and other taxes. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the tax
provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Impairment of assets

The Group tests annually
whether assets have suffered any
impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in
note 2(20), If there is objective
evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect the full
amount under the original terms,
a provision for impairment of that
receivable is established at the
difference between the carrying
amount of that receivable and
the present value of its estimated
future cash flows.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BEFEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEEFBURFEEAE
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (&)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(80). Critical accounting estimates and (30). EEEFHARTFIHIE (&)

judgments (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and (A EEEGEAREBAHRERB
key assumptions (Continued) (&)

(iv) Provisions for bad debts of (iv) BEWRRERREE
receivables
The Group tests annually whether BEMFE= (1)
trade and other receivables MERE A&
have suffered any impairment in B &4 8 &= e ok
accordance with the accounting HESGHBRE
policy stated in note 2(11). If EBEAKBEARAEE
there is objective evidence that 1 R 1R FE R K
the Group will not be able to B IR B & 5K 48 |l 5k
collect the full amount under the IEF - RBHTER R
original terms, a provision for KR RERER
impairment of that receivable REEREENS
is established at the difference BHoRHIRIBEREME o
between the carrying amount of
that receivable and the present
value of its estimated future cash
flows.

(v) Deferred tax assets (v EEZEFRSHEE
Deferred tax assets relating to REEEBREL
certain temporary differences FriGMEER T2
and tax losses are recognised HAEKMBETR
when management considers 2 HA FA] B9 T 88 B 4
it probable that future taxable HEITHE - NEEE

profit will be available against
which the temporary differences
or tax losses can be utilized. The

MBS B E AR F
Al A& R - A
R AT BEE 1T 2R 3K

outcome of their actual utilization WA ENEEN R

may be different. RIEMFTSEER
PR - R FE AR T
gt & E -

o



BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

INTERIM REPORT 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P RS AR M A
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BE—F——FNA=+HIENEABE (B HFZH5

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(30). Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Critical accounting estimates and
key assumptions (Continued)

(vi) Disposal of associates and

joint ventures

Critical estimates and judgments
should be made according to
the constitution, amount and
collectability of the considerations
of the equity transactions when
recognising investment profit/
loss of disposal of associates
and joint ventures. The disposal
income recognised is the best
estimates of the consideration
receivables in the reporting
period.

Key Judgment on application
of accounting policy - revenue
recognition

According to the accounting policy
stated in note 2(23), the assessment
of when an entity has transferred
the significant risks and rewards of
ownership to buyers requires the
examination of the circumstances of
the transaction. In most cases, the
transfer point of risks and rewards of
ownership coincides with the date when
the equitable interest in the property
vests with the buyer upon release of the
respective property to the buyer.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BEFEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(30). Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(b)

Key Judgment on application
of accounting policy - revenue
recognition (Continued)

As disclosed in note 9, the Group
provided guarantees in respect of
mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks relating to the mortgage loans
arranged for certain purchasers of the
Group’s properties. These guarantees
will be expired when relevant property
ownership certificates are lodged with
the various banks by the purchasers.
The Group believe that significant
risks and rewards associated to the
ownership of the properties have been
transferred to the purchasers when the
equitable interest in the property vests
with the buyer upon release of the

respective property to the buyer.

TAXATION

The types and rates of taxes applicable to the Group

are set out below:
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Type Tax rate Taxable base
g BE BE
Enterprise income tax 25% Taxable income
RS JEMT P15 HE
Business tax 5% Taxable turnover amount
EED JEMT L KRR
LAT ) 30%-60% Taxable value added amount
T EER (Tax payable is calculated

Urban maintenance and construction tax 5%-7%
R

Education Surcharge 3%
BE B

Property Taxes 1.2%
BEM
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BHFZHE) 2BEBARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND m, tEESHEEHMBRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

(1). Significant subsidiaries (—). EEFREIER
1. Subsidiaries incorporated by promoters 1. ZIN/NEI R S U RV IS T )
at establishment of the Company, ABRABF AR :
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
EREX KAABERERLH EYNCESS 4]
30 June 2012 31 December 2011 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
8- 2= o%-C% —F--F
Place of Principal Bonds 30June 31 December ~A=+A +=A=1+-AH ~AZtH +=A=1+-AH
Name registration  activities issued 2012 2011 Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct ~ Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct
FHUER ~§-2f T--F
FoAER b fud- il | BRITRS ~AZ+A TZA=T-H B i BE & B i B Fi&
% % % % % % % %
(1) Central Plaza Beijing, Property - USDE T USDET 75 25 75 2 75 25 75 2
Real Estate the PRC Development 11,258,000 11,258,000
Development Co., Ltd. and Investment

(‘Central Company’)
TRPRESES R FRERERRE
BRAF (LT

[HIRAR)])

(2)  Beijing Rongjin Beiing, Property - USDETT USDET 10 49.5 10 495 10 49.5 10 495
Real Estate the PRC Development 6,360,000 6,360,000
Development Co., Ltd. and Investment

(‘Rongjin Company’)
TREEEHERE  LRD FRERERRE
BRAF (BT

[BERH])

(8)  Beiing Sunshine Jindu  Beiing, Property - RMBAR # RVBAR% 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Properties Co.,Ltd. the PRC Development 370,000,000 370,000,000
(Jindu Company) and sales

tREEEBES SR EHERZREE
ARAR (ATH
[Bxe#l)

@  Central Plaza Co., Ltd.  B.VI Investment Holding = USDETT USDETE 100 - 100 = 100 - 100 =
(‘Central Plaza”) 1 1
HRERERAR REARR RAEE
(AT il
[Central Plaza )

(5)  International Finance BVl Investment Holding - USDETT USDETE 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Center Property Co., 1 1
Ltd. (‘IFC)
AReaTONE KEARR RAEE
BRAF (BT il
lIFc))
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BEFEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND m., tEESHREEHEBRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (&)
STATEMENT (cContinued)

(—). EEFRARBR (&)

BIBIER —EH TR X
BHIEHT AR :

(1).

Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

2. Subsidiaries obtained from business 2.
combinations involving enterprises not
under common control:

Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
AREE KAAHERELS KNARAELH
30 June 2012 31 December 2011 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
—§-Cf 2% B F—-f
Place of Principal Bonds 30 June 31 December ~AZtH +=A=1+-A ~AZtH +=A=1+-AH
Name registration  activities issued 2012 2011 Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct ~ Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct
FHUER 8-z 2%
FRAEH #ht  BEEE  BRARE  AASHR toASt-B B Mg B BE EE  ME ER M2
% % % % % % % %
(1) S.C.Real Estate Beijing, Property - RMBAR # RVMBAR% 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Development Co., Ltd.  the PRC Development 640,000,000 640,000,000
(‘s.C.) and sales
BEEBERELR  ARD BHEREREE
BRAF (TR
=)
@  Bejing HYHL Beijing, Property - USDE T USDET - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development 10,000,000 10,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
(HYHL)
TREGZEENE  LRT BHEREREE
BRAF (TR
[EFRZE])
(8 Beiing Anhua Shiji Beijing, Property - USDETT USDET 55 - 55 - 60 - 60 -
Real Estate the PRC Development 30,000,000 30,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
(*Anhua Shij")
(Note 7(3)(e))
TRZEHREHERE LRT FREREREE
BRARF (BT
[ZEHE])
(HEEE)E)
(4 Tianjin Banshan Tianjin, Property - USDETT USDET - 55 - 55 - 60 - 60
Renjia Real Estate the PRC Development 89,000,000 89,000,000
Co., Ltd. and sales
(‘Tianjin Banshan”)
REHILARESR RE BHEREREE
BRAF (TR
[REHIL])
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B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BHFZHE) 2BEBARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND m, tEESHEEHMBRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continuea) (—) EEFRAEIER &)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
AREX KARHERELS EYNCESS 4]
30 June 2012 31 December 2011 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
—§-C% 5% %% —F—-f
Place of Principal Bonds 30 June 31 December ~A=+H +=A=1+-A ~AZtH +=A=1+-A
Name registration  activities issued 2012 2011 Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct ~ Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct
FHUER ~§-2f -T--F
FoAER b fid il | BRITRS ~AZ+A TZA=T-H L3 k3 BE & B i BE &
% % % % % % % %
(5)  Beijing Sunshine City Beijing, Property - USDETT USDETT 50 50 50 = 60 40 60 -
Real Estate the PRC Development 20,000,000 20,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
(“Sunshine City’) (il

ERBAEELE R FHERZREE
BRAR (TR

[B351) (i)
(6)  Chongging Xinshi Chongging,  Property - USDETT USDETT - 50 - 50 - 66.7 - 66.7
Real Estate the PRC Development 95,000,000 95,000,000
Development CO. Ltd. and sales
(“Chongaing Xinshi")()

BREENRER EEm FHERZREE
BRAR (ATH

[EEHA]) ()

(7)  Outlets Property Foshan, Property - USDETT USDETT - 55 - 55 - 55 - 55
Investment Guang the PRC Development 40,000,000 40,000,000
Dong Ltd. and sales

(“Outlets Guangdong”)
ARRMEZRR Il FREREREE
ARAE (ATH

[RRER])
(8)  Beiing Xinbocheng Bejjing, Property - RMBAR#¥ RVBAR% - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development 89,000,000 89,000,0007
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
(“Xinbocheng’)

ERABEERERE kRD FHERZREE
BRAR (AT

[5E%))
(9  Qingdao Yangguang Qingdao, Property - RMBAR#¥ RVBAR% - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Binhai Properties the PRC Development 50,000,000 50,000,0007
Co., Ltd. and sales
EERRABES BT BRHEREREE
ARRR
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BEFEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

.

EREHREHMBERE

(%)

(—). EEFRARBR (&)

Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
AREE KARHERELS EYNCESS 3]
30 June 2012 31 December 2011 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
g% 2% %% —F—-f
Place of Principal Bonds 30June 31 December ~AZtH +=A=1+-A ~AZtH +=A=1-A
Name registration  activities issued 2012 2011 Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct  Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct
¥HUER Z%-2% 2%
FAALR #R%  BEEE  BRAWE  AASHR toASt-B B ME B BE  EE  ME ER M2
% % % % % % % %
(10)  Qingdao Qiangianshu  Qingdao, Property - RMBAR#¥ RVBAR% - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Investment Properties  the PRC Development 20,000,000 20,000,0007
Co., Ltd. and sales
EBETTHES B BHEREREE
BRAA
(1) Yantai Yangguang Yantai, Property - RMBAR#¥ RVBAR% - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Lidu Real Estate the PRC Development 50,000,000 50,000,0007
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
BEAGXESRNE GAT BHEREREE
HEERARA
(12)  Yantai Yangguang Yantai, Property - RMBAR#¥ RVBAR% - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Lizhen Real Estate the PRC Development 75,000,000 75,000,0007
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
BEAGXEERNE GAW BHEREREE
HEERARA
(13)  Yantai Yangguang Yantai, Property - RMBAR#¥ RVBAR% - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Xinye Real Estate the PRC Development 75,000,000 75,000,0007
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
BAGXFERLE £AW BHEREREE
HEERARA
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B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BHFZHE) 2BEBARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND m, tEESHEEHMBRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continuea) (—). EEFRARIBR(E)
3.  Subsidiaries obtained from investment 3. AmAHEMEMGANE
and other procedures #)F A &
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
AREE KRRHERELS KNARAEILG

30June 2012 31 December 2011 30 June 2012 31 December 2011

%-Z% 2% 3-2% E—F

Place of Principal Bonds 30 June 31 December ~A=+A +=ZA=t-A N +=A=1+-AH
Name registration activities issued 2012 2011 Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
FHHER g2 T--F

FoAER b il | BRTRE ~AZTR TZA=T-H R M BR Gl -t i B Fi&

% % % % % % % %

(1)  Bejing Capital Xini  Bejng, Property - RMBAR®  RVBAE¥ 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 =
Real Estate Ltd. the PRC Development 496,590,000 496,590,0007C
(‘Beijing Xinzi") and sales
LREEFEER LR BHEREREE
ARRR (ATHE
[m#E])
() Beiing Shangboya Beijing, Investment Holding - RMBAR # RVMBAR# 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Investment Consultant  the PRC 30,000,000 30,000,000
Co., Ltd. (‘Shangboya)
TREBRRERR  LRD REER
ARDR (ATH
z1:3id))
@) Beiing Shangbodi Bejing, Investment holding - RMBARH RVBARE 51 - 51 - 51 - 51 -
Investment Consultant  the PRC 30,000,000 30,000,0007C
Co., Ltd. (‘Shangbod")
TREEGRERE  LRE RAER
ARRRE (ATHE
[HiEsn])
(4 Tianjin Xinchuang Land ~ Tianjin, Property - USD£ T USDETE - 55 - 55 - 60 - 60
Ltd. (‘Tianjin Xinchuang”) the PRC Development 25,000,000 25,000,000
(Note 7(3)(e)) and sales
KETHEIER REM FHEREREE
ARDE (ATH
[REHel)
(GESLEN
(5)  Chengdu Capital Xinzi  Chengdu, Property - USD£ T USDETE - 100 - 55 - 100 - 60
Real Estate the PRC Development 30,000,000 30,000,000
Development Ltd. and sales
(“Chengdu Xinzi") (i
REBEEIFEER R BHEREREE
ARRRE (ATHE
[RBHE] (i)
(6)  Jiangsu Capital Real Wuxi, the PRC ~ Property - USD£ T USDETE 60 40 60 40 60 40 60 40
Estate Development Ltd. Development 12,500,000 12,500,000
(“Jiangsu Capital’) and sales
IHEEIBEERAT EHH FHEREREE
(TR TEES)
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BEFEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND m., tEESHREEHEBRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (&)
STATEMENT (cContinued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continuea) (—) EEFRRER (&)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ARER KRNRHERELS KNARAELD
30June 2012 31December 2011 30June 2012 31 December 2011
—§-If % ¥ —F—-f
Place of Principal Bonds 30June 31 December ~A=+A +=A=t-AH ~A=+H +=A=1+-A
Name registration activities issued 2012 2011 Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
EHHER g2 F--F
FoAER b il | BRITRS ~AZ+H tZA=t-A BB i L3 i -t i BE 553

% % % % % % % %

(7)  Beiing Caotang Real ~ Beiing, Property - RMBARH RVBAR® - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Development Ltd. the PRC Development 10,000,000 10,000,0007C
and sales
FREZBXARDA SRT BHEREREE
(8)  Bsiing Capital Land Chengdu, Property - RMBAR # RVMBAR# 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Chengdu Co., Ltd. the PRC Development 150,000,000 150,000,000
(‘Capital Chengdu’) and sales
BEEERBERAT AP BHEREREE
(AT E8lm#])
(9)  Chengdu Capital Yidu  Chengdu, Property - USDZ T USDETE - 55 - 55 - 60 - 60
Real Estate the PRC Development 100,000,000 100,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
B ELES 5-¢3 250 BHEREREE
BRAR
(10)  Tianjin Capital Tianjin, Property - USDZ T USDETE - 55 - 55 - 60 - 60
Xinyuan Real Estate the PRC Development 95,000,000 95,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
REBEFEER REM BHEREREE
BRAR
(1) Tianjin Capital Tianjin, Property - USDZ T USDETE - 55 - 55 - 60 - 60
Xingang Real Estate the PRC Development 95,000,000 95,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
REBEFBEER REM BHEREREE
BRAR
(12)  Wuxi Xindong Real Estate Wuxi, Property - RMBAR # RVMBAR# 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Development Co., Ltd.  the PRC Development 100,000,000t 100,000,000
(‘Wuxi Xindong") and sales
EREENRES EHm BHEREREE
BRARF (BT
[EHHR])
(13)  Central Plaza Xinrong ~~ British Virgin Hotel Operation = USD£ 7T USDETE 75 25 75 25 75 25 75 25
Hotel Management Islands and 6,062,000 6,062,000
Co., Ltd. Management

(‘Central Plaza Xinrong")

FTREREREEEE XEABRHE HEBERER
ARAR (TR
[MRER])
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B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BHFZHE) 2BEBARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND m, tEESHEEHMBRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continuea) (—) EEFRAEIER &)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ARER KRRHERELS EYNCESS 3]
30June 2012 31 December 2011 30June 2012 31 December 2011
—E-Ik % F-Z% T—F
Place of Principal Bonds 30June 31 December ~A=+A +=A=t-A N +=A=1+-A
Name registration activities issued 2012 2011 Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
EHHER g2 F--F
FoAER b il | BRTRS ~AZ+H tZA=t+-A R i BE i -t Gt EE Fi&

% % % % % % % %

(14)  Beijng Chuangxin Jianye Beiing, Investment Holding - RMBAR & RVBAR% 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Real Estate Investment  the PRC 50,000,000 50,000,0007
Ltd. (“Chuangxin
Jianye”)
LREFREVERE LR REER
ARARE (ATH
[I3£])
(15)  dJingjin Tongcheng Tianjin, Property - RMBAR# RVBAR% - 50 - 50 - 51 - 51
(Tianjin) Investment the PRC Development 250,000,000 250,000,000
Co., Ltd. and sales
(“Jingjin Tongcheng’)()
RERA (KR)RE  REW FHERERES
ARAR (ATH
[R2RHI) )
(16)  Outlets Property Beijing, Property - USDE T USDETE - 99 - 99 - 99 - 9
Investment Fang the PRC Development 127,000,000 127,000,000
Shan Ltd. and sales
FREMRERGEL LR BHEREREE
EXARAH
(17)  Bsijng Capital Beijing, Property - RMBAR®  RVBAR¥ - 00 - 100 - 00 - 100
Zhongbei Real Estate  the PRC Development 100,000,000t 100,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
LREERLERSE LRT BHEREREE
RAERAA
(18)  Guangdong Guansheng ~ Foshan, Property - USDE T USDETE - 68 - 68 - 68 - 68
Real Estate the PRC Development 40,000,000 40,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
ERESEERRAR LT BHEREREE
(19)  Guangdong Rongxin Foshan, Property - USD£T USDETE - 68 - 68 - 68 - 68
Real Estate the PRC Development 30,000,000 30,000,000
Development Co., Ltd and sales
BERRFEXERAE B FHERERES
(20)  Guangdong Jingsheng ~ Foshan, Property - USDE T USDETE - 68 - 68 - 68 - 68
Real Estate the PRC Development 10,000,000 10,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
ERREBEERAR HUT BHEREREE
(21)  BECL Investment Holding Hong Kong Investment Holding ~ RMBA &% USDE T USDET 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Ltd. (‘BECL') 1,150,000,000 9,900,000 9,900,000
HEREZRERAR FE REER
(ATHIEERE])
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BEFEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND m., tEESHREEHEBRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (&)
STATEMENT (cContinued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continuea) (—) EEFRAEIER &)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ARER KRNRHERELS KNARAELD
30June 2012 31December 2011 30June 2012 31 December 2011
—§-If % ¥ —F—-f
Place of Principal Bonds 30June 31 December ~A=+A +=A=t-AH ~A=+H +=A=1+-A
Name registration activities issued 2012 2011 Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
EHHER g2 F--F
FoAER b il | BRITRS ~AZ+H tZA=t-A BB i L3 kS -t i BE 553

% % % % % % % %

(22)  Beijng Litong Shangyi  Beiing, Property - RMBARH RVBAR® - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development 10,310,000 10,310,0007C
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
(‘Beijing Shangyi’)
ERABBERE ERH BHEREREE
BRARF (BT
[EREE])
(23)  Beijng Anshunyuan Beijing, Property - RMBARH RVBARH - 95 - 9 - 95 - 9%
Real Estate the PRC Development 50,000,000 50,000,0007
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
IRZEEEHERE LRT BHEREREE
BRAT
(24)  Zhengjiang Xianji Zhenilang, Property = USD£ 7T USDETE - 100 = 100 - 100 = 100
Real Estate the PRC Development 30,000,000 30,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
BIAREXERAR #Im BHEREREE
(25)  Zhejiang Shouxin Huzhou, Property - USDZ T USDETE - 68 - 68 - 68 - 68
Real Estate the PRC Development 24,500,000 24,500,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
WIBEREXERAE MMG BHEREREE
(26)  Zhejiang Hualong Huzhou, Property - USD£ 7T USDETE - 68 - 68 - 68 - 68
Real Estate the PRC Development 67,000,000 67,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
WIZEBXARAA AN BREREREE
(7)  Beijing Ruiyuanfengii Beijing, Property - RMBAR # RVMBAR# 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Real Estate the PRC Development 10,000,000 10,000,0007C
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Ruiyuanfengji’)
FRHTEEER LR BHERE
BRAF (TR
[hn¥%])
(28)  Capital Tianshun Beijing, Property - RMBAR # RVMBAR# - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development 100,000,000t 100,000,000
Development Co., Ltd.
BEREERRERE StRD RHERE
BRAR
(29)  Nanjing Ningchun Nanjing, Infrastructure - RMBAR # RVMBAR# - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Investment 100,000,0007c 100,000,000
Development Co., Ltd.
BREFERRERE BRD EURERE
BRAR
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B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BHFZHE) 2BEBARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND m, tEESHEEHMBRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ()
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continuea) (—) EEFRAEIER &)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ARER KRRHERELS EYNCESS 3]
30June 2012 31 December 2011 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
—F-Ik % F-Z% T—F
Place of Principal Bonds 30June 31 December ~A=+A +=A=t-A N +=A=1+-A
Name registration activities issued 2012 2011 Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
EHHER g2 F--F
FoAER b il | BRTRS ~AZ+H tZA=t+-A R i BR ik -t Gt EE Fi&

% % % % % % % %

(30)  Hainan Outlets Real Wanning, Property - USDE T USDETE - 55 - 55 - 55 - 55
Estate Development the PRC Development 14,000,000 14,000,0007C
Co., Ltd.
BRERREENE 5% BHERE
REERAA
(31)  Jiangyin Yuyue Jiangyin, Property = USDE T USDETE - 100 = 100 - 100 = 100
Real Estate the PRC Development 49,000,000 49,000,000
Development Co., Ltd.
IBRAREXARAA IE® BHERE
(32)  Sanya Shengxing Sanya, Property - RMBAR # RVMBAR# - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Weiye Real Estate the PRC Development 100,000,000 100,000,0007C
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
STRREEELX =% FHERERES
ARAR
(33)  Qingdao Xinli Weiye Qingdao, Property - RMBAR # RVMBAR# - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development 30,000,000 30,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. and sales
EBRFUE¥RHE BRD FHERERES
REERAA
(34)  Capital Guoxin Asset  Beilng, Asset Management - RMBAR¥ N/A 100 - - - 100 - - -
Management Co., Ltd.  the PRC 100,000,007
HEEEAEER LR KEER
ARAR
(35)  Capital Qinglv Real Kunshan, Property - RMBAR# N/A - 51 - - - 51 - -
Estate (Kunshan) the PRC Development 300,000,000
Co., Ltd. and sales
BEIBREX(RBL) BUW BHEREREE
ARAR
() According to the Articles of Association (i) BIEEEFA R FER
of Chongqging Xinshi and Jingjin MARER AEBFAE
Tongcheng, the Group holds 50% MR A A)50%H) I% 1 8 %
equity interests and has control over all B 15 o

two companies.

(i)  Relevant information about the (i) AEERFEHREIE
equity interest transactions with BRENREZZNEBE
non-controlling interest shareholders BERMERE2T) -

by the Group in the reporting period is
stated in note 5(27).
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BE —F——FNA=FHIUNEAFEE (B REEES) 2 EERARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . aHMBHRREAEBME
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR RS

(1). Cash (1). &E¥&ES
30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—g--f —T——%F
~A=Z+H +=ZA=+—H
Cash on hand EFERE 2,072 1,604
Bank Deposits RITIF X 9,157,017 8,350,639
Total =X 9,159,089 8,352,243

As at 30 June 2012, bank deposits includes
supervised advance from customers and
security deposits for certain mortgage loans
to customers, amounted to RMB624,295,000
(81 December 2011: RMB377,343,000). The
Group has reclassified the above amount
to restricted bank deposits. According to
the requirements of some local authorities
(such as Beijing, Tianjin etc.), real estate
developers need to open supervised bank
accounts for the advances received from
customers, when they apply for advance sale
permits. Such accounts are supervised and
the cash expenditure should coincide with
the construction progress in order to ensure
the cash being used for property construction
on a priority basis. As at 30 June 2012, the
cash deposited in abovementioned accounts
amounted to RMB592,175,000 (31 December
2011: RMB222,028,000).

89

R-_ZTE——FXA=+H8 KT
TR e E AR E624,295,0007T
—EF——F+ZA=+—H:
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BFFZE) 2BEBARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. aHMBHRREEME @)

(Continued)
(2). Accounts receivable and other (2). MEUWER & H it FE UK
receivables
(@) Accounts receivable (a) MBEWER
30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—g--f  =F——F
AAS+H +T=A=t—A
Accounts receivables JE YRR K 76,967 143,831
Less: provision for bad R SRR
debts (3,844) (3,844)
Receivables — net H R 73,123 139,987

Most sales of the Group is in form of
cash and advanced payment, other
sales are collected subject to the
agreed terms on sales contract.

At 31 December 2011, accounts
receivables include property sale
receivable due from Bejing Ruijing
Yangguang Properties Co, Ltd. (“Ruijing
Yangguang”), which is a subsidiary
of related party Yangguang Co, Ltd
(“Yangguang Xinye”), amounted to
RMB60,000,000. As at 30 June 2012,
the above amount has already been
collected (Note 7(4)(a)).
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BRHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . aHMBHRREABMEE @)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(2). Accounts receivable and other (2). MEUWER & H it E UK
receivables (Continued) (%)
(@) Accounts receivable (Continued) (@) MEWERRX (&)
The ageing analysis of the accounts FEURR IR E AR B 81
receivables are as follows: BREC T T -

30 June 31 December

2012 2011

—F-=% —F——F

~B=+H +Z-HA=+—H

Within 1 year —F AR 68,204 64,457
1 to 2 years —R =% 920 71,701
2 to 3 years ZR=%F 170 =
Over 3 years =FE 7,673 7,673
Total CE 76,967 143,831

Accounts receivables outstanding for
over one year are mainly related to
sales of properties held for sale. As at
30 June 2012, accounts receivables
of RMB160,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB160,000) were past due but not
impaired with the ageing of over 3
years. An amount of RMB7,513,000
(31 December 2011: RMB7,513,000) is
considered as past due and impaired
with the ageing of over 3 years, with
impairment of RMB3,844,000 (31
December 2011: RMB3,844,000).
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BFFZE) 2BEBARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . aHMBHRREABME @)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(2). Accounts receivable and other (2). MEUWER & H it BEU K
receivables (Continued) (%)
(b)  Other receivables (b) HitbEUK
30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—g-—% —E——f
~NA=+H +ZA=+—H
Amounts due from joint FEWA & DRI ERK
ventures 211,624 164,500
Amounts due from JRE LS B 4 B 1 SR 3K
associates 261,743 34,089
Guarantee deposits RED 111,850 417,194

Property agency fees and KEERIGFEBR A A
other receivables due from (A THE [ EIn¥E])

Chengdu Zirui Xinli EERRER

Co, Ltd., (“Zirui Xinli") H % &R - 13,873
Borrowings from third FE=FERFEK)

parties(i) 101,000 -
Others Hb 350,473 178,801
Total &EF 1,036,690 808,457

Less: provisions for bad IR
debts (53,666) (39,426)

Receivables — net R 983,024 769,031
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BRHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(2). Accounts receivable and other
receivables (Continued)

(b) Other receivables (Continued)

0] This is the borrowings paid
by the Group, which has a
20% interest rate, has no fixed
maturity date and is unsecured
and unguaranteed.

The analysis of other receivables

. aHMBRREEME @)

(2). FEU AR FX R H th FE UK

(#)
(b) HitEWK(E)

(i) ZRBERAEEL
MHESFER %
KIB LA F E20%
TECEEBETEN
HY - AR E K

Eon
DA °

H fth & YR B AR

and related provisions for bad B 2 AR 22 B o i a0
debts are as follows: N
As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
Z5-ZERRZ+H ZR——5+ZfA=1-H
% of % of % of % of
total the total the
Amount balance Provision provision ~Amount balance Provision provision
bR [k
E£ Ll BREG ARUH kX Sl FREE HRIA
% % % %
Within 1 year —ELR 906,293 87 (5,104 0.6 573,836 1 - -
110 2 years —3=% 7,414 7 - - 183,524 23 - -
210 3 years ZH=F 8,227 1 - - 11,469 1 - -
Over 3 years =EHE 50,756 5 (48,562 9% 39,628 5 (39,426) 9
Total At 1,036,690 100  (53,666) 5 808,457 100 (39,426) 5
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B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BFFZE) 2BEBARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . aHMBHREBME @)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(3). Advances to suppliers (3). FE{TFIE
The advances to suppliers are analysis as RZZE—=—FANA=+H B8
follows as at 30 June 2012: HIEDWWT -
30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—F-=F —T——%F
~NA=+H +ZA=+—H
Prepaid sales commissions ENHERE 52,882 64,722
Prepayment for acquisition of TEfTIEE &K
subsidiaries 15,000 25,000
Prepaid land costs, construction ~ T8 =338 ~ T2 3 &
costs and project costs IHEB & 143,586 141,874
Total CE 211,468 231,596
The ageing analysis of the advances to AR EREFIRERR DT T

suppliers is as follows:

As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
—F-"_§RXA=+H —Z——F+-R=+—H

% of total % of total
Amount balance Amount balance
&8 i 48 %8 bk 4 % fEaza Lt fl
% %
Within 1 year —FHRA 164,181 78 176,916 76
Over 1 year =% e 47,287 22 54,680 24
Total A&t 211,468 100 231,596 100
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . GHMBHRFEBEBME 2

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(4). Dividends Receivable (4). FEUWREF
31 December Current Current year 30 June
2011 additions reductions 2012
—T——-f —5-Cf
+-A=+—-H AER D AR ~NA=ZtH
Xi'an Capitel Xinkai Real ~ BXEAIFAER
Estate Development Co.,, ~ BRZAR (AT
Ltd. (“Xi'an Xinkai") [ARHFE]) 12,400 - - 12,400
Beijing Donghai Investment It RE BB AR E
Development Co., Ltd. ) BRARAA() 58,632 = - 58,632
Total Bt 71,032 - ~ 71,032
0] By the approval date of financial statement, this 0] HEFBREAMERTE - &K
receivable has already been collected. HE W E -
(5). Inventories (5). =&
Inventories are classified as follows: FESEWT:
As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
ZF-Z&RXHA=+H —E——%+-A=1-H
Book Provisions Book Book Provisions Carrying
balance  of inventory value balance of inventory value

REBE HFEREER

REEE FERE TEREER REER

Development cost BRI 19,888,312 - 19,888,312 19,575,113 - 19,575,113
Inventories and properties HEER

held for sale 2,660,743 - 2,660,743 2,884,226 - 2,884,226
Land under developing FE R L 800,929 - 800,929 102,718 - 102,718
Merchandise EFEm 4,172 - 4,172 4,172 - 4,172
Low value consumables KEZER 2,533 - 2,533 2,679 - 2,679
Total A 23,356,689 - 23,356,680 22,568,908 - 22,568,908

For the six months ended 30 June 2012,
the properties held for sale with the
carrying amount of RMB1,900,811,000
(For the six months ended 30 June 2011:
RMB622,269,000) has been recognised as
cost of sales.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(5).

Inventories (Continued)

As at 30 June 2012, the financed costs
capitalised in the development cost amounted
to RMB1,103,924,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB1,044,132,000). For six months ended 30
June 2012, the capitalisation rate is 8.5% (For
six months ended 30 June 2011: 6.4%).

As at 30 June 2012, right to yields on certain
land use rights and real estate development
projects under development with a carrying
amount of RMB905,599,000 (31 December
2011: nil) have been pledged as security for
short-term borrowings of RMB100,000,000
(31 December 2011: nil) (note 5(15)).

As at 30 June 2012, certain land use rights
under development with a carrying amount
of RMB3,570,638,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB1,415,695,000) have been pledged
as security for long-term borrowings of
RMB1,751,840,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB999,200,000) (note 5(23)).

As at 30 June 2012, right to yields on certain
land use rights and real estate development
projects under development with a carrying
amount of RMB3,845,003,000 (31 December
2011: RMB6,907,326,000) have been
pledged as security for long-term borrowings
of RMB1,934,755,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB3,189,680,000) (note 5(23)).
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(5).

B7E(#®)

R-E——FXA=1+HWRA%
AR BEERBAEAN
%% A R#1,103,924,0007 ( —
TE——H+-AF=+—H8: AR
¥4 044,132,0007T) ~EHE - F
——®FXNAZ=Z+B8INE A HME
BEARLEAE8S5% (HE—_T——
EXNAZ+BIEAEABRE:
6.4%) °

R-ZZE——FA=1+H 4&&
ERERATEREAMEEAAR
#905,599,000T (=& — — 4
+-A=+—HB EE)NLHMEF
RAENIEEEERMZEEB WS
ERBGRT YHARR AT
NRREER EEBERA
R ¥5100,000,0007T (=T ——4F
+-—A=+—H8:&) (M&zEhH
(15)) °

RZE—Z—FXA=Z+H &
SERABRATERBEES
AR #3 570,638,000 (=&
——F+-A=+—H: AR
#1,415,695,00070 ) B £+ #b {F
BEEKFELETIRESRABR
AR #1,751,840,0007 (=&
——F+-A=1+—H8: AR
999,200,0007T) (MEEF(23)) °

RZE—Z—FXA=Z+H &
SEABRATEREEES
A R #3,845,003,0007T (=&
——F+-A=+—H: AR
#6,907,326,0007T ) &) + i {F
AERHBEHEREIEB K
mERBELETIERAMBR
AR #1,034,755,0007C ( =&
——F+-A=+—H: AR
#3,189,680,0007t) (MisFH
(23)) °
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFIEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Inventories (Continued)

As at 30 June 2012, long-term borrowings
of RMB100,000,000 (31 December 2011: nil)
were pledged by the right to yields on certain
land use rights and real estate development
projects under development with a carrying
amount of RMB155,049,000 (31 December
2011: nil) and guaranteed by the Company
(note 5(23)).

As at 30 June 2012, long-term borrowings
of RMB154,000,000 (31 December 2011:
nil) were pledged by certain land use rights
under development with a carrying amount
of RMB267,288,000 (31 December 2011: nil)
and guaranteed by the Company (note 5(23)).

As at 30 June 2012, bank borrowings of
RMB2,550,000,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB2,550,000,000) were pledged by the right
to yields on certain land use rights pursuant to
the agreement of line of credit loan signed in
2003 (note 5(23)).

As at 30 June 2012, bank borrowings of
RMB232,500,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB155,000,000) were secured by primary
land development rights and its corresponding
equity and income interest (note 5(23)).
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h.

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EHMBHRFREBME )

(Continued)
(6). Other current Assets (6). HEtimEh&EE
30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—E-Zf —EF——%F
~A=Z+H +=ZRA=+—H
Prepay taxes EAEY 2 925,422 811,378
Long-term equity REFERBRERE
investments held for sale (Bt sEFE(8)(a))
(Note 5(8)(a)) 9,921 -
Total &t 935,343 811,378
(7). Available-for-sale Financial Assets (7). AItHEEHEE
30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—E—--f —E——F
~NA=+H +TZA=+—H
Available-for-sale equity At SRR T H(a)
instrument (a) 138,027 112,480
Less: Provision of avalilable-for-sale & - A ff & £ g & &
Financial assets B - =
Net ik 138,027 112,480
In which, market value of B FEESNTE
listed stocks 138,026 112,479
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . aHMBHRREABMEE @)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(7). Available-for-sale Financial Assets (7). AIEHEEMEE (&)
(Continueq)
(a) Available-for-sale equity instrument (@) FIEHE#EZTIR

30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
~A=Z+HB +=-A=+—H

Listed equity instruments _E T BB EHHE

— in Mainland China —Hr B A 3 99,065 73,961

- in Hong Kong —HEES 38,961 38,518
Unlisted equity instruments  3F E 8RS T 1 1
Total Bt 138,027 112,480
As at 30 June 2012, the carrying RZE—Z=ZF A=+
amount of the investment in the H ASEEFEENEFRE
mainland China listed company Wi £ AR
Yangguang Xinye is RMB99,065,000 HENEFEEHEBEARE
(31 December 2011: RMB73,961,000). 99,065,0007C ( =& ——
Yangguang Xinye was registered in FH+ZA=+—H: AR
Beijing, the People’'s Republic of #73,961,0007T) - 5%
China and its principle activities are ETMRAZEARKA
real estate development, leasing and Bitmm TBXBKAEE
advisory services. The ordinary shares WERE BEEMEN
of Yangguang Xinye held by the Group Tﬁf LA K 4B BE B & 3R AR 7%

amounted to 19,610,913 shares, which
accounts for 2.6% of the total ordinary
shares.

As at 30 June 2012, the carrying
amount of the investment in Hong Kong
listed company Beijing Jingneng Clean
Energy Co., Limited (“Beijing Jingneng”)
is RMB38,961,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB38,518,000). Beijing Jingneng was
registered in Beijing, the PRC and its
principal activities are gas generation
power and heating, wind power,
medium and small-sized hydropower
and other clean power services. The
ordinary shares of Beijing Jingneng held
by the Group was 28,000,000 shares,
which accounts for 0.5% of the total
ordinary shares.
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

.

EHMBHRFREBME )

(8). Long-term Equity Investments (8). REARREHRE
30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—g-—% —2——%
~A=Z+H +=ZRA=+—H
Joint ventures BEMHE
- non-listed companies (a) —3E LM AT () 272,452 286,419
Associates B i b 3
— non-listed companies (b) —3E LT R F) (o) 1,342,779 1,340,778
Subtotal NET 1,615,231 1,627,197
Less: Provision for impairment ~ J& - = HAIR & &
of long-term equity B 24
investments - -
Net FE 1,615,231 1,627,197

The Group has no significant limitation
on realization of long-term investment or

collection of investment income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . aHMBHRREABMEE @)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(8). Long-term Equity Investments (8). REIR#ERE (£)
(Continueq)
(@) Joint ventures (@ EELE
six month period
30 June 2012 ended 30 June 2012
HEZF-Cf
Z¥-Z57"A=1+H A~AZtHL~ERHE
% of Equity Net
Place of Principal Registered interest % of Voting Total Total Net Total profit/
registration  activities capital held rights held assets liabilities assets  revenue (loss)
HRILH TREILH #n/
SR £HiE HRAE % % REGE BEAR  FEE ERHL (BR)
Shenyang Jitian Reat Estate Shenyang, Property USDET 50 50 1414901 1,143995 270,906 29,312 606
Development Co., Ltd. The PRC Development 40,000,000
(“Shenyang Jitian”) BEm and sales
REEREXARAA EHEREREE
AT DEEREX])
Capital Jiaming New Town Beijing, Property RMBAK 1% 50 50 792916 597,652 195264 - (2,766)
Investment Co., Ltd. The PRC Development 200,000,000
(“Capital Jiaming”) ERm and sales
BEIEHMRERERR EHERZRHEE
ARDE (ATHE8IEH])
Huzhou Capital Rongcheng Real Huzhou, Property RMBAR® 55 55 267,950 237,988 29,962 - (38)
Estate Development Co., Ltd. The PRC Development 100,000,000
(*Huzhou Rongcheng’() T BHEREREE
A SR EZARAR
(AT HMER]) ()
Bejjing Capital Chaoyang Beijing, Project Investment, RVMBAR % 50 50 9,987 - 9,987 - -
Investment Co., Ltd. The PRC Property 10,000,000
(“Chaoyang Investment’) ERm Development and
IREEARREARAR sales
(AT IHBRE]) BHERE BHE
HERHE
Beiing Wanzhu Real Estate Beijing, Property RMBAK % 30 30 879,039 795,645 83,394 - (1,515)
Development Co., Ltd. The PRC Development 85,000,000
(“Beijing Wanzhu') (i ERm and sales
IRBERBERY EHERZREE
AREEAR (AT
[EREE]) (i)
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BE—F

——FNAZHUNAARRE (B HERZES) 2EE M BARETFT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h.

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(8). Long-term Equity Investments
(Continueq)
(a) Joint ventures (Continued)

(8).

EHMBHRFREBME )

REBRERSE (@)

(@) &EELEE)
&

Investment in joint ventures are as HedbERES W
follows: T
Net profit
adjusted
Additional  according to
31 December  investment the equity Reduction 30 June
2011 costs method By disposal 2012
—F—f iR E
+=A HEH —F-C%
=t+-H R EEE RERY A~AZ+A
Shenyang Jitian BHEEX 132,838 - (1,549) - 131,289
Capital Jiaming BEIEH 99,015 - (3,589) = 95,432
Hainan Dalecheng Real Estate BEAAEHRAEERERAR

Development Holding Ltd., (WA T8 B AL ) (i)

(“Dalecheng’) (i) 54,566 - - (54,566) -
Huzhou Rongcheng (i) N BRI () - 16,500 (1) - 16,479
Chaoyang Investment BEHRE - 5,000 ) - 4,994
Beijing Wanzhu (i I RE (i) - 25,500 (1,242) = 24,258
Total At 286,419 47,000 (6,401) (54,566) 272,452

(il

In February 2012, the Group
established Huzhou Rongcheng
and held 55% equity interests.
But according to the Articles
of Association of Huzhou
Rongcheng, the Group and
other shareholders jointly control
Huzhou Rongcheng, therefore it
has been recognised as a joint
venture.

In June 2012, the Group
acquired 30% equity interests
of Beijing Wanzhu by capital
injection. But according to the
Articles of Association of Beijing
Wanzhu, the Group and other
shareholders jointly control
Beijing Wanzhu, therefore it
has been recognised as a joint
venture.
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(8). Long-term Equity Investments

(Continueq)

(a) Joint ventures (Continued)

(ii)

In 2012, the Group signed
equity transfer agreements for
the disposal of 45% and 10%
equity interest of Dalecheng
held by Group at considerations
of RMB75,500,000 and
RMB20,000,000 respectively.
As at 30 June 2012, the
above considerations have
been received. The transfer of
45% equity interest has been
completed with the amendments
to the articles of association of
the company and the investment
income of RMB30,855,000 has
been recognised accordingly.
The carrying amount of the
10% equity interest, which
is RMB9,921,000, has been
reclassified to other current
assets (Note 5(6)) as asset
held for sale. Meanwhile, the
consideration of RMB20,000,000
has been recognised as other
payables (Note 5(21)).

103

. aHMBHRREEME @)

REBRERSE (@)

EHRMERFER
K85 F K 2 545%
MI0% AR #E % B ]
BEEWZ KB
HED N AAR
#75,500,0007T &
A R #20,000,000

7_E @i—? :E
NA=Z+RH- bt
RS E R B U

B 45% R ED B
TRREREE I
ER 5B 7K HfE
ﬁ@ulu\?Xéj‘lkﬁIL/\u_l—
AR #30,855,000
JT TJﬁ%m%Hﬂéél
RIER L&
g EEEEETEA
R #9,921,0007T 1E
ARRBEGEEESE
DEZHMREBE
E(MzxRaeG) @
BFE B AR
20,000,0007T A% 1
EESIEREMIE
NEZE (HiEh
1)) °



BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

INTERIM REPORT 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P RS MR M A

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

ZENA= A H IR (P 2 FEBARETFT)

E-F—
5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(8).

Long-term Equity Investments

(8).

REBRERSE (@)

. aHMBHRREEME @)

(Continueq)
(b) Associates Bhig i
6 month period
30 June 2012 ended 30 June 2012
HE-§-%
SB-ZEAASHE ARASHALABANR
% of Equity Net
Place of Principal Registered interest % of Voting Total Total Net Total profit/
registration  activities capital held rights held assets liabilities assets  revenue (loss)
FRIH RREILH HE/
it £33 AMEX % % HEAR ARAE  FEE ERRN  (BR)
Beijing GoldenNet Property Beijing, Property Sales RMBAR % 14 14 55,118 501 54,617 150 (87)
Investment Consultant Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Agency 5,000,000
(“GoldenNet") () ERm NEHERE
IREBREXRERAERAA
(AT [28%]) ()
Beijing Yang Guang Yuan Real Beijing, Property RMBAR % 35 35 399309 275921 123,388 23,735 (29)
Estate Development Co., Ltd. The PRC Development 72,190,000
(*Yang Guang Yuan’) plavl BHERE
TRBRREHEREARARR
#EATRIBRE])
Shenyang Capital Xinzi Real Shenyang, Property USDETL 30 30 1976914 1,364,798 612,116 36,246 (17,807)
Estate Development Co., Ltd. The PRC Development 92,500,000
(“Shenyang Xinz") B and sales
BhEEMEEXARAA FHERERHE
(AT &R E )
Tianjin Capital Xinging Real Tianjin, Property USDET 40 40 159,971 956,120 639,851 1,502 (1,570)
Estate Development Co., Ltd. The PRC Development 95,000,000
(‘Tianjin Xinging’) REM and sales
AREEHEEEERAH FHERZRHEE
(AT [KEHE])
Tianjin Capital Xinming Real Tianjin, Property USDETL 40 40 1,069,018 355717 713,301 379,515 27,987
Estate Development Co., Ltd. The PRC Development 95,000,000
(“Tianjin Xinming’) REM and sales
REEEFNAEXER AR FHERERHE
(AT [R2308])
Beijing Financial Street Beijing, Hotel Operation USDETT 59.5 34 905,481 998,543 (93,062) 96,722 (14,991)
International Hotel Co., Ltd. The PRC and Management 5,640,000
(‘Financial Street’) (i) R EERERER
tReREEREEERAR
AT [SREBE]) i)
Xi'an Xinkai Xi'an, Property USDETL 40 40 2,924,377 1,458,864 1,465,513 66,993 13,416
[kl The PRC Development 165,000,000
gl and sales
FHERERHE
Nice Grace Group Ltd. BVI Investment USDET 20 20 6 2 4 = (10)
(“Nice Grace”) EB&THE  Holding 10,000
EREEERAEAR REER
(AT [EREE])
QOutlets (China) Ltd. Hong Kong Investment USDET 20 20 381,936 380,438 1,498 - (3,694)
(‘Outlets China") B Holding 2,000,000
BERE (E)ERAR REER
(AT [R5 (P E)])
Beijing Outlets Chuangxin Beijing, Business and RMBA K 38 38 1,804 557 1,247 - (4,560)
Business Management Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Property 1,000,000
(“Outlets Chuangxin’) bla-Yiil Management
IRBREFHEERERAR PEERRDEER
(AT 18 [ 2581 )
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

. aHMBHRREEME @)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(8). Long-term Equity Investments (8). REIR#ERE (£)
(Continueq)
(b)  Associates (Continued) (b) HELEE)

0] The Group has significant impact 0] AARHEEEHERKN
on the board of the directors, which EEH MEEEAE
is responsible for determining the REZARIHBEBER
financial policies in the ordinary course T2 7 |9 B BOR SR - Bt
of business, therefore this company is NAEIW D E B E D
classified as an associate. ¥

(ii) According to the Articles of (ii) BIEER RNARER
Association, the Group holds 59.5% LEEFEEREE
equity interests of Financial Street JE59.5%H IR1E =B
both directly and in-directly and enjoys 4%k EiE - EE S
34% profit of Financial Street. The FHRIELEFEA ME
Group has no control over the board of EEHEREZRAAA
directors and such board is responsible WHEKBREPHIBUR
for determine the financial policies KRB Z AR DB
in the ordinary course of business, REERE-
therefore this company is classified as
an associate.

Investments in associates are as W EDEIRES R
follows: N
Net profit
adjusted
according to
31 December  Additional  the equity Cash  Reduction 30 June
2011 investment method dividends By disposal 2012
i R
+=A HEH F-2f
=t-B  AHHE FEn  BeRF  RERY ~AZ+A
GoldenNet 194 7,659 = (1) = = 7,648
Beiing SCJF Real Estate Agency ~ tREEIGLAERHERLE
0o, Ltd.('SCJF) (i) BBAR (TR
[£258E]) () 55 - - - (55) -
Yang Guang Yuan oh ) 42,636 - (10) - - 42,626
Shenyang Xinzi EHIE 187,591 - (6614) - - 180977
Tianjin Xinging REHE 254,156 - (1,908) - - 252248
Tianjin Xinming KEHH 270,035 - 10,781 - - 280,816
Financial Street (ii) SRADEE i) - - - - - -
X'an Xinkai BZHH 575,399 - 2,204 - - 577,693
Nice Grace EEEE 6 - 2 - - 4
Outlets China B () 1,019 - (741) - - 218
Outlets Chuangxin RIREI 2,222 - (1,783) - - 489
Total &t 1,340,778 - 2,056 - (55) 1,342,779
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(8). Long-term Equity Investments

(Continueq)

(b) Associates (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

The net assets of Financial Street are
negative due to continuous losses in
the past years. As the Group does
not have the obligation to bear the
additional losses beyond the share
that the Group should have assumed,
the Group recognise the carrying value
of the long-term equity investment
as zero other than negative. For the
six months ended 30 June 2012,
the un-recognised investment loss
amounted to RMB5,097,000 (For
the six months ended 30 June 2011:
RMB6,052,000). As at 30 June 2012,
the accumulated investment losses
that are not recognised amounted to
RMB19,184,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB14,087,000).

In year 2012, the Company disposed
49% equity interests of SCJF at a
consideration of RMB1,044,000. As at
30 June 2012, the above consideration
has been wholly received and the
transaction has completed. Investment
income of RMB989,000 (Note 11(4)(a))
has been recognised accordingly.
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. aHMBHRREEME @)

(8).

REBRERSE (@)

(b)

BeEdx(F)

(i)

(iv)

cREBEREERES
BREEERA K&
EHETEBBAEREIN
BRER ALLERER
EBREMFHEEER
AN AR D EER
EHERAREREN
REEBERLAZT -H
EZT——FKNA=F
HI1ENE A BFERER
NEEBLAXABARY
5,097,000 (# = =
ZT——H®XA=+H
WENE AR AR
6,052,00070) ' A =&
——H#XA=+8-2
FFRERMIEERX
B A AR 119,184,000
T(ZE——F+=
A=4+—B: AR
14,087,000) JT °

RZZTE——F KRQF
EEHEANCLYSE
A% HE - B HE A
R #1,044,0007T & &=
—E-—ZFKNA=T
H- Fui iR ERY
BUE BREXZER
B ERERIR B WS
A R #989,0007T (K
Ht—@)@)) -
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . aHMBHREABMEE @)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(9). Investment Properties (9). HEHEBEHE
Land use
Buildings Rights Total
FEERELY I it 1E B &5t
Cost [R(E
31 December 2011 —T——%F
+=-—A=+—H 620,512 699,043 1,319,555
Additions ARERLE N 1,818,989 41,927 1,860,916
Disposals AER R A - - -
30 June 2012 —T——®XA=+H 2,439,501 740,970 3,180,471
Accumulated Depreciation ~ Z5H#TE - #H
and Amortisation
31 December 2011 —E——%+-H
=+-8 62) (23,025) (23,087)
Depreciation AHEIET R (30) (18,477) (13,507)
Disposals REPR - - -
30 June 2012 —T——EXA=+H 92) (36,502) (36,594)
Provision for ERIER =
Impairment Loss
31 December 2011 —E——%+=FH
=4=FE = - -
Charges ZNHRHE 0 - - -
Other reductions AHERR - - -
30 June 2012 “E-—FXA=+H - - -
Net Book Value FE
30 June 2012 —E-—FxA=+H 2,439,409 704,468 3,143,877
31 December 2011 —ZT——fF
+=-A=+—H 620,450 676,018 1,296,468
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B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BFFZE) 2B EBARETT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(9).

Investment Properties (Continued)

As at 30 June 2012, the investment properties
are still under construction. The Group had
capitalised the amortisation of the land use
rights amounted to RMB13,455,000 (31
December 2011: RMB15,375,000).

As at 30 June 2012, the investment properties
including capitalisation of the borrowing
cost amounted to RMB 402,836,000 (31
December 2011: RMB78,453,000).

The capitalisation rate for the six months
ended 30 June 2012 is 9.2% (2011: 8.3%).

As at 30 June 2012, certain investment
properties with carrying amount of
RMB1,602,980,000 have been pledged as
security amounted to RMB1,466,300,000
bank facilities (31 December 2011:
RMB999,200,000) (note 5(23)(c)).

As at 30 June 2012, certain land use rights
and buildings under investment properties
with carrying amount of RMB1,015,073,000
(31 December 2011: nil) have been pledged
as security for short-term trust loans of
RMB800,000,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB800,000,000) (note5(15)).
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(9).

BRELEME (&)

RZTE——FXA=1+RH A&
ERoREEEWEMERE
PoAEEBEREZIEEER
HEMTFEREEHESEAR
#13,455,0007C F LA E A1 (=
T——F+-_A=+—H: AR
#15,375,0007T ) °

R-E——HFXA=1+H K&%&
MEHEFBEEEREREANL
B4 58 A R #402,836,0007T ( —
E——F+-A=1+—H0: AR
#78,453,0007T ) °

HIL—F——FXA=+THMA
18 5 #f - BA( & B9.2% (=
T FE:83%)°

R-TE——HFXA=1+H K&
EREHEEHETEREEER
A R¥1,602,980,0007T &) + #h
RiENEREEENEBH BT
BREERARK,466,300,000
T (ZE——F+=-A=+—8":
A R #999,200,0007t) (M &
(23)(0)) °

RZE—Z—FXNA=Z+H K&
EREMEHETAEREER
A AR #1,015,073,0007T (=&
——&F+ZA=+—H:\E)D
EEREEMEF WHAR A
BT RRREERIGEER
B AR #¥800,000,0007T (=%
——F+-A=+—H: ARK
800,000,0007t) (MsEF(15)) °
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

h. aHMBHRREEME @)

(10). Fixed Assets (10). BIE& &
Motor Office
Buildings Vehicles  Equipment Total
EER
BEY EHTA WARE i
Cost RE

31 December 2011 —E——f+-R=1+—H 674,266 51,300 37,512 763,078
Additions ARHEIEE N = 506 2,168 2,674
Disposals AER D - (330) (140) 470)
30 June 2012 —E——FXA=1H 674,266 51,476 39,540 765,282

Accumulated Depreciation Rt E
31 December 2011 —E——F#+ZRA=1+—H (208,749) (27,937) (27,476) (262,162)
Depreciation AHFTR (13,793) (4,233) (2,605) (20,631)
Disposal AE R D - = 466 466
30 June 2012 el S = (220,542) (32,170) (29,615) (282,327)

Provision for impairment loss ~ JFlfE %
31 December 2011 —E——%+ZR=1—H = - = =
Charges AHE - - - -
30 June 2012 “E-—_%XA=+H = - - =

Net Book Value A

30 June 2012 —E-—#"A=1+H 453,724 19,306 9,925 482 955
31 December 2011 —2——%+-fA=1—H 467,517 23,363 10,036 500,916

As at 30 June 2012, certain buildings with
a carrying amount of RMB392,171,000 (a
cost of RMB601,431,000) (31 December
2011: a carrying amount of RMB405,094,000
(a cost of RMB601,431,000)) have been
pledged as security for long-term borrowings
of RMB364,019,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB393,234,000) (note 5(23)(c)).
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B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BHFZHE) 2BEBARETT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(10).

(11).

Fixed Assets (Continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2012,
depreciation expense charged in cost of
sales amounted to RMB12,919,000 and
in administrative expenses amounted to
RMB7,712,000 (For the six months ended
30 June 2011: RMB13,707,000 and
RMB7,777,000).

Intangible Assets

. aHMBRREEME @)

(10). BIE& & (&)

HE-_ZTZ——F#~A=Z+AH1L
ANEABHEFAZEENEAR
EREAMNTEERS A A
AR #12.919,0007T M A B ¥
7,712,000 (BEZE =T ——F <
BR=+HIEAEABHE: AR
13,707,0007CF A R #7,777,000
JL) °

(11). EREE

Original 31 December Transfer 30 June Accumulative
cost 2011 Amortisation out 2012  amortisation
—E——-f
+ZA —F-If
R &H Er=f A AfiEY AAZ+H  RAEHE
Land use rights + 3 A4 52,283 42,697 (523) - 42,174 (10,109)

For the six months ended 30 June 2012, the
amortisation of intangible assets amounted
to RMB523,000 (For the six months ended
30 June 2011: RMB523,000) has been
recognised in profit and loss for the current
period.

As at 30 June 2012, land use rights with a
carrying amount of RMB42,174,000 (a cost
of RMB52,283,000) (31 December 2011: a
carrying amount of RMB42,697,000 (a cost
of RMB52,283,000)) have been pledged
as security for long-term borrowings of
RMB364,019,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB393,234,000) (note 5(23)(c)).
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EAME BELEENHHSHE
A AN R ®523,000 (BLEZF
——FXA=TRHXMEABHRE
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HiiR e -

RZE——FXA=Z+H8 FE
B ANERA2 174,000 ([R1E A
AR #52 283,0007T ) K + i {#
AE(ZZ2—F+_-_A=+—
H % E A AR K42,697,00070
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BEFEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . aHMBHREABMEE @)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(12). Long-term receivables (note 7(4)(c)) (12). REAEWE (Mt (4)(c))
30 June 31 December
2012 2011
- =t ek 3 —E——F
~NA=+H +ZA=+—H
Receivables from associates JIE LS B 4 X R 1 SR 3K 449,327 603,877
Receivables from joint ventures B A & A & 2 &K 237,826 220,290
Total A&t 687,153 824,167
(13). Other non-current assets (13). HithIEmEE E
30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—E-—-f —E——F
~NA=E+H TZHA=+—H
Prepayment of investment TEREEEEHE TER
property development 172,770 172,770
(14). Provisions for impairment of assets (14). EERE#E®E
Reductions
AHED
31 December Through Through 30 June
2011 Additions reversal  realization 2012
5§
+ZB “F-2%
Sar=[g A =1c| ##H A~A=TH
Provisions of bad debts Including: BRER
including: Hr:
account receivables & U B X 3,844 = - = 3,844
other receivables E el 39,426 14,240 = = 53,666
Total Azt 43270 14,240 = = 57,510
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BHE—F

5.

——FENA=FHUNEAARRE (BHERZES) 2 EE L BARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. aHMBHRREEME @)

(Continued)
(15). Short-term borrowings (15). IBHIfE R
30 June 31 December
Currency 2012 2011
—E——%F
—EFE-°F +=A
“iE SNA=+H =+—H
Trust loans(a) EEER @) RMB AR ¥ 1,300,000 1,200,000
Bank loans(b) fEﬁ EEN() RMB AR ¥ 70,000 60,000
Total AFr RMB A R #& 1,370,000 1,260,000
(@) Trust loans (@) ISFtE

As at 30 June 2012, short-term
borrowings of RMB800,000,000 (31
December 2011: RMB800,000,000)
are secured by buildings under
investment properties and guaranteed
by the Company (31 December 2011:
properties held for sale) (note 5(9)).

As at 30 June 2012, short-term
borrowings of RMB100,000,000 (31
December 2011: nil) are secured by
right to yields on certain land use rights

RZE——F A=+
H - EHERARE
800,000,0007T ( =& ——
F+-_A=+—H: AR
#800,000,0007T ) & M A
EEUNKREHRIE (=
T——F+_AF=+—
H HABERMFPHEER
ZYIEREKT THEAR
Al BT RAREEEREA
(MEEEFR©Q)) °

\F\_f__i/‘\ﬂi‘f’

CTHRBHERARE
TO0,000,000TE (72——
F+ZA=+t—H: &)X

and real estate development projects AR EFARIRERK
under development and guaranteed by AR R A M B A K AR

the Company (note 5(5)).

P53 EE P % 1R B W as i 1
RER LHARALSF

NEREEEREA (M
F(B)) -
As at 30 June 2012, short-term E’\\: ——FRNA=+

borrowings of RMB400,000,000 (31
December 2011: nil) are secured by the
share of Beijing Shangyi held by the
Group.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(15). Short-term borrowings (Continued)

(b)

Bank loans

As at 30 June 2012, short-term
borrowings of RMB10,000,000 (31
December 2011: nil) are trust loans
acquired by the Group .

As at 30 June 2012, short-term
borrowings of RMB60,000,000 (31
December 2011: RMB60,000,000) are
guaranteed by the Company.

As at 30 June 2012, the weighted
average interest rate of short-term loan
is 11.7%. (30 June 2011: 6.8 %).

(16). Accounts payable

The aging analysis of accounts payable is as

h. aHMBHRREEME @)

(15). FEHEAfE =X (&)

(b) ERITER
R-_E——®FX/B=+
H RHERARE

10,000,000T (=& — —
F+-_/F=+—8 &)
ZEAEERSENERE

Eo
DA ©

N-zm——&FExXxA=+
H EHERARE
60,000,0007C (=& — —
F+_-_A=+—8:
60,000,000t ) EHAA A
BFRRIEREA

N-—zm——&FExXxA=+
B SHE R miEF
BHEFRE11.7% (B =
T—-—FXA=Z+AH:
6.8%) °

(16). FEITERFX
FEATBE 2R IR H A BE B HAM R e

follows: N
30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—E—ZfF —E——F
~A=Z+B +=-RA=+—H
Within 1 year —F R 2,470,094 2,752,337
Over 1 year —F L 118,167 61,251
Total & 5F 2,588,261 2,813,588

113



BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P RS AR M A

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED L. EHMBHREREEME @)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(17). Advances from customers (17). TEIFIE

30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—E-Zf —T——F
~A=Z+HB +=-ZRA=+—H

Advances from sales of properties [ %78 B 78 Ut 3%

under development 8,275,338 7,754,766
Hotel deposits HIERE 13,113 13,988
Total &t 8,288,451 7,768,754
Advances from customers are amounts MEEEBKREBETEZEARAEE
received from customers for properties sold, HBoEwEMBEEENTERE
but the risks and rewards of the properties o ERIEE MARRMER - Kb
have not been transferred to the customers. BEUT A o

114



HRIBERGERAR —ZT——FhHRE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g e

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BEFEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . aHMBHREABMEE @)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(18). Employee benefits payable (18). FE 1+ & T % B
Current Current
31 December period period 30 June
2011 additions reductions 2012
—F——f —3-f

+ZR=+-H AR m *HEHY  AR=TH

Wages and salaries, bonuses,

T% R RHENABH

(19).

allowances and subsidies 104,451 103,356 (161,022) 46,785
Staff welfare BIGHNE 423 4,291 (4,567) 147
Social security contributions - & (R & 2,093 22, 477 (20,709) 3,861
Including: Medical insurance  E# : BERK & 756 6,103 (5,549) 1,310

Basic pensions EXEEZRR 889 11,979 (9,871) 2,997
Annuity FeHE 368 2,627 (3,839) (844)
Unemployment KERBE
insurance 30 789 (664) 155
Work injury IG6RRE
insurance 27 449 (383) 93
Maternity insurance EERBE 23 530 (403) 150
Housing funds FELES 617 6,438 (5,660) 1,395
Labour union funds and IeKBNBIHELE

employee education funds 4,706 1,905 (1,230) 5,381
Director’s emoluments EEHS 8,868 5,575 (405) 14,038
Other Hity 197 210 (241) 166
Total B 121,355 144,252 (193,834) 71,773
Taxes payable (19). EXHE

30 June 31 December

2012 2011

—F-°f% —T——F

~NA=+H +ZA=+—H

Enterprise income tax payable JERZ > ZEFTIR AR 501,435 496,294
Land appreciation tax payable JE X T IR (E 1,244,546 1,095,912
Business tax payable JEAZ & EER 134,781 125,286
Others H Aty 16,771 23,441
Total A&t 1,897,533 1,740,933
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B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BFFZE) 2B EBARETT)

5.

(20). Dividends payables

(20). F& TRz 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED L. EHUMBHREREEME @)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—g-—% —2——%
~NA=+H T+ZA=+—H
Reco Ziyang Pte Ltd. MK RGILAKRESR
(“Reco Ziyang”) BRAaE (ATRE
[T IR R ) 93,913 220,839
Reco Camellia Pte Ltd. Reco Camellia Pte Ltd.
(“Reco Camellia”) (AT 78
[Reco Camellia ] ) - 294,042
Reco Hibiscus Pte Ltd. Reco Hibiscus Pte Ltd.
(“Reco Hibiscus”) (AT 78
[Reco Hibiscus J ) 271,476 285,764
Sunshine Comprehensive A& E 17,545 8,535
Capital Group EEIES: 115,082 55,986
China Development Finance F & @A R
Limited Corporation - RE/NC] - 14,000
Beijing Jiayuan Hongye IREREERE
Investment Management Ltd ERERAF - 5,581
Capital Technology ER-IES%51 32,681 —
Capital Development BAIZER 22,562 -
Total CE 553,259 884,747
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED L. EHMBHREREEME @)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(21). Other payables (21). HE BT

30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—F-=F —E——F
~NA=+H +ZA=+—H©
Payables to associates JE - Bt & X R SR 3K 850,371 1,160,318
Payables to joint ventures E & & RRIERK - 7,800
Collection of deeds and REZBRREEES
maintenance funds on behalf of
government 56,042 98,844
Guarantee for tendering KIZRES 27,699 23,948
Consideration payable for acquire  FE B Yt ¥ £ M g e &
subsidiaries from Yangguang K (HEEE@)T)
Xinye (note7(4)(f) 185,770 185,770
Consideration payable for FEF D ERAR R AR
purchase shares in subsidiaries EEN ()
from non-controlling interests
shareholders (a) 120,372 -
Loans due to non-controlling FRADERE
interests shareholders of B3 (b)
subsidiaries (b) 132,370 135,383
Deposits from customers BERI® 120,950 43,429
Accounts payables for daily FETABEETRK
operations 330,030 402,879
Subsidiaries’ payable to FRABENBGIFF
Yangguang Xinye TR R - 605,734
Advance for obtaining equity T8 U AR 4 8 5 K
interest (note 5(8)(a)) (MIzEF(8)(@a)) 20,000 —
Subsidiaries’ payable to Beijing FRAEMNILREHE
Hongcheng Zhanye Real XEHERERR
Estate Development Co., Ltd. NCIR@Y N =
(“Hongcheng Zhanye”) [RBEFE]) ERK - 19,285
Borrowings from other entities (c)  FEft H {th & & #F
B (c) 183,024 183,024
Others Hity 99,476 35,536
Total A&t 2,126,104 2,901,950
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r—F—

5.

ZENA= A H IR (BRI 2 FE L BARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(21). Other payables (Continued)

(a)

As at 30 June 2012, the Group
purchased 45% equity interest of
Chengdu Xinzi from Reco Ziyang. The
consideration of the transaction is
RMB120,372,000, which has not yet
been paid (note 5(27)).

As at 30 June 2012, loans and related
interests borrowed from non-controlling
interest shareholders of subsidiaries
are as follows: loan provided by Reco
Ziyang to Chengdu Xinzi amounted
to RMB56,714,000, with interest rate
of 5.31%, have no fixed maturity date
and is unsecured and unguaranteed;
loans provided by Beijing Huitian Weiye
investment management Co. Ltd.
(“Beijing Huitian Weiye”) to Shangbodi
amounted to RMB75,656,000 with no
fixed maturity date and is unsecured
and unguaranteed, the interest rate is
10% higher than the interest rate of
bank borrowings of the same period as
determined by PBOC .

The interest rate of the payable is
30% higher than the interest rate of
bank borrowings of the same period,
as determined by PBOC and the
principal is due for repayment before 30
November 2012.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BEFEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(22). Current portion of non-current
liabilities

. aHMBRREEME @)

(22). —FNEHPMFERBER

30 June 31 December
Currency 2012 2011
—T——fF
—5-°% +=A
#iE ~A=+H =+—H
Long-term borrowings due —F RN EIH /K 5

within one year(a) fEx(a) RMB AR #& 3,918,680 3,375,640

Borrowings due within one  —F R Z| #8722 A
year from subsidiaries(p) DH IR R &K (o) USD =7t - 205,882
Total A&t RMB AR 3,918,680 3,581,522

(@) Long-term borrowings due within one
year of the Group is disclosed in note
5(23).

(b) As at 31 December 2011, borrowings
of subsidiaries from non-controlling
interestes consist of Tianjin Xinchuang
from Reco Ziyang and the borrowings
of Sunshine City from Reco Camellia.
Tianjin Xinchuang have two borrowings
with principals and interests rates
of USD12,375,000 and 6.336%,
and USD17,300,000 and 6.633%
respectively; the principal and interest
rate of Sunshine City’s borrowing is
USDS,000,000 and 6.336%. As at 30
June 2012, all borrowings have been
repaid.
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R ——F+ = A
—t+t—HB FRALVERK
FRAG KA KZEF AR 7 0
W25 MG Y P Reco
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FAIMEE K A& A
& 45 Bl £12,375,0003 7T
#6.336% 12.17,300,0003
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-F——FAA=+AULNEABE (BERZESN 2EELHBNREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.

(Continued)

(23). Long-term borrowings

(23). REAfERK

. aHMBHRREEME @)

30 June 31 December

Currency 2012 2011
—E——%F
—F--F +=A
¥#E ~HA=+H =+—H
Credit loans(a) =R1E () RMB A R 28,000 30,000
Secured loans: ERER HP:
— Guaranteed (b) —{R#E (b) RMB A R 2,145,000 35,000
USD T 110,664 110,193
— Mortgaged (c) — K48 (c) RMB AR®  5332,805 4,498,880
USD =7t 184,019 183,234
~ Pledged (d) — & (d) RMB AR® 2,550,000 2,550,000
~ Trust(e) — (o) RMB AR¥ 2,075,000 1,657,620
— Guaranteed, — R - HH T
mortgaged (f) RMB AR ¥ 254,000 —
— Guaranteed, — R - E ()
pledged(g) RMB A R 1,265,000 310,000
Subtotal /INEF 13,944,578 9,374,927
Less: Long-term B —FARR RS
borrowings due B HAp:
within one year:
Credit loans (a) = AEK() (3,000) (2,000)
Secured loans: ERER  HAp:
— Guaranteed (b) —RFE(b) RMB A R (38,000) (35,000)
— Mortgaged (c) —## () RMB A R (1,737,480) (731,020)
— Pledged (d) —E#H(d) RMB A R¥& (1,000,000)  (1,000,000)
— Trust(e) —{55t(e) RMB A R (975,200)  (1,607,620)
- Guaranteed, — R~ T
mortgaged (f) RMB A R (20,000) =
- Guaranteed, — R - EH#(9)
pledged(q) RMB A R (145,000) =
Subtotal /N (3,918,680)  (3,375,640)
Net long-term R
borrowings 10,025,898 5,999,287
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(23). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

As at 30 June 2012, long-term borrowings
include:

(a)

(b)

Credit loans

As at 30 June 2012, credit loan of
RMB28,000,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB30,000,000) was obtained by the
Group. The interest is payable every 3
months and the principal is payable by
installment before 2016. As principal of
RMB3,000,000 should be paid before
9 January 2013, such amount was
classified as current liability.

Guaranteed loans

As at 30 June 2012, RMB and USD
guaranteed loans amounted to
RMB2,255,664,000 (31 December
2011: RMB145,193,000) were
guaranteed by the Company. The
interests are payable every 3 months
and the principal is due for repayment
by installment before May 2014. As
principal of RMB35,000,000 should
be repaid before 30 March 2013 and
principal of RMB3,000,000 should
be repaid before 27 April 2013, such
amounts were classified as current
liability.
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(23). REAfERK (&)
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BHFZHE) 2BEBARETT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(23). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(c)

Mortgaged loans

As at 30 June 2012, bank borrowings
of RMB3,218,140,000 (31 December
2011: RMB999,200,000) were secured
by land use rights under development
costs (note 5(5)) and land use rights
and building under investment
properties (note 5(9)). The interests
are payable every 3 months and the
principal is due for repayment by
installment before November 2021.
As principal of RMB1,384,340,000
should be repaid before 30 June 2013,
such amount was classified as current
liability.

As at 30 June 2012, bank borrowings
of RMB1,934,755,000 (31 December
2011: RMB3,189,680,000) were
secured by right to yields on
certain land use rights and real
estate development projects under
development of the subsidiaries of
the Company (note 5(5)). The interest
is payable every 3 months and the
principal is due for repayment by
installment before 2015. As principal of
RMB323,140,000 is due for repayment
before 30 June 2013, such amount was
classified as current liabilities.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FXNAZFHIENEABE (BEFSZH) 2BELBARKETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED L. e BHREREEME @)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(23). REAfERK (&)

(23). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Mortgaged loans (Continued)

As at 30 June 2012, RMB and
USD bank borrowings amounted to
RMB364,019,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB393,234,000) were secured by
buildings (note5(10)) and land use
rights in intangible assets (note5(11))
of the subsidiaries of the Company.
The interest of the principal of
RMB180,000,000 are payable every
3 months and the principal is due for
repayment by installment before 28
January 2018. As RMB30,000,000 is
due for repayment on 28 January 2013,
such amount is classified as current
liability, the interest rate of the USD
long-term loan of RMB184,019,000
is set at 1.8% above the Libor, and
the principal is due for repayment by
installment before 30 March 2014.

Pledged loans

As at 30 June 2012, bank borrowings
of RMB2,550,000,000 (31 December
2011: RMB2,550,000,000) were
secured by rights to yields on certain
land use rights (gains on the sales of
land use rights or other profit obtained
from the related land use rights) (note
5(5)) pursuant to the agreement of
line of credit loan signed in 2003. The
interests are payable every 3 months
and the principal is due for repayment
by installment before 2014. As principal
of RMB1,000,000,000 should be paid
by installment before 30 June 2013,
which is classified as current liability.
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BE—F——

5.

FNA=1HIENMEA R (BRI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(23). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(e)

Trust loans

As at 30 June 2012, long-term
borrowings of RMB800,000,000 (31
December 2011: RMB500,000,000)
were secured by the Company’s other
receivables due from subsidiaries. The
Company provides guarantee on the
return of these receivables, and such
receivables due from subsidiaries were
offset in the consolidated financial
statement. The interest for principal
of RMB300,000,000 is payable every
3 months at fixed rate of 14.5% per
annum. The principal should be repaid
before September 2013. The interest
for principal of RMB500,000,000 is
payable every 3 months at fixed rate of
9.8% per annum, the principal should
be repaid before March 2014.

As at 30 June 2012, long-term
borrowings of RMB825,000,000 (31
December 2011: RMB825,000,000)
was secured by 95% equity interest of
Outlets Guangdong held by the Group.
Interests are payable every 3 months.
The principal is due for repayment by
August 2012, such amount is classified
as current liability.
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BEFEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED L. e BHREREEME @)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(23). REAfERK (&)

(23). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Trust loans (Continued)

As at 30 June 2012, long-term
borrowings of RMB450,000,000 (31
December 2011: RMB50,000,000)
were guaranteed by Company. Interests
are payable every 3 months. As
principal of RMB100,000 should be
repaid on 11 October 2012, principal
of RMB100,000 should be repaid
on 11 April 2013, and principal of
RMB150,000,000 is due for repayment
on 15 June 2013. Therefore, such
amounts were classified as current
liability.

Guaranteed and mortgaged loans

As at 30 June 2012, the guaranteed
and mortgaged loans of the Group
amounted to RMB254,000,000
(31 December 2011: nil). Of which,
RMB100,000,000 (31 December 2011:
nil) was guaranteed by the Company
and was secured by land use rights
under development costs (note5(5))
of the subsidiaries of the Company;
RMB154,000,000 (31 December 2011:
nil) was guaranteed by the subsidiaries
and secured by land use rights
under development costs (note5(5))
of the subsidiaries. As principal of
RMB10,000,000 should be repaid
on 12 September 2012, principal of
RMB10,000,000 should be repaid on
12 March 2013. Thus such amounts
were classified as current liabilities. The
other amount of principal is due for
repayment by installment before 2014.
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BE—F——

5.

FNA=1HIENMEA R (BRI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(23). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(9)

Guaranteed and pledged loans

As at 30 June 2012, the guaranteed
and pledged loans of the Group
amounted to RMB1,265,000,000 (31
December 2011: RMB310,000,000).
Of which, RMB232,500,000 (31
December 2011: RMB155,000,000)
was guaranteed by the Company,
RMB232,500,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB155,000,000) was secured by
the rights and gains of primary land
development projects (note5(5)). The
interests are payable every 3 months
and the principal is due for repayment
by installment before May 2017;
RMB800,000,000 (31 December 2011:
nil) was guaranteed by the Company
and secured by the equity interest of
Qingdao and Yantai Companies which
acquired by the Group. As principal
of RMB40,000,000 should be repaid
on 28 February 2013, principal of
RMB105,000,000 should be repaid on
27 June 20183. Therefore such amounts
were classified as current liabilities. The
other amount of principal is due for
repayment by installment before March
2017.

As at 30 June 2012, the weighted
average interest rate of long-term loan
is 7.4%. (31 December 2011: 6.6%).
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HBE—F——

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(24). Debentures payable

EAA=FELA B (REHEA - 2 EE T BARETFIT)

. aHMBRREEME @)

(24). Bt RS

31 December 30 June

2011 Additions Reductions 2012

5 —5-Cf

+-A=t+-H ARERE AN KR D ~A=+H

Corporate Bonds NEEH 2,134,974 = 2,137,901

(a)

According to the Document Number
764 (2009) “Approval of corporate
bond public issuance by Beijing Capital
Land Limited” released by China
Securities Regulatory Commission on
10 August 2009, the Company was
authorised to publicly issue domestic
corporate bonds of no more than
RMB1,800,000,000.

The Company issued RMB1,000,000,000
corporate bond on September 24, 2009,
the proceeds net of issuance costs is
RMB986,000,000. The bond carries a
fixed interest rate of 6.5%, which will be
paid annually. The maturity period of the
bond is 5 years, the principal and the
interest of the last period is repayable
on the maturity date. Of the fund raised,
RMB200,000,000 was used to repay the
bank loan due to China Development
Bank. The remaining proceeds are used
for property development purposes.
Capital Group provides unconditional and
irrevocable joint liability guarantees for
the bond over the period of issuance and
180 days after the maturity date.

127

(a)

R-ZEZEAFNA+E
VNN TH&Z Bl EEeE
5 £7 7] [2000]764% (B8R
ZEBRIBEEROMBERA
AARBETARESH
18)  HEARRFELEAR
AEITHETBRREAREK
1,800,000,0007T &9 48 A1 2
RAEZ o

RZZEZAFNALA=-+IT
H ARRAIETARE
1,000,000,0007T 2 A
& % - 0 B 8 BF & 38 3
TEBRE ARAER
WEEHFEABARE
986,000,0007T ° #% & % &f
PR A5F  IRABFIZFE
g iiﬂ%z%.es%'
FAB— Ik BH— >A|§E
1§E$%I§H X 18—

IS $/A%E§$EP/\
R #200,000,0007T B AME
Elzﬁﬁﬂ?fﬁfﬂﬁ‘* |
BHESAUBRARR
=Rl R I/N Tﬁ%ﬂa%
Bl BRI FEHME T
HAH#180B AN RUAE
B ST REBER



BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

INTERIM REPORT 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P RS AR M A

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——

5.

FNA=1HIENMEA R (BRI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(24). Debentures payable (Continued)

(b)

On 14 February 2011, the Group’s
wholly owned subsidiary BECL
issued corporate bonds amounted
to RMB1,150,000,000, and the
proceeds net of issuance costs were
RMB1,141,229,000. The bond carries a
fixed annual interest rate of 4.75% with
a maturity period of 3 years, and the
interest will be paid every six months.
The principle will be fully repayable on
the maturity date. The bond was raised
for the investment of overseas property
companies and for supplement of the
liquidity of the Group. The Company
provided guarantees for the repayment

DB RBARETFT)

. aHMBRREEME @)

(24). Bt ES (&)

(0)
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pil

of both the principles and interests. A) & o Pl R H
PiN/N 7 Eyﬂf%$ SEEMN
REAERRHBEETEM
REBEEIR -
(25). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax (25). EEFTEHEENERE
liabilities
(a) Deferred tax assets before (@) FEIXEWETHESHE
offsetting =
30 June 2012 31 December 2011
—_E-"fR”R=t+H —Z——&+ZA=T—H
Taxable Taxable
Deferred tax temporary Deferred Temporary
assets differences tax assets Differences
B QEE BT k%l
REREE TRHER EHEE TRHU=R
Provision for asset EEREEE
impairment 11,836 47,344 8,276 33,104
Accrued salaries and BRRIEREAM
other cost expenses MAE A 115,144 460,576 75,580 302,320
Accumulated losses 2 E#E 70,403 281,612 66,124 264,496
Internal unrealized EEAHBRERFE
profits elimination 102,289 409,156 67,440 269,760
Total CH) 299,672 1,198,688 217,420 869,680
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BEFEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(25). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities (Continued)

(a)

Deferred tax assets before
offsetting (Continued)

As at 30 June 2012, the Group has
not recognised deferred tax assets
of RMB393,653,000 (31 December
2011: RMB414,979,000) in respect
of deductible losses amounting to
RMB98,413,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB103,745,000), which will be
expired as follows:

. aHMBRREEME @)

(25). IEEFRSHEEMER (&)

(@) KREWHMWETEFRSHE
E(E)

RZE—ZF A=+
B AEBEKRE A EKIDES
B A R #393,653,0007T
(ZF—F+=RA=+—
H: AR#414,979,000
7T ) R IEE AR LEFT SR
& E AR #98,413,0007C
(ZB—F+=ZA=*4—
H: AR#103,745,000
J0) o Ll KA 1B 2 B

HBE M :

30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—_E—Zf —E——F
~NA=+H +Z-A=+—H©
Within 1 year —F R 17,516 31,194
Between 1 to 2 years —H| = F 33,780 8,445
Between 2 to 3 years —RH=4F 47,936 80,793
Between 3 to 4 years =H|mE 54,753 55,147
Over 4 years MEA 239,668 239,400
Total B&F 393,653 414,979
As at 30 June 2012, the Group has N ——%+ = A
not recognised deferred tax assets of =+t—H XEEBE XY

RMB2,542,000 (31 December 2011: EEREBEBXAR

RMB2,542,000) in respect of deductible
losses amounting to RMB10,166,000
(81 December 2011: RMB10,166,000).
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B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BHFZHE) 2BEBARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . EHMBHRFEBMEE 2

5.

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(25). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax (25). IRIEFTBHEENERE (£)

liabilities (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities before

(b) KREWMHMWELEFMFEHE

offsetting &
30 June 2012 31 December 2011
ZE-"fR”R=t+H —2——F+-_fA=1—H
Taxable Taxable
Deferred tax temporary Deferred tax Temporary
liabilities differences liabilities Differences
413 & 4%t i3 FE A
fEHat YURMEE AGHERE  ERUEZR
Change in fair value of RHESHEE
available-for-sale AABEEED
financial assets 14,693 58,772 8,305 33,225
Changes in fair valug of S A EHMIER—
properties under business ¥ T % A 4
combination achieved in
stages 103,852 415,408 140,248 560,992
Capitalised interest BREH S 49,688 198,752 23,004 92,016
Total CH) 168,233 672,932 171,557 686,233
(c)  The net balances of deferred tax assets (c) HEHBEMNELEMEHEE
and liabilities after offsetting are as MIRLEFTS B EIFFET
follows: REATR
30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—g--% —E-—F
~AA=+HA +ZHA=+—H
Deferred tax assets, net EIEFTSTH B EFRE 255,306 188,913
Deferred tax liabilities, net — EEFTEF B & /F5E 123,867 143,050
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BEFEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . aHMBHREABMEE @)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(26). Share Capital (26). BE A&
Number of Share
shares Capital
B Bg A&
Registered, issued and EBEITRBRRA:
fully paid:
as at 30 June 2012 AN ——
~NHAH=1+H 2,027,960 2,027,960
Registered, issued and EBEITRBRERA:
fully paid:
as at 31 December 2011 R-E——F
+=-—A=+—H 2,027,960 2,027,960
(27). Capital surplus (27). EXNE
31 December 30 June
2011 Additions Reductions 2012
—E——F —E-Zf
+-A=1+—-H ARERE AN AER D ~AB=Z+H
Capital premium (a) BARE @) 925,266 - (102,875) 822,391
Other capital surplus, HthBARRE

including: Change in fair value B7&: AIEHESBEER
of available-for-sale financial /A BEEE

assets 24,918 19,160 - 44,078
Land Appreciation Tax BRARGERETH

compensated by promoter 2 {EH 35,974 - - 35,974
Fair value appreciation of ATERNEEAH

previously held interest in RHEEHIRA

a business combination EBEEESS

achieved in stages 95,538 - (51,590) 43,948
Total &t 1,081,696 19,160 (154,465) 946,391
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B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BHFZHE) 2BEBARETT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(27). Capital surplus (Continued)

. aHMBRREEME @)

(27). EXRQE (#)

31 December 30 June
2010 Additions Reductions 2011
—2-ZF —2——F
+-A=t+-8 A A#RL NA=TA
Capital premium (b) B AH B (b) 1,028,215 - (48,867) 979,348
Other capital surplus, HERRRE:
including: Change in fair value B3%: Al ft K& & B E
of available-for-sale financial A7t EEEE
assets 74,258 - (25,151) 49,107
Land Appreciation Tax BRARERBELH
compensated by promoter ~ EETT 35,974 = = 35,974
Fair value appreciation of AHERMNCEAH
previously held interest in EREBIDAR
a business combination EEEESS
achieved in stages 95,538 - - 95,538
Total A&t 1,233,985 - (74,018) 1,159,967
(@) In January 2012, the Group entered @ RZE—=—F—H &

into a equity transfer agreement with
Recosia China Pte Ltd (“Recosia”) to
purchase 100% equity interest of Reco
Camellia held by Recosia, at a total
consideration of RMB340,547,000.
After the transaction, the Group
acquired 50% equity interest of its
subsidiary Sunshine City held by
Reco Camellia. Reco Camellia did not
engage in any other business except
for 50% share holding of Sunshine City.
The Group recognised a decrease in
capital surplus of RMB104,470,000
according to the difference between
the newly acquired long-term equity
investment and the entitled net assets
calculating continuously from the
date of acquisition. Sunshine City is
wholly owned by the Group after the
transaction.
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BE—F——FXNAZFHIENEABE (BEFSZH) 2BELBARKETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED L. e BHREREEME @)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(27). Capital surplus (Continued) (27). BERNE (£&)

(a)

(Continued)

In January 2012, the Group entered
into a equity transfer agreement with
Reco Ziyang to purchase 45% equity
interest of Chengdu Xinzi, at a total
consideration of RMB120,372,000.
The Group recognised an increase
in capital surplus of RMB1,595,000
according to the difference between
the newly acquired long term equity
investment and the entitled net assets
calculating continuously from the
date of acquisition. Chendu Xinzi is
wholly owned by the Group after the
transaction. As at 30 June 2012, the
equity transfer registration has been
completed, but the consideration has
not yet been paid (note 5(21)(b)).

In April 2011, the Group entered into
a equity transfer agreement with AG
BCL, LLC to purchase 100% equity
interest of AG Wuxi Residential SRL
(“AG Wuxi”) held by AG BCL, LLC, at a
total consideration of USD16,000,000.
After the transaction, the Group
acquired 40% equity interest of its
subsidiary Capital Jiangsu held by
AG Wuxi. AG Wuxi did not engage in
any other business except for 40%
share holding of Capital Jiangsu.
The Group recognised a decrease in
capital surplus of RMB48,867,000
according to the difference between
the newly acquired long term equity
investment and the entitled net assets
calculating continuously from the
date of acquisition. Capital Jiangsu is
wholly owned by the Group after the
transaction.
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N_T——F— H*M%
B B AN 3 2205 2% B AR b
BE R R E%ET%MWBZ
KEMBEAENKETE
A5% M) IR - AR BB /Y
HE A ARE120,372,000
T HBERSHIEN
R EA AR R 1R B B e PR ST 3
EREPATEEZETA
AIEBERARBFE
EMFEEMBEZIEN
ER AT AMHMBR
FHPHNELARBARE
1,595,0007C ° #% X % 5t X,
B -KEHEKABAEE
MEEFRAI-BHE_F
4¢/\ﬂ ‘1‘5 Fat
RIER 5B e i &
FE BREEZIHER
A (MR (21)(0)) ©

R_E——FWMA A&
B EAG BCL' LLCEEK
BEZHGZE BE TAG
BCL, LLCH A HAG Wuxi
Redisential SRL (LA 78
[AG Wuxil) 100% &%
B-ARARBENEHERE
7£16,000,0007C * /&K & F
HEE®TAG Wuxitys &
RAEEFRRIEEE
A0%HM B E-ZHBE RS

FTES MR ERER & R
1z BR BT 42 15 AR LE 51140% 5T
EEEZETAAIEAMA
R EENFEED
B EMER AET A
HHERERPOERRE
A R #48,867,0007T ° 7%
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ZENA= A H IR (BRI 2 FE L BARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(27). Capital surplus (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

In August 2011, the Group entered
into a equity transfer agreement with
Beijing Chengxin Qiankun Investment
Company (“Beijing Chengxin
Qiankun”) to purchase 31.04%
equity of Beijing Shangyi held by
Beijing Chengxin Qiankun at a total
consideration of RMB47,500,000.
The Group recognised a decrease in
capital surplus of RMB70,490,000
according to the difference between
the newly acquired long-term equity
investment and the entitled net assets
calculating continuously from the
date of acquisition. Beijing Shangyi is
wholly owned by the Group after the
transaction.

In December 2011, the Group sold
49% equity interest of Shangbodi,
which was wholly owned by the Group,
to Beijing Huitian Weiye at a total
consideration of RMB29,301,000.
The Group recognised a decrease in
capital surplus of RMB16,327,000,
according to the difference between
the consideration and the entitled
net assets of Shangbodi. After the
transaction, the Group holds 51%
equity interest of Shangbodi and have
the control over Shangbodi.
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(27). EXRE (8)

(0)

(&

W_ZT——F N\ K&
BE Rl Ee i E
EEAE (ATEIMER
BlEkH] ) EERES
EHhaz BETIERH
EuEAEAENMmMIER
P E31.04%H) I #E - A
REENHEARARK
47,500,0007C ' Z BB B
SHBENRPRELE
B BT R R L BIET B
EEZEETAREHBERR
REETENFEENE
ZHEMERE FHETEH
R ERPHERAREA
R #70,409,0007C ° 3% &
SRR E tEEEKA
AEEHNEZETRAE

RZE——F+=A K&
SEBEFMBEENREZE
F A A A 18 H B949% K9 A%
LA R #29,301,000
THEEZRILRERX
BEE RIFZLLH LS
HEcBORPBRER
BRA-EREXEE
TRMESHEARE
29,301,0007T =5 R 49%R%
B ENEZA S IEHF
EEMBENEZBRAEARE
AW BERERPEARARE
AR #16,327,0007T ° #%
RETHE  ARQRDEHF
A E 51 % I RE - I
EEHRE ETSIRE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED L. e BHREREEME @)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(28). Surplus reserve (28). B&AANTE

31 December 30 June

2011 Additions Reductions 2012

5 —5-Cf

+-A=t+-H AHE M KR D ~A=Z+H

Statutory surplus reserve FEERBBAES 330,231 = = 330,231
31 December 30 June

2010 Additions Reductions 2011

%% —T——F

+-A=+-8 AHEM AERD NA=ZTH

Statutory surplus reserve ATRBNES 146,034 - = 146,034

In accordance with the Company Law and
the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Company should appropriate 10% of net
profit for the year to the statutory surplus
reserve, and the Company can cease
appropriation when the statutory surplus
reserve accumulated to more than 50% of
the registered capital. The statutory surplus
reserve can be used to make up for the loss or
increase the paid in capital after approval from
the appropriate authorities. No surplus reserve
was appropriated for the six months ended 30
June 2012 (For the six months ended 30 June
2011: nil).

The Company appropriates for the
discretionary surplus reserve after the
shareholders’ meeting approves the proposal
from the Board of Directors. The discretionary
surplus reserve can be used to make up for
the loss or increase the paid in capital after
approval from the appropriate authorities. The
Company did not appropriate discretionary
surplus reserve for the six months ended 30
June 2012 (For the six months ended 30 June
2011 nil).
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B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BHFZHE) 2BEBARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

5.

(29). Undistributed profits

As at 30 June 2012, included in the
undistributed profits, RMB642,523,000 is
subsidiaries’ surplus reserve of subsidiaries
attributable to the Company (31 December
2011: RMB642,523,000), no undistributed
profit was appropriated for the six months
ended 30 June 2012 (For the six months
ended 30 June 2011: nil).

In accordance with the resolution at the
Annual General Meeting dated on 9 May
2011, the Company declared a cash dividend
of RMBO0.18 per share to the shareholders
for the year 2010, which amounted to
RMB365,033,000 based on the Company’s
total issued number of shares which is
2,027,960,000.

In accordance with the resolution at the
Annual General Meeting dated on 26 April
2012, the Company declared a cash dividend
of RMBO0.19 per share to the shareholders
for the year 2011, which amounted to
RMB385,312,000 based on the Company’s
total issued number of shares which is
2,027,960,000.

. aHMBHRREEME @)

(29).

& 57 B2 F

EA—?E— EFXA=+A8" K
PRABFEEFEBERAT A A
Eﬁ%/&ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬁi/\ﬁfﬁ%
642,523,000 c (ZE——F+=
A=+—H: AR%642,523,000
L) HEFEE-ZFT—=-FXA
=+HIEXNEABR FARG
ROGSEBERESRBNABBRATES
ANREZT(HE_T——FX
A=+HB1NERHME: &) -

BE-—_ZFT——FRANHEHKEE
j(a/;%niﬁz K/A_JWAEMHXﬁ
KE_ZT—ZFERSEKF -
FRO18T & E EITHlRMD
2 027,960,0000% 5T & * Jk IR &
B R H 5+ A R #365,033,0007T °

BE-_Z—Z-FWA=-+/xH
BRERAERAZ A2 M8
BRREE_ZT——FERESRK
A FROA9TL HEBEITKR S
2,027,960,000/% 5T & K 2 I &
B R H 5t A R #385,312,0007T °

(30). Revenue and cost of sales (30). EXUWANFIEERA
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
BHE H=E
—_E—-_F —E——F
~B=+HI NA=ZTHIE
718 A HA 7~ & A EAfE
Main operating revenue (a) FEEFRA () 3,461,196 1,639,674
Other operating revenue (b) H b ZE A (b) 23,647 18,113
Total A&t 3,484,843 1,657,787
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(Continued)

(30). Revenue and cost of sales (Continued) (30). EXUWANIZEERAE (&)

Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
g8z Bz

- =t ek 3 —E——F
~B=+HI NA=1+HIE
~NERHE 7~ E A HAFE

Main operating cost (a) FEEBEKAR () 1,949,388 670,652
Other operating cost (b) H b 55K AN (b) 238 97

Total = 1,949,626 670,749

(@) Revenue and cost of sales (@ FEEBERANMEIZER
A

Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
BE_T-_f£xA BE-Z——%FA
Z+HEAERAHE =+ HLEAE A B
Cost of Cost of
Revenue sales Revenue sales
£ £ e ES-

EHBA EBHA FHWA EBRA

Sale of propertiesand  EHEHE AR

related consulting LHRE

services 3,411,684 1,900,811 1,592,994 622,269
Hotel Services BEMRA 49,512 48,577 46,680 48,383
Total &t 3,461,196 1,949,388 1,639,674 670,652
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

. aHMBHRREEME @)

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(30). Revenue and cost of sales (Continued)

(30). BEWANINEERAK (&)

(b)  Other operating revenue and cost (b) HitEBWANMEMETR
B, 7S
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2011

BEZE-"£XA BE_Z2——F,A

=+HLEAREAHHE =+ H LA A HE
Other Other Other Other
operating operating operating operating
revenue cost revenue cost
Hitr Hit Hith Hith
ES71/ON £BAA ES/TON ETBRA
Other income H A 23,647 238 18,113 97

(31). Tax and surcharges (31). EXH & KM

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
S BHE
—E—Zf —E——F
~A=+HLE ANA=t+HIE
~ERHE 7~ E A HA
Business tax B 193,773 99,547
Land Appreciation Tax T IR ER 259,185 245,627
Others HAb 16,073 7,199
Total A&t 469,031 352,373
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(Continued)
(32). Financial expenses/(income) (32). BAFFUIN
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
S Bz
—F-=F —T——F
~A=+HLE NAZ=Z+THIE
~NERHE 7~ E A HAFE
Interest expenses B 600,001 378,529
including: Bank loans HrhRITER 351,305 183,400
Trust loans ERACEA 173,894 120,492
Corporate bonds RNAESH 63,119 56,161
Other loans Hitv B & 11,683 18,476
Long-term receivables & HAFE KA IR
discounted (1,874) -
Less: Amount capitalised i BRI B H (545,856) (378,529)
Financial cost B HF5E 52,271 =
Financial income A 2 WA (65,825) (35,701)
Exchange gains or losses — net [ % 184 - /58 (3,078) 1,261
Others HAh 11,024 5,886
Net AR (5,608) (28,554)
(33). Impairment losses (33). EEMEEX
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
S BHE
—E-—F —E——F
~A=+HI NA=THILE
7~ 18 B H N ME A HAFE
Provisions of bad debts TR AR EE 14,240 -
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INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(34). Investment income (34). #EWEE
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
S HE
—F-°F —E——%F
~B=+HI NA=1+HIE
~E A EE 7~ ME A E
Share of profit less loss of EEmEZ A XD ENR
investees under equity method Txﬁﬁ{_mﬁg 5 B {0 B8 6,508 23,931
Disposal Joint Ventures and REBEREENFKRE
Associates investment income Yz ( Bﬁ?ﬁ( 8))
(note5(8)) 31,844 -
Total A&t 38,352 23,931
(35). Depreciation and Amortisation (35). MERWHEH
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
BH= H=E
—E—=f —E——f
~NAZ=Z+HLIE NA=THIE
7~ 18 A HA 7~ 8 A EAfE
Depreciation of fixed assets TEEENE 20,631 21,484
Amortisation of intangible assets &2 & & # &4 523 523
Amortisation of investment A M E
properties 52 -
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(Continued)
(36). Income tax expenses (36). FTiEHEH

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has REEBRBE-_ZT—Z—_F1H
been made as the Group has no assessable =+ HIEAERBEYBEME
profits in Hong Kong for the six months ended P FE R B m F) - B R FH R A
30 June 2012 (for the six months ended 30 BAMGHEE (BEZT——

June 2011: nil). PRC income tax is computed FARA=ZFTBHIEEAHEHMB:
according to the relevant laws and regulations ) - P BT RAR R B AR
in the PRC. The applicable PRC income tax FRERERTE ERPEME
rate is 25% (for the six months ended 30 June MER2E% (BE_T——F X
2011: 25%). A=+HIENEAHRE:25%) °
The amount of taxation charged to the TRBEBEFAGHERR MG

consolidated income statement represents: HERSRE:

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 2012 30 June 2011

S Bz

- =t ek 3 —E——F

~B=+HI NAZ=ZtTHIE

718 A #A AN EE R

Current income tax & AT 19 R 295,345 184,047
Deferred income tax iR JE FT 1S F (55,568) (33,150)
Total CE 239,777 150,897
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h.

ZENA= A H IR (BRI 2 FE L BARETFT)

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(36). Income tax expenses (Continued)

The reconciliation from income tax calculated
based on the applicable tax rates and total

(36). FTiEHER (&)

EHMBHRFREFEBME 2

5 2R A GFFE R B B A R IR
RERRERFAENRET AR

profit presented in the consolidated financial PRI E R -
statements to the income tax expenses is
listed below:
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
S HE
—E-Zf —T——F
~B=+HI NA=1THIE
~E A EE 7~ & A EAfE
Total profit 42 %8 858,004 513,928
Income tax expenses calculated 1% & FB i R25% 5+ E K
at applicable tax rates (25%) FrigHt 214,501 128,482
Share of profits less losses of R EZ B S D IER
joint ventures and associates KERAFERNMNE (1,627) (5,983)
Provision in respect of prior AR EEFREMRER
years’ under-accrual taxes 2,612 6,005
Expenses, costs and losses not N5 1k #) Ak 2 -
deductible for tax purposes BRAMEXL 2,810 979
Tax losses for which no EHARERIELERTER
deferred income tax asset BEMAKINERE
was recognised 21,481 21,414
Income tax expenses St E R 239,777 150,897
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BEFEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . aHMBHREABMEE @)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(37). Earnings per share (37). ERRW =
Basic earnings per share is calculated by ERGREGENFEBREAR]E
dividing the profit attributable to equity holders BRBREOEFFBERAGA
of the Company by the weighted average RIEITHEINE BAR A INHE T
number of shares in issue during the period. FrE
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
S Bz
—g-—f  —F—F
~A=+HLE NAZ=ZtTHIE
718 B #A AN EE R
Profit attributable to equity RERE QAT BERME
holders of the Company K& BFF F)E 514,193 307,513
Weighted average number of 7N &) Z 177 /N E 8 IR &9
shares in issue (thousands) EFEHE (FR) 2,027,960 2,027,960
Basic earnings per share EXRG R
(RMB cents per share) (ARESER) 25 15
Including: He:
— Basic earnings per share —FELCEERGIRE
relating to continuing
operation 25 15
Diluted earnings per share is equal to the KAl P FEREBEMELE LB
basic earnings per share since the Company f% - W 1E B Uk s B B R AR U
has no dilutive potential shares during the mAEE o
period.
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h.
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EHMBHRFREFEBME 2

(Continued)
(38). Other Comprehensive Income/ (38). Hith&za s~ (B18)
(Loss)
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
Y HZE
—F-°fF —E——fF
~A=+HI NA=1THIE
~18 A B 7~ E A HA
Fair value incomes/(losses) on Al HESRBMEE AR
available-for-sale financial BEEHEEN
assets, gross ek, (1B8%) 25,547 (33,535)
Less: Income tax arised B EERFIEREE (6,387) 8,384
Subtotal NG 19,160 (25,151)
Difference on translation of INBERERITEEZE
foreign currency financial
statements (8,596) (7,076)
Total &t 10,564 (32,227)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h. EHMBHRREBME 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(39). Notes to consolidated cash flow

(39). RERERMEE

statements
(@) Reconciliation from net profit to (@) WEMNEAGAREFTD
cash flows from operating activities RERE
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
Bz BZE
—F-°f —T——fF
~NA=+HLE NA=ZTHIE
~EAHRE N A H
Net profit D 618,227 363,031
Add: Provisions for asset m:EERERK
impairment (note 5(33)) (KIsEF(33)) 14,240 -
Depreciation of fixed assets EEREFE
(note 5(10)) (KsER10)) 20,631 21,484
Amortisation of intangible B EAESE
assets (note 5(11)) (KFsER(1)) 523 523
Amortisation of long-term REVFEE R # i
deferred expenses 147 -
Amortisation of investment RENEENEE
properties 52 _
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of fixed & & EE & E
assets, intangible assets and BEEMEM
other long-term assets RPBEMEL/
(Mzs) 5 (134)
Financial expenses B % & H 28,835 1,261
Investment profit (note 5(34)) K& W (MERE4) (38,352) (23,931)
Increase in deferred tax assets B IEFr5 % & 2 A3 AN (72,780) (54,300)
Decrease in deferred tax BEEFGEREENRD
liabilities 15,211 21,102
Increase in inventories & /380 (2,033,222) (1,846,370)
Transfer out of assets value in =~ AT EIRH B EA G
a business combination BEEEREES
achieved in stages through EERBED
disposal of relevant assets 51,590 =
Increase in restricted cash PR #6938 & 3
(note 5(1)) (ﬁﬁ FARM)) (246,952) (952,607)
(Decrease)/Increase in EE M EKIER R
operating receivables ( wWA) /HEm (57,865) 244,765
Decrease in operating payables — #& % 4 & {18 B &9 2 135,120 1,296,100
Net cash flows from REFHEENRE
operating activities MEFE (1,564,590) (929,076)
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BE—F——F A=+ HUNEABE (BEF5Z0H) 2B EBARKTT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h.

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(39). Notes to consolidated cash flow

statements (Continued)

(b) Net increase/(decrease) in cash

(39). H&

EHMBHRFREFEBME 2

MERME (&)

(b) EEEE_/—‘ i‘ﬂ@]rﬁ /R

(c) Cash

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
= HZE
ZE-Zf —T——%F
~A=+HLE NA=Zt+HIE
~EREE 7~ {8 5 HA A
Cash at end of period R K HREREE 8,534,794 8,479,785
Less: cash at beginning of &l : IR & WY BRI 84 58
period (7,974,900) (8,429,444)
Net increase in cash IH & F1L IN%EE 559,894 50,341
) ®&
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
Y HE
—E-T"% —E——%F
~NA=+HLE NA=1THIE
~EREE 7~ {8 A HA A
Cash at bank and on BE¥Ee (MERA))
hand (note 5(1)) 9,159,089 8,352,243
Less: restricted cash at B 2B PR B A9 7F R
bank (note 5(1)) (FF=ERA)) (624,295) (377,343)
Cash at end of the period IR & HiR G458 8,534,794 7,974,900
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The reportable segments of the Group are the
business units that provide different products or
service, or operate in different areas. Different
businesses or areas require different technologies
and marketing strategies, the Group, therefore,
separately manages the production and operation of
each reportable segment and valuates their operating
results respectively, in order to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to these segments and to
assess their performance.

The Group identified 5 reportable segments as
follows:

- Beijing region, which is mainly engaged in the
property development and sales in Beijing
region.

- Tianjin region, which is mainly engaged in the
property development and sales in Tianjin
region.

- Chengyu region, which is mainly engaged
in the property development and sales in
Chengyu region.

- Other regions, which are mainly engaged in
the property development and sales in other
regions.

- Hotel operations, which are mainly engaged
in hotel business and providing corresponding
services.

Inter-segment transfers are measured by reference to
sales to third parties. Expenses indirectly attributable
to each segment are allocated to the segments
based on the proportion of each segment’s revenue.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

ZENA = H IR (BRI 2 FEBARETFT)

BHE—F

6.

== :t:
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) ~N. TEER (#)
(1). Segment information for six months 1). B&z2=-F——-—f£,A=+H
ended 30 June 2012 is as follows: LERERABESEHER
Property development
EHERBHELH Hotel
Beijing Tianjin Chengyu Others  Operations  Unallocated  Elimination Total
= xi# Aif Hi EEER ROEMEE  SHERHS Eh
Revenue from external HIZHWA
customers 2,086,018 95,784 904,802 348,727 49,512 - - 3484843
Inter-segment revenue ABERZBA - - - 89,109 - - (89,109) -
Interest income FEKA 129,761 9,339 6,204 39,873 87 138,525 (257,964) 65,825
Interest expenses MEER (94,349) - (7,187) (75,930) (8,674) (122,304) 248,208 (60,216)
Share of profit/(loss) of HBENSELEN
associates and joint BEWE/ (BX)
ventures 1,895 (10,567) - 15,180 - - - 6,508
Asset impairment loss BERERXHR 4,000 - - - - 10,240 - 14,240
Depreciation and amortisation 37 & % 1 i & (2,026) (225) (321) (2,837) (12,924) (2,873) - (21,206)
Total profit/(loss) B/ (B58) %5 727,922 23,738 213,046 (14,599) (11,141) 43,802 (124,764) 858,004
Income tax expenses k&R (200,719) (5,846) (51,515) (1,124) - (11,437) 30,864 (239,777)
Net profit/(loss) ERIE/ (BE) 527,203 17,892 161,531 (15,723) (11,141) 32,365 (93,900) 618,227
Total assets BERE 24280025 10083977 7626020 28,460,993 572,034 18369916  (48,014516) 41,328,449
Long-term equity HEE A ERN
investments on BELEN
associates and RERERE
joint ventures 174,957 566,832 - 873,442 - - - 1615281
Additions to non-current RARERE
assets other than long-term LA SMET E- At
equity investments ERBEELNE 1,656,366 86 452 205,531 114 1,041 - 1,863,590
For the six months ended 30 June 2012, no HE-—_ZE——®<A=+HI~
segment generated revenue from a single B AR ANEFEER S HEME
significant customer or foreign customers. KM SWA A RKEE—
EEPHZZWPA -
As at 30 June 2012, the Group has no non- —E——FXA=+8 A£EH

current assets that are

countries.

located

in other
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6.
(2).

HRIBERGERAR —T——FhHRE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 SRR MY RE

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 BN A= AU E R (BRI 2 FEMLRBARETFT)

(a)

(b)

_ =N A= =
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. TEMER (#
Segment information for six months (2. B@E-_F——F7A=1H
ended 30 June 2011 and as at 31 LERERHEE-FE——%F
December 2011 is as follows: +ZA=+—HBHHER
Segment information for six months (@ ®BEFE——HRA=+
ended 30 June 2011: BiEAEAEBHESEHER
Property development
BHERBHEEH Hotel
Beijing Tianjin Chengyu Others Unallocated  Elimil Total
t® xi# A Hit BEEH APRNEE SHBEHN i
Revenue from external HMRHHA
customers 1,440,318 87,620 11913 71,256 46,680 = - 1,657,787
Inter-segment revenue AHERFBA - - - 54,468 - - (54,468) -
Interest income LY 9N 31,674 6,083 22,497 26,252 79 189,792 (240,676) 35,701
Interest expenses FEER (35,120) (763) (4,087) (63,844) (5,897)  (130,765) 240,676 -
Share of profit of associates ¥1B4F1A 4D EH)
and joint ventures BERE - - - 23,931 - - - 23,931
Depreciation and amortisation 3 # # 713 & £ (2,444) 217) (378) (1,287) (14,544) (3,136) - (22,006)
Total profit/(loss) B/ (B58) 28 358,359 43,550 (6,956) (43,616) (10,217) 171,292 1,516 513,928
Income tax expenses FERER (115,628) (11,702) (548) (1,406) = (87,361) 15,748 (150,897)
Net profit/(loss) EHIE/ (B8) 242,731 31,848 (7,504) (45,022) (10,217) 133,931 17,264 363,031
For the six months ended 30 June HE-_Z—F A=+
2011, no segment generated revenue BIEAXEAHE A&
from a single significant customer or ERBAMBERNRHIK
foreign customers. N HUEREE-—BER
FRIZ WA °
Segment information as at 31 (b) —E——+ZRB=+—
December 2011: Bo#iER
Property development
BHEREHELE Hotel
Beijing Tianjin Chengyu Others p Unallocated  Elimii Total
L= xi# AR Hit BEEH APERNEE SHBEHY At
Total assets RELE 22196771 8,586,513 6546569 23,845,274 586,175 18,666,205 (42,716,389 87,711,118
Long-term equity HE R RN
investments on BELEN
associates and RERERE
joint venture - 524,191 - 1,103,006 - - - 1,627,197
Additions to non-current RAKRERE
assets other than long- SN E At FE T B
term equity investments ~ AER AN 159,895 540 216 250,002 275 5,395 = 416,323

As at 31 December 2011, the Group
has no non-current assets that are

located in other countries.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BFFZE) 2BEBARETT)

7. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED +. BB AFBEERER

PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(1). The parent company and (1). B2AMFLH
subsidiaries
The general information and other related FRAAMNERBERAREBELER
information of the subsidiaries is set out in B 5E Y o
note 4.
(@) General information of the parent (a BAREXRER
company:
Place of registration Nature of business
&E it it XBHHE
Capital Group Beijing, The PRC Infrastructure, financial securities,
industrial technology, commercial
trade, tourist hotel, etc.
BEIEE REdE R EfRie emEs  TEMR BEE
2 MR 5 %
The Company’s ultimate controlling RARMEKEES T RE
party is Capital Group. ST
(b) Registered capital and changes (b) BARAFEMEARARHEE (L
in registered capital of the parent
company:
Current Current
31 December period period 30 June
2011 additions decreases 2012
—F——-% —F-Zf
+ZR=+-H AHI1Em AHHY  RA=+H
Capital Group BElSE 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000
() The proportions of equity interests (c) BARHAEANBBIEHRKLL
and voting rights in the Company 15 %0 3= R HE bk 51

held by the parent company:

As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
ZF-Z£XA=+H —T——f+-A=1+—H
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect

interest held interest held Voting rights  interest held  interest held  Voting rights
BEER MEEE  RMELS BkiEn HEEE  RREL
% % % % % %

Capital Group HEIEE 15.34 16.68 32,02 15.34 16.68 32.02
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

HBE—F——

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(2).

Nature of related parties that do not
control or are not controlled by the
Company:

Relationship
with the Company

Name of
related entities

GoldenNet Associate
Shenyang Xinzi Associate
Xi’an Xinkai Associate
Tianjin Xinging Associate
Tianjin Xinming Associate
Financial Street Associate
Outlets Chuangxin Associate
Outlets China Associate

Joint venture

Joint venture

Joint venture

Joint venture

Former joint venture
Joint venture

Promoter
Non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries
Former non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary
Former non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary
Under significant
influence by the same
key management
personnel and in
substance constitute of
a related party
Subsidiary of
Yangguang Xinye
Subsidiary of
Yangguang Xinye
Subsidiary of
Yangguang Xinye

Chaoyang Investment
Beijing Wanzhu
Shenyang Jitian
Huzhou Rongcheng
Dalecheng(i)

Capital Jiaming
Capital Development
Reco Ziyang

Reco Hibiscus

Reco Camellia

Yangguang Xinye

Zirui Xinli
Ruijing Yangguang

Hongcheng Zhanye

(i) In 2012, the Group signed equity
transfer agreements for the disposal
of 45% and 10% equity interests of
Dalecheng separately. The transfer
of the 45% equity interest has been
completed by finishing the office
registration, Dalecheng was no longer a
joint venture of the Company ever since
(note 5(8)(a)(iii).

1561

FNA=A1 BRI (BN 2B EBARETFT)

t. BBATHRERERS (&)

(2).

A T 75 422 15 R 1% B R Bk 77 A9

48

) HAEE
#18 H B 17
SR Vi N/NE] kNG
EEE Zi\/N TZ%%@E
ikl /NG 1IN
REHE Vi N/NET A kNG
P £l /N TZ A UNC]
SREHE 7N NG
BRI $2ﬂ NG
B (hE) Z\/N TZ%%@E
HERE AREZAEDTH
t?%% AREZAEDH
EZE R /N TZQ%@E
RN 8835 ARRZEE AT
isAE N 2 ) ARAREE AT
HEIZ 5 AR TZ NS
EEER! ARRIMERA
EIEEL ARBZEEFAEN
DY R
Reco Hibiscus  ARARIZEETFARR
ROEHER
Reco Camelia ARBIZEETFARR
ROERBRE
Gy BANR RS F—
HREEAER
EAFEZEEE L
BRI

ESiE G HERT AT
HEBYt GXEFER T AR
RBEE G ERNT AT
() KEBRAZZ——F5H5F|

o B R B 45%F10% 0% #

REREEED

Hep

%%Mk%*%aﬁﬁ’
BEARNERTHEREARR

Z/\,L./'\

(iii) )

(M sEF(8 )()



BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 7 R R Bt o

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BFFZE) 2BEBARETT)

7. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(3).

Related party transactions

The Board considers all transactions with
related parties are on normal commercial
terms, prices of related party transactions was
agreed by the Group and its related parties.

(a) Providing consulting service

t. BEBAEGERERX S (&)

(3).

BBk XX 5

RAREEERRNHE L
M2 5195 & LB 7 8 R AR - B
B2 5EBRAAEEERER T
W — BHEE

(@) REEHARSE

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2012 2011

S BHZE

—g-z&  —T——F

~NA=+HIE NA=1+HIE

~1E AEARE 7~{E A B

Tianjin Xinming REFHA 1,186 7,903
Tianjin Xinging RKEHSE 1,920 3,614
Xi'an Xinkai 79 & 6,027 10,267
Shenyang Jitian &S E R 2,148 2,676
Shenyang Xinzi EIGIE 4,328 4,657
Outlets China B (PE) 2,290 -
Total &t 17,899 29,117
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

7. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED +t. FABABREREXR 5 (&)
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(3). Related party transactions (Continued) (3). EAEZZ (&)

(b) Pay/(Receive) funding (b) Xt/ (kz)ESE
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
Bz HZE
- = 3 —E——F
~A=+HI NA=1THIE
~E AR ~E A B
Huzhou Rongcheng AN Pd 145,000 —
Zirui Xinli KIGHE (13,873) -
Outlets China B (R E) 31,000 109,282
Financial Street ® B AR 19,275 27,000
Tianjin Xinming RIEFEF 58,500 —
Tianjin Xinging REHSE (5,500) —
Xian Xinkai 79 & % 338,125 -
Yangguang Xinye B 605,734 —
Shenyang Xinzi EIGFE (70,921) —
Hongcheng Zhanye R 19,285 —
Dalecheng isEEI N2 (104,500) —
GoldenNet & P4 (408) =
Chaoyang Investment G E (9,880) =
Beijing Wanzhu tmEsE 6,609 —
Shenyang Jitian ESE R 7,800 -
Total A&t 1,026,246 136,282
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B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BFFZE) 2BEBARETT)

7. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(3). Related party transactions (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Commission fee

t. BBAEERER S (&)

(3). EEXZ (&)
(c) SHEREEH

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2012 2011

S BHZE

—F-°fF —T——F

~A=+HIE NA=1THIE

~1E A EARE 7~{E A BiFE

GoldenNet & P4 30,411 17,591

The Group entrust GoldenNet as
exclusive sales agent of certain
projects. The commission fee payable
was charged by certain percentage
based on property sales price.

Interest income/(expense)

AEEZXLPHRA/RE
Bl—-LEANEREER
HoREHERREN T
BT ERE -

(d FEERBEBRIBENE

EHABRAN(ERH)

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2012 2011

S BHZE

—_Eg-_F —E——F

~A=+HL ANA=+AHLE

~EAEE 7~ E A B

Beijing Wanzhu EREEE 7,649 =
Capital Jiaming HEl= 3,312 =
Outlets China BREE (FRE) 19,939 2,117
Reco Camellia Reco Camellia - (653)
Reco Ziyang Nk £ 5 - (6,326)
Total =1 30,900 (4,862)
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HE—F——

7. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(3). Related party transactions (Continued)

(e) Acquire non-controlling interests

In January 2012, the Group entered
into a equity transfer agreements with
Reco Ziyang and Recosia respectively,
in order to purchase 45% equity interest
of Tianjin Xinchuang and Chengdu Xinzi
held by Reco Ziyang, and to purchase
100% equity interests of Reco Hibiscus
and Reco Camellia held by Recosia
(to obtain 45% equity interests of
Anhua Shiji and 50% of Sunshine City
indirectly). The transaction has been
approved at Extraordinary General
Meeting on 5 March 2012. As at 30
June 2012, the acquisition of Chengdu
Xinzi and Reco Camellia has completed
(note 5(27)); the equity transfer
transaction of Tianjin Xinchuang and
Reco Hibiscus is not yet completed.

EAA=FELA B (RIFHEAS - 2 BEE T BARETFIT)

t. BBATHEERERS (2

() BETFTLARLHRERE

RZE—Z—F—H X%
B 5 Rl BT g KB &
RECOSIA% %JM%EL;%
% W R N K (5 F
B #) K2 F 8l A0 K &R Fr
B H45%H) B #E - LA K Ut
fE RECOSIA# & #JReco
HibiscusfReco Camellia
100% A% #E (b= B R 2 0L
B8 2 2t 4045% 0% 1 0 5
7‘5?%0%5’]13;4%)0%?@
2«($E. iﬁ——i
_ﬂﬁaﬁgﬁm&unﬂ‘rkﬁ
ARef i BHEZ
FRNA=TH" Hﬁzﬁ%ﬁz%ﬁ
¥ EA45% M # A K Reco
Camellia 100% /% # 812 5
B (MR ET7))
W B X OF 37 B145% 1% 7 LA
K Reco Hibiscus 100%M%

R 5 M AR TERK ©
) Guarantees (f) ER
30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—_E—-_F —E——F
~B=+H +ZHA=+—H
Capital Group BEISEBAARA
for the Company 1,000,000 1,000,000
In 2009, the parent company Capital PANS/NES Tl = ORS/NNS I= =1
Group, provided irrevocable guarantee RZZEZETNLFER
for the corporate bond amounted to RNAARETH )\ R #
RMB1,000,000,000 issued by the 1,000,000,0007T & i%%
Company. The guarantee maturity date R HOE i%ﬁL HE
is March, 2015. EREFRERFR BRIBA
A_T—RHF=A-
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BT A S+ AN ARG (BREERN  $ BB AR TFT)

7. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED +t. BBABEREX S (#)

PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(3). Related party transactions (Continued) (3). EEZZ (&)
()  Guarantees (Continued) n EIR(E)

30 June 31 December

2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
~NA=+H +ZA=+—H
The Company for KRR BFRR
subsidiaries 6,748,164 2,060,193
Subsidiary for FRABART
the Company 154,000 -
(9) Key management compensation (99 BEREEANEFHMH
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
S HZE
ot Y -
ANA=+HLE ANA=Z+AHLE
~ERAHE 7~ E A B
Key management HARERABS TN
compensation 10,784 10,406
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RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(4). Related party balances

(a)

(b)

(c)

Accounts receivable (note 5(2)(a))

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

t. BBATHRERERS (&)

B8 B 77 FB MR~ B ot SRR 8RR
(a) FEMERER (PR E(2)(a))

30 June 31 December
2012 2011
- = 3 —E——F
~NA=+H +ZA=+—H
Ruijing Yangguang s x - 60,000
Advances to suppliers (b) FEFME
30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—E——& -
~NA=+H T+tZHA=+—H
Commission fee prepaid &K HEFS
to GoldenNet 31,895 36,652

Long-term receivables (note 5 (12))

(c) REBWF(MEREA2))

30 June 31 December

2012 2011

—E-—F —E——fF

~NA=+H +ZA=+—H

Financial Street ()) © BRATB IE (i) 449,327 428 177
Outlets China BEH (FRE) - 175,700
Beijing Wanzhu (i) Ik = & 2 (i) 237,826 220,290
Total BEr 687,153 824,167

1567



BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

INTERIM REPORT 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P RS MR M A

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=+HIENEABE (B HFZ 5

7. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(4). Related party balances (Continued)

(c) Long-term receivables (note 5 (12))
(Continued)

(M

(i

The receivable due from Financial
Street, which is an associate of
the Group, is interests free and
have no fixed maturity date.
The Group plans to collect the
receivable within 2 years, and
the receivable is discounted
in associate with 1 to 3 years’
interest rate of bank borrowings.

The receivable due from Beijing
Wanzhu was charged at the
same interest rate with the bank
borrowings of the same period,
and is pledged by the 30%
equity interest of Beijing Wanzhu
held by the cooperate partner.
As Beijing Wanzhu require a
large amount of funding for
development and construction
at the early stage, the Group
expects the receivable cannot be
collected within one year, thus
such amount was classified as
long-term receivable.

(d) Dividends receivables (note 5(4))

DB RBARETFT)

t. BEBAEGERERX S (&)

(4).

BB 77 B B X TH AR R
(&)

(c) RHEEUR(MERE2))
(&)

(i) ZREAEANEEE
U B 8 X B & B AT
B S B R R R
BB - E T E XK
HA o NEBTEF
Frgle - AEER
B—Z=-FRBHPE

A FEITHIR

() FHREALREEM
ﬁ?%ﬁkmm{
IR IR 1T R HF
R+ B o WAATER
¥ B B30%R% 1 &
HEKENEZAS
o mﬂﬁﬁéﬁﬁ
RAZEERVE &
ZREESIH
AEBHEFE—F
R EE W E ZER
H - A fE R EfE U
HAZE o

(d) FEdRBRFI (B =t 3 (4)

30 June 31 December

2012 2011

—E-Zf —E——%F

~NA=Z+H +Z-A=+—H

Xi’an Xinkai PO & 1 12,400 12,400
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

7. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(4). Related party balances (Continued)

(e) Other receivables (note 5(2)(b))

t. BBATHRERERS (&)

(4). PBAEkHREUW - B IERER

(%)

(e) EHftrEW (M&E T (2)(b))

30 June 31 December

2012 2011

—F-=F —E——F

~A=+H +ZA=1+—H

GoldenNet 4848 56 464
Huzhou Rongcheng AN S8 3% 145,000 -
Dalecheng AN 3 - 104,500
Capital Jiaming (i) EE-IES210) 66,624 60,000
Zirui Xinli ESL) - 13,8783
Outlets China (i) B (P E) (i) 261,687 33,625
Total CE 473,367 212,462
() The receivable due from Capital () ZHRERANEEE
Jiaming, which is an associate WHE A A HEl &=

of the Group, includes the ORI NG  S|
principals and interests of the B AEBRIEHD
borrowing. The interest rate for BREAEA/AARE

the principal of RMB60,000,000 60,000,0007T *

is 30% higher than the interest P ARRIT

rate of bank borrowings of one —FHEEERF

year determined by PBOC, with
no fixed maturity date and is
unsecured and unguaranteed.

The receivable due from Outlets
China, which is an associate of
the Group, was provided by the
Group in 2011. The principal is
RMB206,700,000 with no fixed
maturity date and is unsecured
and unguaranteed and the
interest rate is 20%.

Except for the receivables due
from related parties above, other
receivables are all interest free,
unsecured and unguaranteed
and have no fixed maturity date.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F

——FNAZHUNAARRE (B HERZES) 2EE M BARETFT)

7. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(4). Related party balances (Continued)

(f) Other payables (note 5(21))

(4).

t. BEBAEGERERX S (&)

B8 Bk 73 B UL~ B 1 SR IR BRER
(#)

(f  EHEAK (R (ER21))

30 June 31 December

2012 2011

—®-=f ST

~AA=+R +=ZA=+—H

Chaoyang Investment (iii) AR5 % & (iii) 9,880 -
Tianjin Xinming (iii) K V3 5T A (iii) 27,000 85,500
Xi’an Xinkai (ii) 7 223 3 ) 663,514 1,001,639
Reco Ziyang (i) 3N 55 () 177,086 56,714
Shenyang Xinzi (jii) B 15 H & (i) 114,600 43,679
Tianjin Xinging (iii) FA= = =N (1) 35,000 29,500
Yangguang Xinye(ii) k5 St 37 2 (ii 185,770 791,504
Shenyang Jitian (i) & 5 & A (i) - 7,800
Hongcheng Zhanye R R - 19,285
Financial Street (jii) © BR AT I (i) 377 -
Total B&r 1,213,227 2,035,621
(i) The payable due to Reco Ziyang, (i) ZARBERAEEM
includes the consideration o3 K5 B FE Y
payable to acquire equity REEBERARK

interest in subsidiaries of
RMB120,372,000 (note5(21)(a)),
and loans of RMB56,714,000
due to Reco Ziyang by Chengdu
Xinzi (note5(21)(b)).
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(4).

BRIBXEBRODAERRAR —T— —FhHHRE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS SRR A

For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Related party balances (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Other payables (note 5(21))
(Continued)

(i

(i)

As at 31 December 2011,
amounted to RMB185,770,000
are the consideration payable
to acquire Qingdao Binhai,
Qingdao Qiangianshu, Yantai
Lidu, Yantai Lizhen and Yantai
Xinye (“Qingdao and Yantai
Companies”) from their original
shareholder Yanguang Xinye. As
at 30 June 2012, this payables
has not yet been paid.

The payables to related parties
are all interest free, unsecured
and unguaranteed and have no
fixed maturity date.

Dividends payables of the Group is
disclosed in note 5(20).
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(#%)
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FRBOLES MR

BHEEEE 55
TFi8 - EEmES
BeBEUNES
ME(UTEBIE
SESEB AR
JE 15 R A% R B5 ¢ ¥
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#185,770,0007T °
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

HE—F—

7.

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED

ZENA= A H IR (P 2 FEBARETFT)

PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

t. BEBAEGERERX S (&)

(4). Related party balances (Continued) (4). BB AEW - BT RIESRE
(%)
(h) Remuneration payable to Directors (hy EFE=EFHFM (MeER@E)
(note 5(8))
30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—E-——x —E—
~NA=+H +ZA=+—H
Remuneration payable e
to Directors 14,038 8,868
COMMITMENTS J\. K#EEIE
(1). Capital commitments (1). BAXRRE

Capital expenditures contracted for at the
balance sheet date but not yet incurred are as
follows:

UWTAREEABRA BEY
i & A B RS SRR R E’JS‘Z
H G

30 June 31 December

Property under development EiEMZEIEE

The Group’s share of capital commitment of
the joint venture are as follows:

2012 2011
—E-—% —E——F
~AA=+HA +ZA=+—H
2,961,697 2,569,063

NTAAEEESECEE SN

B HAGEF AT E A8 -

30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—F--% —2——%
ARE+E +=A=+—A

Property under development FEHERIEIEE

64,730 89,885

162



BRIBXEBRDERRT

TR RS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g e e
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BE—F——FNAZ1HILANE AR (BEFZH) £BEAARETT)
=+ .
RKEEIE(#)

REHERHFER

RIFC AT AT Al BUH AR & 1
HEAR A"EERKRKEEX

COMMITMENTS (Continuea)

(2). Operating lease commitments

The future minimum lease payments due
under the signed irrevocable operating leases

\.

(2).

contracts are summarised as follows: NESERNT :
30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—F—°f —E——%F
~NA=+H +ZA=+—H
Within 1 year —F AR 3,884 5,446
Between 1 and 2 years — 5 = 1,913 2,434
Between 2 and 3 years —E=F 487 487
Total aFt 6,284 8,367
(38). Investment commitments (3). HIMNMEERFEEH
30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—g—_f —T——F
~NA=+H +ZA=+—H
Changfeng Development Co., Ltd. K22 RE FRE A 7 24,500 24,500
FINANCIAL GUARANTEES L. BHER

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
customers and had provided guarantees to secure
obligations of these customers for repayments.

The Group provided guarantees in respect of
mortgage facilities granted by certain banks
relating to the mortgage loans arranged for certain
purchasers of the Group’s properties. These
guarantees will be expired when relevant property
ownership certificates are lodged with the various
banks by the purchasers.

As at 30 June 2012, outstanding guarantees

amounted to RMB3,573,435,000 (31 December
2011: RMB3,028,311,000).
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

r—F—

9.

10.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (continued)

As at 30 June 2012, other than guarantees provided
for subsidiaries refer to note 7(3)(f), the Group had no
material external guarantee.

The Group believes that the guarantees above will
not have a significant impact on its financial position.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND
RISK

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks, market risk (primarily currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(1). Market risk

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is subject to foreign
exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities
such as cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other payables, and
borrowings. (The majority of the
Group’s foreign currency transactions
and balances are dominated in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD”) and United
States dollars (“USD”).) The Group’s
finance department of headquarters
is responsible for monitoring the
amount of assets and liabilities, and
transactions denominated in foreign
currencies. The management of the
Group may consider entering into
forward exchange contracts or currency
swap contracts to mitigate the foreign
exchange risk. During the six months
ended 30 June 2012 and 2011, the
Group did not enter into any forward
exchange contracts or currency swap
contracts.
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND +. eI AERHEER#)
RISK (Continued)
(1). Market risk (Continued) (1). HHEERE (#&)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (@) SPEREMK (&)

R-E——FEXA=+
ArR=—ZF——%+=H
=t+t—H AXEEHAH
INEE & @h & FE RN ONEE & R
BETENAREN SR

As at 30 June 2012 and 31 December
2011, the carrying amounts in RMB
equivalent of the Group’s assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are summarized below,

PRI :
30 June 2012
ZE-Z#XA=1+H

uUsD HKD Total

£rxEH BIEE &t

Cash at bank and on hand E# & ¢ 634,239 454,798 1,089,037

Long-term borrowings RHEfEN 294,683 - 294,683

31 December 2011
—E——F+ZA=t+—H

USD HKD Total

xEE AKIEE =

Cash at bank and on hand &% & & 69,417 1,587,514 1,656,931

Long-term borrowings RHEIER 293,427 - 293,427
Current portion of —FREIHN

non-current liabilities ERBEE 205,882 - 205,882

Other payables H b & 3K 82,273 — 82,273

As at 30 June 2012, for all USD
and HKD dominated financial assets
and liabilities, if RMB had increased/
decreased by 5% against USD/HKD
with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would
have been decrease/increase by
approximately RMB29,788,000 (31

December 2011:
RMB40,326,000).

increase/decrease
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B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BFFZE) 2B EBARETT)

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND
RISK (continuea)

(1).

Market risk (Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposed to interest
rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on
borrowings which carry at prevailing
market interest rates. Borrowings
issued at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest-rate risk.
The Group determines the contracts
proportions of fixed rate and floating
rate depending on the market
conditions. As at 30 June 2012, the
Group’s long-term interest bearing
borrowings were mainly RMB- and
USD-denominated with floating rates,
amounting to RMB11,644,578,000 (31
December 2011: RMB7,562,307,000).

Increases in interest rates will increase
the cost of new borrowing and the
interest expenses of to the Group’s
outstanding floating rate borrowings,
and therefore could have a material
adverse impact on the Group’s
financial position. The Group’s finance
department of its headquarters
continuously monitors the interest
rate position of the Group and makes
decisions with reference to the latest
market conditions. The management
of the Group may enter into interest
rate swap agreements to mitigate its
exposure to interest rate risk. During the
six months ended 30 June 2012 and
2011, the Group did not enter into any
interest rate swap agreements.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

HBE—F——

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND
RISK (continuea)

(1).

(2).

Market risk (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2012, if interest rates on
the floating rate borrowings increased/
decreased 50 basis points with all
other variables held constant, the
financial expenses of the Group would
increased/decreased by approximately
RMB58,223,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB37,812,000).

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity
securities price risk because
investments held by the Group are
classified on the consolidated balance
sheet as available-for-sale financial
assets. The management of the
Group monitors market conditions
and the price fluctuations of securities
investments. Since the cost of
available-for sale financial assets is low,
the price risk of the Group is low.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed by portfolio
classification. Credit risk mainly arises from
cash at bank, accounts receivable, and other
receivables.

The Group expects that credit risk on cash at
bank since they are deposited at state-owned
banks and other medium or large size listing
banks. Management does not expect that
there will be any significant losses arise from
non-performance by these counterparties.
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BE—F——

FNA=1HIENMEA R (BRI

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND
RISK (continuea)

2).

Credit risk (Continued)

In addition, the Group has policies to
control the credit risk exposure on accounts
receivable, and other receivables. The Group
assesses the credit qualification of and sets
credit limits on its customers by taking into
account their financial position, the availability
of guarantee from third parties, their credit
history and other factors such as current
market conditions. The credit record of the
customers is regularly monitored by the
Group. For customers with a poor credit
history, the Group will apply written payment
reminders, shorten or cancel credit periods, to
ensure the overall credit risk of the Group is
limited under control.

The Group has arranged bank financing for
certain purchasers of property units and
provided guarantees to secure obligations
of such purchasers for repayments. If a
purchaser defaults on the payment of its
mortgage during the term of the guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand
the Group to repay the outstanding amount
under the loan and any accrued interest
thereon. Under such circumstances, the
Group is able to sell the property to recover
any amounts paid by the Group to the bank.
In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BEFEH) 2B ELBAREFT)

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND
RISK (Continued)

(3).

+. SR TERHERARK &)

Liquidity risk (3). MmBNERR
Cash flow forecasting is performed by each AEBAZTFRARIBEEBESN
subsidiary of the Group and aggregated RERETENR - BRI KEBPIE
by the Group’s finance department in ERETFTARRESRERINE
its headquarters. The Group’s finance ML TEEEEFEEEEN
department of its headquarters monitors MERENESFT R UBRES
rolling forecasts of the Group’s short-term WIS FEEAN A HEER IR
and long-term liquidity requirements to ensure WEBRSF RANKEERERS
it has sufficient cash and securities that are ReEBrHBENRE KEES
readily convertible to cash to meet operational BRBESREECTHERESD
needs, while maintaining sufficient headroom A UAmEEBANREENES
on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities T
from major financial institution so that the
Group does not breach borrowing limits or
covenants on any of its borrowing facilities to
meet the short term and long term liquidity
requirements.
The following table details the Group’s REEABXRHE AEKBESESD
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities, BEBEARTENEGRRERE
base on undiscounted contractual cash flows: ZEHB Y RAT
30 June 2012
ZF5-"fxB=+H
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 2and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
—ENA —3=% ZHEE IERE At
Financial liabilities ~ cRafE-
Short-term borrowings 2 HE K 1,456,445 - - - 1,456,445
Payables 08 5,372,139 - - - 5372139
Debentures payable &R 118,861 118,861 2,171,758 - 2,409,480
Long-term borrowings REER 275900 2,509,286 6,899,116 1,521,790 11,206,092
Current portion of —FRIHERDEE
non-current liabilities 4,041,501 - - - 4,041,501
Total At 11,264,846 2,628,147 9,070,874 1,521,790 24,485,657
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B2 —F——FNA=FHILNEAABE (BFFZE) 2B EBARETT)

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND
RISK (continuea)

(3).

(4).

+.

EMTAEREER &)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (3). mENVERR (£)
30 June 2011
—Z——FXA=TH
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 2 and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
—FLAR —H=% ZHARE AFNE G
Financial liabilities ~ cHafE-
Short-term borrowings 2 HE 1,340,278 - - - 1,340,278
Payables 3R 6,733,009 - - - 6,733,009
Debentures payable &R 118,769 118,769 2,203,884 - 2441422
Long-term borrowings REBR 395,173 2,932,991 2,666,611 1,312,169 7,306,944
Current portion of —ERIBERYAE
non-current liabilities 3,722,055 - - - 3,722,055
Total AFt 12,309,284 3,051,760 4,870,495 1,312,169 21,543,708
Fair value 4). AR{EE
(a) Financial instruments not measured (@ ATUAABEFENER

in fair value

Financial assets and liabilities not
measured in fair value mainly include
receivables, short-term borrowings,
payables, long-term borrowings, and
long-term payables.

The carrying amount of the above
financial assets and liabilities not
measured in fair value is a reasonable
approximation of their fair value.

The fair value of long-term borrowings
and long-term payables not quoted in
an active market is the present value
of the contractually determined future
cash flows discounted at comparable
interest rate.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2012 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

RISK (Continued)

(4).
(b)

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND +. EMIAERHER®)
Fair value (Continued) 4). AR{EEE)
Financial instruments measured in b) HUAARBEFMENEHI
fair value 1=
Based on the lowest level input BEEAABEFEFH
that is significant to the fair value ATEERBAABEREEN
measurement in its entirety, the fair =EERNEAE A
value is divided into the following levels: BEERUSA:
Level 1, Quoted prices (unadjusted) in F—EH-HRAEEXE
active markets for identical assets or BEEERME L (REH
liabilities. B)RME-
Level 2, Inputs other than quoted FEH B (bl g
prices included within level 1 that are B%) i (LR E
observable for the asset or liability, MEERN) JEHEEI M-
either directly (that is, as prices) or BRE—ERPOTISZRE
indirectly (that is, derived from prices). LN B ESBEMNR A
TE o
Level 3, Inputs for the asset or liability B=ER AR EREE A
that are not based on observable BRI EERHE
market data (that is, unobservable RIEETNEEXBENG
inputs) ANE (T EREAE)
As at 30 June 2012, the financial assets RZEBE—Z—FXA=*
measured at fair value by the above H- UARBEFENS
three levels are analysed below, MEER F = (EE R
REAT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-ER F_ER EZER A&t
Financial assets — SREE-
Available-for-sale financial ~ FIEHESEEE
assets 138,026 - 1 138,027
As at 31 December 2011, the financial R ——F+ = A
assets measured at fair value by the —t+—HB LAREER
above three levels are analysed below, ENTREER Ll =@
BT RN -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-ER FER EZER AFf
Financial assets - SRBE-
Available-for-sale financial At EELREE
assets 112,479 - 1 112,480
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.

T ARAMBHREREIEREME

(1). Other receivables (1). HitEYW

30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—E-ZF —B2——%F
~A=+H +=ZA=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUL TR A1 E R 13,561,147 13,805,809
Amounts due from joint ventures & U Bt & N 7] 7E 3R 4,404 2,363
Project tender deposits HEREREZS 10,000 10,000
Others i) 27,604 33,544
Total =X 13,603,155 13,851,716
Less: provisions for bad debts &l - E2ER %S (34,240) (24,000)
Receivables — net R 13,568,915 13,827,716
The analysis of other receivables and the HEi R RAENERESR D

related provisions are as follows: Moo

30 June 2012 31 December 2011
e Y EL N —2——&t-A=+-A

% of total % of the % of total % of the
Amount balance Provision provision Amount balance Provision provision
B GAERE O WEEA  HELD SE  BEENH  EEES  HRUH
% % % %
Within 1 year —FENA 13,568,137 100 - - 13,816,876 100 - -
110 2 years —I=F 178 - - - - - - -
2 to 3 years —H=%F - - - - 10,240 - - -
Over 3 years =3 34,840 - (34,240) 98 24,600 - (24,000) 98
Total At 13,603,155 100 (34,240) 0.3 13,851,716 100 (24,000) -
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11. NOTES TO THE COMPANY T—. 2R BFHRREEZEBME
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (#)
(Continued)
(2). Long-term Equity Investments (2. REABREHRE

30 June 31 December

2012 2011
—E-% —T——f
AB=+B +=A=+-H
Subsidiaries (a) F 2 Fl(a)

- non-listed companies —FELETAH 2,851,524 2,761,524
Joint ventures BEME

— non-listed companies S S /NC] 24,258 =
Associates B %

- non-listed companies —JFEMAF 50,274 50,350
Total X 2,926,056 2,811,874
The Company has no significant limitation AR N FERBIRESE RIK
on realization of long-term investment or 7 O [B] /9 Z8 KPR il ©

collection of investment income.

(@) Subsidiaries (@ F2oF
Attributable Attributable 31 December 30 June
interest held vote held 2011 Additions Disposals 2012
- —E-C&
214741 *RMERG +=A=t-R A HA 18 I KD A~AE+H
Capital Chaoyang B 100% 100% 734,095 - - 734,095
Rongjin Company BEAH 59.5% 59.5% 21,968 - - 21,968
Central Company Lk YN 100% 100% 79,433 - - 79,433
Central Plaza Xinrong FRER 100% 100% 90,437 - - 90,437
IFC IFC 100% 100% 20,480 - - 20,480
Central Plaza Central Plaza 100% 100% 39,466 - - 39,466
Jindu Company Bk &8 100% 100% 369,970 - - 369,970
Beijing Xinzi IRHE 100% 100% 642,625 - - 642,625
Anhua Shiji REHL 55% 55% 136,303 - - 136,303
Shangboya BT 100% 100% 30,000 - - 30,000
Shangbodi i 3t 51% 51% 15,300 - - 15,300
Jiangsu Capital LEEE 100% 100% 60,375 - - 60,375
Capital Chengdu HEIRE 100% 100% 150,000 - - 150,000
Sunshine City 15 5t 50% 60% 82,766 - - 82,766
Wuxi Xindong EHIR 100% 100% 100,000 - - 100,000
Chengdu Investment REBRE 100% 100% 5,000 - - 5,000
Tianjin Real Estate REEE 100% 100% 5,000 - - 5,000
Ruiyuan Fengxiang b 100% 100% 10,000 - - 10,000
Ruiyuan Fengji HTEE 100% 100% 10,000 - - 10,000
Chuangxin Jianye Bl E 100% 100% 50,000 - - 50,000
Xinyuan Chengye BRAE 100% 100% 1,000 - - 1,000
Nanjing Investment BARIRE 100% 100% 5,000 - - 5,000
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11. NOTES TO THE COMPANY
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(2). Long-term Equity Investments
(Continueq)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

T RAMBHREEIEEEME

(#&)

(2. REBRERSE (&)

Attributable Attributable 31 December 30 June
interest held vote held 2011 Additions Disposals 2012
2% —e-%
5% b B ®A#ELH +ZA=+-H A KR D ~A=t+H
Capital Guoxin () EEELE) 100% 100% - 100,000 - 100,000
Haikou Xinge BAEE 100% 100% 10,000 - - 10,000
BECL EERE 100% 100% 67,296 = = 67,296
Tianjin Yongyuan REXTT 0.03% 0.03% 10 - - 10
Bejjing Chuangyuan Bodao 3t R &R &S
Architectural Design & BERER
Consulting Co., Ltd. BRAT 100% 100% 5,000 - - 5,000
Beijing Xinyuan Huafei IR TESRE
Investment Co., Ltd. ERERAR 100% 100% 5,000 - - 5,000
Beijing Zhongrui Kaihua ERPIHENERE
Investment Co., Ltd. (i) EBABAT() 100% 100% 5,000 - (5,000) -
Beijing Yongyuan Jintai Rk TERIRE
Investment Co., Ltd. (i) EBABAT() 100% 100% 5,000 - (5,000) -
Beijing Hengyuan Yinxing TRETRERE
Investment Co., Ltd. ERERAR 100% 100% 5,000 - - 5,000
Total At 2,761,524 100,000 (10,000) 2,851,524
0] This company was established in 0] EANGIF=Y: /NI
2012 and wholly-owned by the T -—FEHER
Company. SHWEETFRA
(ii) In 2012, the Company transferred (ii) e SR/ NN
all equity interests of such BRAERN TR
subsidiaries to other wholly- AIEHREREES
owned subsidiaries of the Group. REBEFBEHAEM
FRAE:
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BE—F——FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFEH) 2B BAREFT)

T R AMBHREEIEEREME

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (%)
(Continued)
(3). Revenue and cost of sales (8). EEWATIEERA
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
S HZE
- =t 3 —T——F
ANA=+HLE NAZ=Z+THIE
~E B 7~ H B fE
Main operating revenue(a) FEEBFKA () 106,825 113,225
Other operating revenue(b) R ON(9) 818 10,232
Total A&t 107,643 123,457
Main operating cost(a) F & EH KA (a) - -
Other operating costs(b) 99 N(9)] 52 —
Total CE 52 -
(a) Revenue and cost of sales (@) FEEBURANMFTEER
A
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
BE_E-_EXA=+HLE HE_Z——F-A=TAHL
~EREE {8 A B
Main Main Main Main
operating operating operating operating
revenue cost revenue cost
FTEEBRN TEREBAL FEEBRA EEEBRA
Sale of properties BEHERA - - 1,584 -
Consulting services A 106,825 - 111,641 =
Total At 106,825 - 113,225 -
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11. NOTES TO THE COMPANY T+ ARMBFRRFTEEBMF
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (&)
(Continued)
(3). Revenue and cost of sales (Continued) (8). EXWANMEERAEX &)
(b)  Other operating revenue and costs (b) HthEFBUANFMEMER
B A
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
BE_F-_fxA=+HL HBE-T——F A=THLt
~EAHE N EREE
Other Other Other Other
operating operating operating operating
revenue costs revenue costs

EEBBN HeEX#hs EOXBUA HGXBRA

Other income Hith 818 52 10,232 -
(4). Investment income (4). #HEWE
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
Bz HZE
—F-=F —T——%F
~A=+HIE NA=1THIE
~1E B HE ~E A B
Share of profit/(loss) of investees 1&gz EZ B 5k
under equity method DENEREEN
FEmEGD R (1,263) 7,686
Loss from disposal of BE T ARELER
subsidiaries wEBK - (1,019)
Gain from disposal of associates & & Bt & A 7l &
and joint ventures (a) AERNAIEAR
1B W75 (a) 989 60,679
Total Gl (274) 67,346
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(4). Investment income (Continued)

(@) For the six months ended 30 June
2012, the Company recognised
investment income from disposal of
40% equity interest of SCJF, which was
an associate of the Company (note 5(8)
(b)(iv)). For the six months ended 30
June 2011, the Company transferred
some equity interest of its associates
and joint ventures to other wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Group, and
recognised the difference between
consideration and the cost of long-term
equity investment as the investment

T RAMBHREEIEERBME

"REWE (&)

(a)

HE-_Z——F-A=+
BiE75E A HfE - AR A
EERENHBEA R ESE
5 B 49%R% #E ﬁ%mﬁ
RIEE Wz (M 5F F(8)(b)
(iv) B EZ=—T——F XA
=+ 81N EABME A
RABEHFENE I BE R
RAIRAERARMREEZE
BAKREZEFENEAM
SAVNCIERNE <3 1 - 4
BHRPRERAZER
REEHTEWS -

income.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TZ.FRIEE

30 June 31 December

2012 2011

—E-Zf —T——F

~NA=+H +ZA=+—H

Current assets MEEE 34,789,768 32,944,175
Less: Current liabilities R mENBE (20,914,206) (21,205,573)
Net current assets HRBEE 13,875,562 11,738,602

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

+E-%@§Eiﬁkl)ll.§}]ﬁ1§

LIABILITIES
30 June 31 December
2012 2011
—E—Zf —E——F
~B=+HB +ZA=+—H
Total assets B E MR 41,328,449 37,711,118
Less: Current liabilities B mEI A (20,914,206) (21,205,573)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREARE 20,414,243 16,505,545
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